


More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the 

land of opportunities and possibilities - Bangladesh. Since 

independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 

commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangla-

desh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness re�ects 

through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, 

farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the 

country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong 

Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 (one) 

amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the 

highest taxpayer (BDT 8,436 crores paid in the last year). BAT 

Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the 

Bangladesh Government, shareholders and other stakeholders of 

the Company by practising the best corporate governance. This has 

been possible because of the dedication and hard work of our 

people which bring the di�erence.



ABOUT US
The presence of British American Tobacco in this part 
of the world can be traced back to 1910. Beginning 
the journey as Imperial Tobacco 103 years ago, the 
Company set up its �rst sales depot at Armanitola in 
Dhaka. After the partition of India in 1947, Pakistan 
Tobacco Company was established in 1949. The �rst 
factory in Bangladesh (then East Pakistan) was set up 
in 1949 at Faujdarhat in Chittagong. In 1965, the 
second factory of Pakistan Tobacco Company went 
into production at Mohakhali, Dhaka. Thereafter it 
became Bangladesh Tobacco Company Limited in 
1972 immediately after Bangladesh's independence. 

BAT Bangladesh is a part of BAT plc, the world's 
most international tobacco group, with brands 
sold in 180 markets around the world. 

We make high quality tobacco products for the 
diverse preferences of consumers, spanning the 
business 'from crop to consumer' and we are 
committed to embedding the principles of 
corporate social responsibility Group wide.



Our Shareholders

We were among the �rst companies to be listed on the 

Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 

ranked amongst the top 10 companies in terms of market 

capitalisation. British American Tobacco Group holds 

72.91% of our shares; 14% is owned by Investment Corpora-

tion of Bangladesh; Shadharan Bima Corporation, Bangla-

desh Development Bank Limited, Government of the 

People's Republic of Bangladesh, Sena Kallyan Sangstha 

own 0.26% and a further 12.83% is owned by other 

shareholders.

Our Portfolio of Products

Our success comes from satisfying informed adult smokers. 

We manufacture and market high quality and well estab-

lished international cigarette brands as well as local brands. 

The brand portfolio of BAT Bangladesh currently consists of 

Benson & Hedges, John Player Gold Leaf, Pall Mall, Capstan, 

Star, Derby, Pilot and Hollywood.

Our Contributions

We continue to contribute approximately two-thirds 

of the revenue derived from the cigarette industry, 

wherein 2012-13 �scal year BAT Bangladesh contrib-

uted over BDT 8,436 crores as taxes to the National 

Exchequer. The Company will continue to support 

Government proposals that will keep establishing a 

sustainable level of tax contribution to the national 

exchequer while ensuring a sustainable growth for 

the industry.

Our People – Our Strength

Employing more than 1,500 employees directly and 

approximately 50,000 people indirectly as farmers, 

distributors and local suppliers, we take great pride in 

saying that BAT Bangladesh is one of the most 

preferred employers in the country. It is the people, 

who bring their di�erences every day and make BAT 

Bangladesh a great place to work in.
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We always strive to do the right thing,
exercising our responsibility to society
and other stakeholders. We use our
freedom to take decisions and act in
the best interest of consumers.

We have the confidence to passionately
pursue growth and new opportunities
whilst accepting the considered
entrepreneurial risk that comes with it.
Weare bold and strive to overcome
challenges. This is the cornerstone of
our success.



We respect and celebrate each other’s
differences and enjoy working together.
We harness diversity - of our
people, cultures, viewpoints, bronds,
markets and ideas - to strengthen
our business. We value what makes
each of us unique.

We are forward looking and anticipate
consumer needs, winning with
innovative, high quality products.
We listen to and genuinely consider
other perspectives and changing social
expectations. We are open to new ways
of doing things.



SEED TO SMOKE

Seed
Our companies supply seeds, fertilizer
and technical advice to farmers in many
countries worldwide. The seeds are spread
on specially prepared soil or water beds
to produce the seedlings that will be
transplanted to the �eld.

Harvest
After 13-15 weeks the crop is
thriving and the tobacco is
nearing harvest. The plants
vary in size from 50cm to 3m high,
depending on the type. It can
take between 8 and 16
weeks for the whole tobacco
plant to be ripened and harvested.

Curing can take several weeks and
gives the tobacco its distinctive
taste. Tobacco is �ue-cured, �re-
cured or air-cured, depending on the
variety of the plant and how the
tobacco will be used. After curing,
the tobacco is laid out and graded by
color, position on the plant and other
characteristics.

Curing
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Processing involves separating the lamina,
or leaf, from the stem. During processing
the tobacco is subjected to a series
of quality checks and any remaining
foreign matter is removed. The tobacco
is then stored at a uniform moisture
level until it is ready for manufacture.

Processing

Marketplace
The packaged cigarettes are distributed to
over half a million of retail outlets around
Bangladesh. Our supply chain network is
constantly monitored to ensure that the
goods are delivered in the best possible
condition.
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Manufacturing
The processed leaf is checked for quality and
blended as the brand recipe calls for.
The blended tobacco is treated with
steam and water and is then cut before
being fed into cigarette-making machines
along with cigarette paper and �lters.
Packing machines then put them into the
familiar brand packs.
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Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman
 
Mr. Golam Mainuddin has been the Chairman of British American Tobacco Bangladesh 
since August 2008. After obtaining his Masters of Science degree from Dhaka 
University, Mr. Mainuddin pursued the first 30 years of his career in the agro-based 
industry followed by corporate management over the next decade. He was a Tea 
Garden Manager at Duncan Brothers from 1969 to 1982. He then joined BAT Bangladesh 
and soon progressed as the Head of Leaf in 1985. He was appointed as a Director in the 
Board of Directors of the Company in 1986, and was given the responsibility of 
Deputy Managing Director in 1997. In addition to his present role as a Board Member, 
Mr. Mainuddin also performs as a member of the BATB Audit Committee. Over 27 
years in BAT Bangladesh, he was instrumental in achieving self sufficiency in tobacco 
production with strong focus on quality improvements to meet the international 
standards required for domestic use and export purposes while driving wider 
introduction of Bangladeshi tobacco in the world market. He played a key role in 
popularizing the tree plantation program of BAT Bangladesh, which was greatly 
praised and acclaimed throughout the country. Mr. Mainuddin concurrently serves as 
an Independent Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Advanced 
Chemical Industries (ACI) Bangladesh and Apex Adelchi Footwear Limited. He is also 
the Director of Federation of Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce and Industries 
(FBCCI), an Executive Committee member of Metropolitan Chambers of Commerce 
and Industries (MCCI) and Bangladesh Employers Federation (BEF). He has been elected 
as a CIP (Commercially Important Person) by the Government of Bangladesh for the 
last two consecutive terms.

Mr. Shehzad Munim, Managing Director

Mr. Shehzad Munim joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 1997 after 
graduating from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of Dhaka University. 
He worked in different marketing roles within BAT Bangladesh before taking up 
assignments in BAT New Zealand as Group Brand Manager in 2003. There he 
subsequently took over the role of Head of Brand Marketing in 2005. In 2006 he took 
the challenge of developing the innovations process in BAT Australasia as Product 
and Packaging Innovations Manager. Mr. Shehzad Munim returned to BAT Bangladesh 
in 2007 as Head of Brand Marketing. In 2008 he assumed the role of Head of 
Marketing Bangladesh and delivered very strong business results. After completing a 
very successful tenure as Head of Marketing in Bangladesh, he took over the 
challenging role of Area Head of Marketing, South Asia Area. Mr. Shehzad Munim was 
appointed as one of the Non-Executive Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2010. 
He has been appointed as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in 2013 and is the 
first Bangladeshi to become the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh.

Mr. Anthony Yong, Finance Director

Mr. Anthony Yong joined British American Tobacco Asia Pacific Region in 2000 as 
Regional Finance Manager after 8 years in KPMG performing audit and advisory 
services. He was then transferred to British American Tobacco Malaysia Berhad in 
2001 where he performed a variety of finance roles as well as a stint in Strategic 
Planning and Programme Management Office. In 2008, Mr. Yong was appointed as 
the Head of Finance for British American Tobacco Switzerland before returning to 
Asia Pacific in July 2011 as Finance Director for British American Tobacco Bangladesh 
Company Limited.
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Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah, Independent Director

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah obtained his Honours and Masters degrees in Soil 
Science from the University of Dhaka. He joined Ministry of Industries as Secretary in 
September 2012. He represents Government shares in KAFCO as Chairman. Mr. 
Abdullah joined Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration Cadre) in 1983 and has been 
serving for nearly 31 years. He was appointed as the Divisional Commissioner of Dhaka 
in 2010, Director General of Prime Minister’s Office as Additional Secretary in 2009. 
In 1994, he received the international training on ‘Planning & Appraisal of Rural 
Development Project’ at UK. He is involved with social and educational organizations 
for the development of the country. Mr. Abdullah was appointed as Independent 
Director in the Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2012.

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Independent Director

Mr.  K.  H. Masud Siddiqui joined the Bangladesh Civil Service in 1982 after completion 
of his Masters in the University of Dhaka. He has also earned a MA degree in 
Economics from the Manchester University, England.  He  further received  a  Post  
Graduate  Diploma  in  Development  Administration  and Management  from  UK.  He 
was appointed as Secretary of the Ministry of Industries on September 2010 and then 
appointed as Secretary of Ministry of Liberation War Affairs in 2012.  Before this, Mr. 
Siddiqui led Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation as the Chairman. In his 
around 31 years successful career in civil service he held several important positions in 
both field administration and different Ministries. He also worked in the Prime 
Minister's Office in the capacity of Director. Mr. Siddiqui joined the Board of 
Directors of BAT Bangladesh as Independent Director in October 2010 representing 
the Government’s shares in the Company. After moving to the Ministry of Liberation 
War Affairs, Mr. Siddiqui has been re-appointed in the Company as the Independent 
Director as well as the Chairman of Audit Committee. Mr. Siddiqui  is also a  writer. 
He has got four publications to his credit, such as 'Lok Shadhonar Sangskriti', 'Tasauf 
and Other Contexts',  'Malgooddy Days', and  'Food Entitlement in Bangladesh.'

Mr. Kamrul Hasan, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kamrul Hasan obtained B.A (Hons.) and M.A in English Literature (1st position) 
from University of Chittagong. He completed a Diploma in Public Management from 
Connecticut State University, USA. He also achieved Diploma in Development 
Planning from Planning Academy, Dhaka. He was the former Secretary of the Ministry 
of Fisheries & Live Stock and the Ministry of Defence. Prior to joining the BATB Board, 
he was an Additional Secretary in the Ministry of Finance (Finance Division). Before 
that Mr. Hasan held various important senior positions of the Government of 
Bangladesh i.e. Economic Relations Division in Finance Ministry, Chairman of Jibon 
Bima Corporation, Director of Telephone Shilpo Sangstha, WASA Board, Grameen 
Bank Board and Sheraton Board. Mr. Kamrul Hasan was appointed as Independent 
Director of BAT Bangladesh in 2004, representing Government’s shares in the 
Company till July 2011. After that, he has been appointed as one of the Non-Executive 
Directors and Chairman of Board CSR Committee. He was awarded “University BLUE” 
by Chittagong University in 1974 for his remarkable achievements in study and extra 
curricular activities. He was a national level tennis player during 1972-1979. 
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Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman obtained a B.Com (Hons.) and M.Com in Management 
and completed his Post Graduation studies in Investment Planning, Appraisal 
and Management of Development Finance Institution from Bradford 
University, United Kingdom. He attended Cambridge Leadership Program 
organized by the University of Cambridge, United Kingdom and Leadership 
Essential Program arranged by Columbia University, USA. He was appointed 
as the Managing Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) in 
July 2010. Prior to this position, he had been Deputy Managing Director of 
Agrani Bank since 2007. Before that he was the General Manager of ICB. He 
has been working as a Non-Executive Director and a Member of Audit 
Committee of BAT Bangladesh since July 2010. Mr. Fayekuzzaman is the 
Chairman of ICB Capital Management Ltd. He is also a Director of Standard 
Bank Ltd., Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd., IIDFC, CDBL, DSE Ltd., Credit 
Rating Information and Services Ltd. (CRISL), Credit Rating Agencies of 
Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB), Bangladesh Institute of Capital Market, The 
Institute of Bankers, Bangladesh; GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Ltd., ACI 
Limited, Renata Limited, Linde Bangladesh Ltd., National Tea Company Ltd., 
Apex Tannery Ltd., Apex Footwear Ltd. and The ACME Laboratories Ltd.

Md. Azizur Rahman, Company Secretary

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman is a fellow (FCS) of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of 
Bangladesh and an associate member of Internal Audit Institute. After obtaining his 
Master’s degree in Accounting from the University of Dhaka, he completed Chartered 
Accountancy course at ICAB. He then obtained the Chartered Secretary professional 
degree from ICSB. Mr. Rahman joined BAT Bangladesh in March 2002 in Company 
Secretarial functions. In his 21 years of career span, he took the challenges of cross 
functional assignments which developed his expertise in areas like corporate affairs, 
finance, audit, corporate banking and records management. He has the credit of 
developing the digitalised records and control of the vast storage of BATB records. 
Apart from his diverse role as Company Secretary, he is also the Secretary of the 
Audit Committee, Board CSR Committee and Trust Funds of the Company. Mr. 
Rahman performs as a visiting lecturer on corporate affairs in different private univer-
sities and professional institutes. As a resource person, he has also conducted profes-
sional management courses at various levels. In his capacity as the Secretary General 
of Intellectual Property Association of Bangladesh (IPAB) and Vice-Chairman of IP 
Committee of FBCCI, he performs with different national and international organisa-
tions for addressing IPR issues in Bangladesh. 

Mr. Jalal Ahmed, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Jalal Ahmed, born in 1961, Additional Secretary of Finance Division, obtained 
Honours and Masters in Public Administration from the University of Dhaka in 
1981-1982. He served Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration Cadre) for 31 years. He 
was the Vice Chairman of Export Promotion Bureau from August 2010 to October 
2011. During that period, the Country attained the highest export growth in its 
history. He was the Chairman of Bangladesh Oil, Gas and Minerals Corporation (Petro-
bangla) and Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Dhaka, earlier. Mr. Jalal Ahmed joined 
Ministry of Finance as Additional Secretary in September 2012.  He represents IFIC 
Bank Ltd, Bangladesh Submarine Cable Company, Bangladesh Telecommunication 
Company, Bangladesh Services Limited and IPDC as a Director. He joined the Board of 
Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2012 and then was appointed as a member of 
Board CSR Committee.   Besides, he is an ardent nature lover and a bird-photographer.  



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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Mr. Shehzad Munim, Managing Director

Mr. Shehzad Munim joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 1997 
after graduating from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of 
Dhaka University. He worked in different marketing roles within BAT 
Bangladesh before taking up assignments in BAT New Zealand as Group 
Brand Manager in 2003. There he subsequently took over the role of 
Head of Brand Marketing in 2005. In 2006 he took the challenge of 
developing the innovations process in BAT Australasia as Product and 
Packaging Innovations Manager. Mr. Shehzad Munim returned to BAT 
Bangladesh in 2007 as Head of Brand Marketing. In 2008 he assumed the 
role of Head of Marketing Bangladesh and delivered very strong business 
results. After completing a very successful tenure as Head of Marketing 
in Bangladesh, he took over the challenging role of Area Head of 
Marketing, South Asia Area. Mr. Shehzad Munim was appointed as one of 
the Non-Executive Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2010. He has 
been appointed as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in 2013 and 
is the first Bangladeshi to become the Managing Director of BAT 
Bangladesh.

Mr. Anthony Yong, Finance Director

Mr. Anthony Yong joined British American Tobacco Asia Pacific Region in 
2000 as Regional Finance Manager after 8 years in KPMG performing 
audit and advisory services. He was then transferred to British American 
Tobacco Malaysia Berhad in 2001 where he performed a variety of 
finance roles as well as a stint in Strategic Planning and Programme 
Management Office. In 2008, Mr. Yong was appointed as the Head of 
Finance for British American Tobacco Switzerland before returning to 
Asia Pacific in July 2011 as Finance Director for British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh Company Limited.
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Mr. Saifuddin Mohammad Khaled, Head of Supply Chain

Mr. Saifuddin Mohammad Khaled joined British American Tobacco in 
Bangladesh as Technical Assistant in 1988 after graduating from the 
Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay. Over the years, he has played 
different front line & strategic roles in Supply Chain. From 1994 to 2000, 
he left BAT to work for Reckitt Benckiser as Regional Head of Supply 
Chain, West Coast Africa. Khaled re-joined BAT Bangladesh in 2002. He 
was seconded to Ceylon Tobacco Company as Head of Supply Chain in 
2010. He returned to BAT Bangladesh as Head of Supply Chain in 2012. 

Ms. Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources

Ms. Rumana Rahman joined BAT Bangladesh in 2001 as a Management 
Trainee and performed in various roles covering specialist areas like 
reward, talent and generalist streams of business partnering including 
the area of Supply Chain HR. Before taking over the role of Head of HR, 
she was posted in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific Regional Office as the 
Regional HR Planning & Reporting Manager. Ms. Rumana Rahman is the 
first Bangladeshi female Top Team member of BAT Bangladesh.
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Mr. Usman Zahur,  Head of Marketing

Mr. Usman Zahur joined British American Tobacco in Pakistan as 
Assistant Brand Manager in 1997 after graduating from the Pak-American 
Institute of Management Sciences. Over the last 16 years, he has worked 
in various strategic roles within the Marketing department specializing 
in brand management, trade marketing and strategy planning. In 2007 
he was seconded as a Regional Trade Marketing Development Manager 
of BAT Africa Middle East (Kenya) and then as the Head of Strategy and 
Planning in BAT South Asia Area. After successfully leading the 
marketing function in different geographies and roles, Mr. Zahur joined 
BAT Bangladesh as the Head of Marketing in 2012.

Mr. Shahed Zubair, Head of Corporate and Regulatory Affairs

Mr. Shahed Zubair completed his Bachelors in Electrical and Electronics 
Engineering from Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology 
(BUET), Dhaka, and Masters in Business Administration from IBA, Dhaka 
University. He joined BAT Bangladesh in 2007 as Corporate 
Communications Manager. Before that he served in Nestle, Unilever and 
Banglalink, where he gained diverse knowledge and experience. He 
moved to the role of Regulatory Affairs Manager in 2007 and was then 
transferred to BAT Australia working as Area Internal Communications 
Manager as well as Strategy and Planning Manager in Corporate and 
Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function. He has over 14 years of experience 
in global FMCG and Telecommunications. Mr. Zubair joined BAT 
Bangladesh as Head of Corporate and Regulatory Affairs in 2012.

Ms. Mubina Asaf, Head of Legal

Ms. Mubina Asaf has over 17 years of experience in legal profession. 
Before joining BAT Bangladesh, she was one of the senior partners of a 
law firm named ‘Maxima Legal’. Prior to that, she worked for Attorney 
General’s Office, the Government of Bangladesh as an Assistant 
Attorney General, and then as a Deputy Attorney General of Bangladesh 
for more than 7  years. Before that she was an associate of ‘Rokanuddin 
Mahmud and Associates’ where she independently rendered legal advice 
and provided assistance to clients from time to time on commercial and 
company matters. Ms. Mubina completed her LL.B. (Honours) and LL.M. 
from University of Dhaka. She also did a Diploma in Maritime Law from 
an Australian University Program. She enrolled herself as an Advocate of 
the Dhaka District Court, High Court Division and Appellate Division of 
the Supreme Court of Bangladesh. 



Dear Shareholders,

It is a great honour and 
privilege to welcome you all to 

the 41st Annual General 
Meeting of British American 

Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited and to place herewith 

the Annual Report of the 
Company for the year 2013. In 
spite of many challenges from 
the external environment and 

competition, your Company 
achieved desirable growth in 
market share which delivered 

excellent business results in 
2013. Our results were driven 

by revenue growth, 
strengthening of the brand 

portfolio, an improved profit 
after tax due to successful tax 

led price increases, cost 
management and productivity 

initiatives across the Company. 
We hope that with your 

support we shall be able to 
continue our journey to 

progress in the years ahead.

Golam Mainuddin 
Chairman 

British American Tobacco Bangladesh

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
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The Company increased its gross turnover to BDT 10,958 
crores, up by 14% from the previous year. This increase was 
driven by volume growth and due to successful tax led price 
and cost management. Pro�t after tax increased by 25% from 
BDT 394 crores last year to BDT 492 crores in 2013. As a result, 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) has increased to BDT 81.10 which is 
23.4% higher than the previous year.  In consideration of 
that, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend BDT 52 
�nal cash dividend for you, in addition to the BDT 10 interim 
cash dividend paid already in November 2013. The total Cash 
Dividend of the Company therefore stands at BDT 62 for the 
year 2013. With that performance in mind, the share price of 
the Company has recorded new levels in both Exchanges of 
the country which is good news for our Shareholders.

The Company contributes two-thirds of the total tax 
collection from the cigarette industry. In 2013, the Company 
contributed BDT 8,436 crores as supplementary duty, value 
added tax and other levies which makes the Company the 
highest taxpayer in Bangladesh. The Company will continue 
to support Government proposals that establish a 
sustainable level of tax contribution to the National 
Exchequer while ensuring a sustainable growth for the 
industry and promoting a level playing �eld among market 
players. Since this is a matured industry it must not be 
stretched without considering its market dynamics and its 
ability to absorb price increases. Moreover, it should be 
noted that in 2013, leaf export volume was a�ected due to 
10% export duty, withdrawal of GSP facility in the near future 
and turbulent external factors which impacted our ability to 
continue shipments.  

It is our pride that our Company is a law-abiding company 
which has displayed an unwavering commitment to the 
country and this commitment sets the Company apart from 
all other business entities. This uniqueness re�ects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 stakeholders 
comprising of employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers 
of the Company across the country. 

As you know that as per last year the Board of Directors of the 
Company consists of eight Directors, including two who are 
Independent Directors. Out of eight Directors, six are 
non-executive members who are also holding very senior 
responsible positions within the Bangladesh Government. 
Throughout the di�erent Board meetings during the year, 
your Board has considered and approved di�erent 
important business proposals including substantial factory 
capacity enhancement to ensure sustainable business 

growth and played a catalytic role in protecting your 
interests. On this occasion, I can proudly con�rm that all 
members of the Board of Directors have made an e�ective 
and signi�cant contribution for uplifting the Company to 
this position, for which I am grateful to them.

I would like to express my thanks and gratitude to our former 
Managing Director, Mr. Arun Kaul for successfully providing 
leadership to the Company. The year 2013 also witnessed the 
very �rst appointment of a Bangladeshi for the position of 
Managing Director, Mr. Shehzad Munim. The experience of 
the new Managing Director who acquired skills working in 
Australia, New Zealand, Pakistan and Sri Lanka that added 
great value to the Company and increased further business 
growth. A very competent and dedicated Executive Commit-
tee under the leadership of a dynamic Managing Director, 
has made the Company number one in the country in terms 
of being the highest tax payer and preferred employer of 
choice. 

The Company and its Board of Directors is committed to 
continuously striving for the highest standards of corporate 
governance to ensure that its business and a�airs are in strict 
adherence to the doctrine and principles of good corporate 
governance such as integrity, transparency, accountability 
and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests 
of its shareholders and stakeholders. Apart from the Statuto-
ry Audit conducted by A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accoun-
tants, the Board has appointed Al-Muqtadir Associates, 
Chartered Secretaries, to carry out the Corporate Gover-
nance Compliance Audit to be able to certify accordingly in 
ful�llment of the requirements of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guidelines.

In conclusion, we believe that we have the strengths and 
resources to continue our progress. Our employees are 
working hard and with dedication year after year for achiev-
ing the Company’s objectives in a highly challenging and 
competitive market. Their success and e�orts have been 
rewarded by our performance in 2013. Their continued and 
seamless e�orts will propel the Company towards future 
success. On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my 
sincere appreciation to you all, our valued Customers, 
Suppliers, Distributors, Employees of the Company, NBR and 
other relevant authorities of the Government of the Peoples’ 
Republic of Bangladesh for their support and cooperation. I 
wish the Company every success in the future. 



The Company passionately
believes that success

and responsibility go together.
As the number one private-sector

taxpayer of the country,
we will continue to play
our part as a responsible

corporate citizen
and contribute to the

economy of the country.

Shehzad Munim 
Managing Director

British American Tobacco Bangladesh

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S
STATEMENT
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I thank the millions of consumers who have trusted us and our brands throughout 2013. We believe 

passionately in building value for our consumers and shareholders. 2013 was an eventful year for British 

American Tobacco Bangladesh (BATB). Despite challenges from the turbulent external environment, the 

Company witnessed another successful year of growth.

We overcame the challenges of last year by strengthening our brand portfolio, maximizing pricing 

opportunities, smart cost management, robust business continuity planning, benchmark corporate governance 

and investing behind human resources.

As a Company, we feel proud of our strong business continuity planning and focus on environmental health 

and safety at our workplace. In 2013, despite lots of prevailing external risks in the country, as a business, we 

sustained our operations with minimal disruption.

The key performance highlights of 2013 include:

  Attaining the highest ever sales volume by increasing production by 16%;

  Increasing Company revenue by 14% from 2012;

  Exporting over USD 32.5 million in tobacco leaves;

  Increasing Profit After Tax (PAT) by 25%;

  Increasing Earnings Per Share (EPS) by 23.4% from the previous year; and 

  Contributing over BDT 8,436 crores as taxes to the National Exchequer.

Apart from the support of our respected Board and Stakeholders, our continued success would not be possible 

without the hard work of our talented people and great leaders driving our organisation together as an 

excellent team. Our strength lies in our people who are passionate and dedicated to sustain business growth 

regardless of the challenges that we may face in the coming years. This makes us one of the country’s most 

preferred employers of choice.

The Company passionately believes that success and responsibility go together. As the number one 

private-sector taxpayer of the country, we will continue to play our part as a responsible corporate citizen 

and contribute to the economy of the country.
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AGM NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 

Limited will be held on Wednesday, 23 April 2014, at 10:30 am at the Ballroom of The Pan Pacific Sonargaon Hotel, 107 

Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka 1215, for transaction of the following businesses:

AGENDA

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013,  
 and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013.

3. To elect Directors.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2014 and to fix their remuneration.

                                                                                                                                     By order of the Board 

 

7 April 2014 Md. Azizur Rahman FCS 
  Company Secretary

Notes:

  Shareholders whose names appear on the Members/Depository Register on the Record Date i.e. 12 March 2014 
shall be eligible to attend the 41st AGM of the Company and to receive the Dividend.

  A Shareholder wishing to appoint a Proxy must deposit the Proxy Form, duly stamped, at the Company’s 
Registered Office by 10:30 am of 21 April 2014.

  Only Shareholders or their validly appointed proxies will be allowed to have access to the registration process to 
attend the meeting.

  Admission into the auditorium will be allowed strictly on submission of the attendance slip sent with the Notice.

  No children will be allowed at the AGM.
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The Company and its Board of Directors
are committed to continuously strive
for the highest standards of corporate
governance to ensure that its business
and affairs are in strict adherence to the
doctrine and principles of good corporate
governance such as integrity, transparency,
compliance, accountability and responsible
business conduct to safeguard the interests
of its shareholders and stakeholders.

GOVERNANCE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 
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The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 
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The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 
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The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 
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The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 



BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 33

The Company and its Board of Directors are committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards of corporate governance to ensure that its business and affairs are in strict adherence to 
the doctrine and principles of good corporate governance such as integrity, transparency, 
compliance, accountability and responsible business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh or BATB or the Company) 
believes in ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance (CG) as it will serve to strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational effectiveness and foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers broadly to the rules, procedure and laws by which businesses are 
operated, regulated, and controlled in order to ensure the interest of the stakeholders of a corporate body. This 
is central to the continued strong performance of the business in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. Furthermore for the Company, good governance is about 
managing the business effectively and responsibly and in a way which is honest, transparent and shows 
accountability. 

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance code has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
best practices outlined in the following:

 (i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Notification;
 (ii) Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;
 (iii) Standards of Business Conduct of the Company;
 (iv) Statement of Business Principles (Business Principles) of the Company; and
 (v) Statement of Delegated Authorities of the Company.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board of Directors are governed by the Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors, are expected to live up to the Standards 
of Business Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration 
of compliance annually. Examples of provisions in the Standards of Business Conduct include avoiding situations 
where there are conflicts of interest, interest in competing businesses, prohibition on use of inside information, 
corporate opportunities, insider dealing, bribery and corruption.

As part of the Company’s on-going effort to enhance the application of the highest standards of governance in 
line with best global practices, the Standards of Business Conduct are constantly reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. The Standards of Business Conduct was updated, revised and subsequently approved by the Board 
of Directors in October 2013. In addition to the Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is also guided by 
the Company’s Statement of Business Principles. The Business Principles cover key matters that underpin 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business and more particularly, the unique characteristics of a 
tobacco business. The three Business Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible Product Stewardship and Good 
Corporate Conduct, each of which is supported by a core belief which explains and supports the Business 
Principles. Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and Business Principles, the Company also 
has in place the Statement of Delegated Authorities, which supports good corporate governance and prudent 
control of risks and investment management. In the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board 
has specifically reserved matters such as establishment of new businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings and any 
corporate restructuring, for its decision.  Additionally, the Company also has in place the required internal 
policies, guidelines and code to ensure good corporate governance. 

The Company had fully complied with the above mentioned corporate governance principles and best 
practices. This Statement on Corporate Governance together with the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out the manner in which the Company has applied the Company’s corporate governance 
principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the Company’s business 
objectives in a responsible manner. Therefore, in order to comply with laws, regulations, rules, corporate 
governance code, articles of association, policies and procedures, the Company constantly exercises good 
Board practices, effective control processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined shareholders’ rights and 
Board commitments. This statement outlines the adherence to these corporate governance elements as 
follows:  

1. GOOD BOARD PRACTICES :

The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the success of the Company and for its 
overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership necessary for the Company 
to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls, while also discharging the 
Company’s obligations to its shareholders. 

The Board of Directors’ composition complies with the requirements mandated by the Listing Requirements and 
as prescribed by the principles and best practices of the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code. The Board 
comprises a mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Directors from diverse professional backgrounds with a 
wealth of experience, skills and expertise.

Board Composition 

The Board of the Company consists of eight Directors, comprising of four Non-Executive Directors, two 
Independent Directors and two Executive Directors which include the Managing Director and the Finance 
Director. Out of eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh 
Government. A qualified Fellow Chartered Secretary is entrusted the role of Company Secretary.  Please refer 
to pages 13 to 15 for details of the Directors on the Board, their profiles and their respective memberships.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors is primarily entrusted with the responsibility of setting the goals and the direction of the 
Company. The Board of Directors also directs the Company’s risk assessment and ensures implementation of 
appropriate systems to manage these risks, reviewing and adopting strategic plans for the Company, 
succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation and where appropriate, replacing 
senior management and financial and operational management. The Board provides the leadership necessary to 
enable the Company’s business objectives to be met within the framework of internal controls as described in 
this Statement. Other key duties for the Board include declaring dividends, approving financial statements and 
accounting policies of the Company, reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control 
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. 
Further, pursuant to the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities, the Board of Directors is also tasked 
to decide on the following business transactions and activities:

  Ensuring that the Company is governed effectively so as to attain its broad objectives.
  Approving the Company business strategy and ensuring that an effective management team and the 

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives.
  Approving the Company’s Annual Report and reviewing its periodical financial reports.
  Organising the Annual General Meeting with standard agenda for shareholders’ approval.  
  Appropriation of profit and interim dividend declaration and recommendation of final dividend.
  Identifying risk and concern and reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control system 

through Audit Committee.
  Formulating the Company’s governance framework and approving the Standards of Business Conduct 

and policies of the Company.
  Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly 

managed. 
  Approving capital investment and disposal of tangible assets from existing business to third party.
  Ensuring and guiding management to manage external stakeholders. 
  Empowering the management’s responsibilities through appropriate delegation of authority for 

business operation.
  Establishing various Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the CSR Committee and the 

Compensation Committee and determining its terms of references.

  Receiving and reviewing reports of Board committees.
  Considering and approving other matters specifically reserved for the attention of the Board.  

Committees:

The Board has established three Board Committees, to which it has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and CSR Committee. Each Board Committee strictly 
adheres to a set of terms of reference approved by the Board. Their roles, operating procedures and authorities 
are clearly defined in the terms of reference which are reviewed by the Board from time to time. There is an 
evaluation process regarding performance of Audit and CSR committees which facilitate in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of these committees are as follows:

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee for the Company according to the conditions of BSEC 
guidelines. The committee comprises of one Independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. The 
Independent Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chairman of the Committee. All members of the 
Audit Committee are literate on Financial Management and are able to analyse and interpret financial 
statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. The 
Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of BAT Bangladesh Company Limited and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From 
time to time, other senior members of management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, separately, with the 
internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present. They met three times during 
the year 2013. All members were present in all meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary functioned 
as the Secretary of the Committee. The key responsibilities of Audit Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring compliance to accounting policies, 
standards and principles.

  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Board Compensation Committee:

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 2 (two) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the 
committee. The remuneration policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is 
competitive so that high quality human resources with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated 
and retained.

CSR Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to the 
business sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 
role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 
protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 11 April 
2012 has established a CSR Committee. The Board nominated four Directors to the Board CSR Committee 
among whom a Non-Executive Director is a Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure 
management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability and creates positive 
impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders. 

Board and Committee Meetings: 

The composition of the Board Committee as at 31 December 2013 and the attendance of the Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2013 are as follows:

2. EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES:

The Board of British American Tobacco Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in ensuring effective control 
processes in the organisation through the Board committees.  Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management level which plays a significant role in managing the business as per 
the norms of corporate governance and ensure that internal controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process. 

Executive Committee: 

In discharging the above mentioned responsibilities and duties, the Board of Directors are duly assisted by the 
senior management of the Company, namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The Managing Director leads the 
ExCo which comprises of the following head of functions:

  Managing Director
  Finance Director
  Head of Marketing
  Head of Supply Chain
  Head of Legal
  Head of Corporate & Regulatory Affairs and
  Head of Human Resources

The major responsibilities and authorities of the ExCo are clearly defined in the Company’s Corporate Authority 
Limit, which is read with the Company’s Statement of Delegated Authorities. The ExCo is charged with the 
responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing business and corporate strategies. 

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement the Company's strategies and ensure effective day-to-day 
operations in line with the Company plan. From time to time, when the Board requires relevant information or 
updates, relevant member of the ExCo are invited to attend Board meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo member, please refer to pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control Committee

In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared at the Executive Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman of the Company to ensure the effective functioning 
of the Board. The Company Secretary organises and attends all Board meetings and Board Committees 
meetings (Audit Committee and CSR Committee), ensuring that an accurate and proper record of deliberation 
of issues are discussed, decisions made and conclusions are taken. The other roles of Company Secretary is to 
facilitate the Chairman and other relevant management of the Company for maintaining good corporate 
governance practices ensuring compliance of relevant laws including securities regulations, review overall 
control environment of the Company being a member of Internal Control Committee, drive policy compliance 
awareness among the Company employees, ensure shareholders services, agreement signing, policies 
formulation, protection of the Company’s land, Records Management, driving Standards of Business Conduct, 
seven trust funds governance and its portfolio investment management, perform the duties as per power of 
Attorney and Board level stakeholders management facilitating Corporate Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function 
especially for Company Secretarial area. 

Internal Control Process:

The Company’s internal control system is designed at Board, Management and individual level to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives in respect of effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, reliability (completeness and timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s policies. The Company has its 
own internal auditors who are accountable to the Audit Committee.  The internal control process is further 
explained in the Statement of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and guidelines that govern the internal 
control process of the company are listed below:
 
  Standards of Business Conduct
  Procurement Policy & Guidelines
  IT Security Policy
  Finance Policy & Guideline
  International Marketing Standards
  Records Management Policy
  Agreement Policy
  Employment Policy & Principles

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at management level headed by the Finance Director and consists of 
knowledgeable cross functional managers including internal auditors who drive an effective risk management 
framework within the Company. The risk controllers periodically review the departmental risks and report to 
RMC. The RMC reviews the functional risks three times a year, identifies the Company’s key risks and ensure 
adequate action plans are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of the Company are then endorsed by the 
Executive Committee and then ratified by Audit Committee as far as effective risk management is concerned. 
In order to ensure effective risk management within the Company, the RMC is responsible for reviewing risks, 
maintaining an appropriate level of awareness throughout the Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a risk register where all the associated risks as well as action 
plans are recorded. 

Standards of Business Conduct:
    
The Company has in place the Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasizes on high standards of 
business integrity that is required from the employees and Directors of the Company. This SoBC covers the 
policies regarding whistleblowing process, declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and corruption, 
entertainment and gifts, charitable contributions, accurate accounting and records keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information security, insider dealing and market abuse, media interviews, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money laundering and anti-terrorism, trade in the company’s  products and 
sanctions.

The conduct of all employees of the Company including the Board are governed by the Standards of Business 
Conduct. Each and every employee, including the Directors are expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their commitment and compliance by executing a declaration of 
compliance annually.

Statutory Auditor:

As per the Companies Act (provide reference), statutory auditors of BAT Bangladesh are recommended by the 
Board and appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. From corporate governance 
perspective, the statutory auditor plays an independent role in providing reasonable assurance of the annual 
financial reports and in compliance of laws and regulations for the interest of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The management ensures the auditor’s sufficient access to the information and creates 
atmosphere to play auditor’s independence while conducting the statutory audit process.      

3. TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

The management prepares financial statements with adequate transparent disclosures in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. In order to prepare the 
financial statements, the management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable under the circumstances. On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews the 
financial statements of the Company. The quarterly financial statements, along with notes are published on the 
two daily newspapers as well as the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly and annual financial 
statements are sent to all shareholders in a timely manner.

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report which discloses the 
financial performance as well as non-financial information regarding Company growth, productivity, 
responsibilities and other information in compliance with BSEC’s Notification. The Company abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price Sensitive Information (PSI).                            

4. WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS:

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of a successful and productive relationship with its shareholders 
must be underpinned by the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to its shareholders. The 
Board ensures through Company Secretary that all the Company’s shareholders are treated equitably and ensure 
that the rights of all shareholders are protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the Company Secretary acts as a bridge between shareholders and the 
Board of Directors of the Company who delivers the standard services to its valued shareholders ensuring the 
well-defined shareholders’ rights in accordance with applicable laws and Articles of Association of the 
Company. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report, Quarterly updates on financial performance and at any other time when it 
believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally. The best practices are followed by the Company 
which consequentially helps investors to keep their confidence in the Company.      

5. BOARD COMMITMENTS:

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities- 
Bangladesh. Since independence, British American Tobacco Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering 
commitment to the country and this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness reflects through the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and 
suppliers of BAT Bangladesh across the country. 

BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently ranked as number 1 
(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. In the last fiscal year, 
the Company contributed BDT 8,436 crores to the National Exchequer. BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to 
value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company by 
practicing the best corporate governance.       

          On behalf of the Board

          Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
          Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh recognizes the importance of sound internal 
controls and risk management practices to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets. The 
Board affirms its overall responsibility for Company’s system of internal control which includes the establish-
ment of an appropriate control environment and framework as well as reviewing its adequacy and integrity. The 
Management is tasked by the Board to identify and assess the risks faced by the Company and to design, imple-
ment and monitor appropriate internal controls to mitigate and control the identified risks. As there are limita-
tions that are inherent in any internal control environment, the system designed can manage rather than elimi-
nate risks that may impact the achievement of the Company’s business objectives. Therefore, it provides 
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.The ultimate owner of the internal 
control system is the Board of Directors as it ensures that the importance of internal controls is understood 
across the Company and that adequate resource allocations are available.

Risk Management

As part of its internal control and risk management system, the Company has in place an ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing significant risks faced by the business. Risk Management is 
firmly embedded in the Company’s management system and is every employee’s responsibility as the Company 
firmly believes that this process is critical for the business’ sustainability and enhancement of shareholder value. 
The process includes reviewing and updating the internal controls to take into consideration changes in the 
regulatory and business environment and it is regularly reviewed by the Board through the Audit Committee.

The Risk Management Committee, chaired by the Finance Director and represented by senior managers from all 
functions of the Company meets at least twice a year to review and update the risk register, including detailed 
assessment of the root causes thereof and potential impact, and the risk mitigation action plans. 

To ensure relevance, completeness and robustness of the risk mitigation actions, the Company also considers 
the factors of Business Continuity which is defined as the strategic and tactical capability of the organisation to 
plan for and respond to incidents and business disruptions in order to continue business operations at an accept-
able pre-defined level.To manage this effectively, the Company has in place a framework known as Business 
Continuity Management which is a holistic management process that identifies potential impacts that threaten 
an organisation and provides a framework for building resilience and the capability for an effective response 
that safeguards the interests of its key stakeholders, reputation, brand and value creating activities. This 
process is developed and embedded throughout the Company from senior management down to the factory 
floor and across all sites and throughout the supply chain. Selected business continuity plans were reviewed, 
updated and tested during last year as a part of regular Governance. The Management team continually devel-
ops new plans to support changes in the business environment. Senior Managers own the continuity plans and 
they make formal presentations to the Risk Management Committee on their readiness to counter various 
adverse possibilities and likelihoods and regular updates are provided to the Audit Committee on the same. 

Internal control assessment process

The annual Control Self-Assessment process has been the essential part to the Company's internal control and 
risk management system, which has been developed and embedded in the business over time. A detailed check-
list is developed each year which sets out the various controls and process requirements across all functions in 
the Company and it is updated annually taking into consideration the transforming risk profile as dictated by 
changes in business and regulatory environment, strategies and functional activities from time to time. All 
functions of the Company complete this self-assessment together and effectiveness of the controls are 
assessed with actions plans with specific timelines and responsibilities are drawn up where controls are deemed 
to require further strengthening or enhancement to mitigate key risks. The outcomes of the assessment are 
reported to the Audit Committee. 

Other key elements of the internal control and risk management system

Apart from the above, the other key elements of the company’s internal control and risk management system 
which have been reviewed and approved by the Board are described below:
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a) Policies, procedures and limits of authority

  Clearly defined delegation of responsibilities to committees of the Board and to Management including 
organizational structures and appropriate authority levels.

  Clearly documented internal policies and procedures are in place and regularly updated to reflect chang-
ing risks or improve operational efficiency. All polices are approved by the Board and instances of 
non-compliance to policies and procedures, if any, are reported to the Audit Committee. 

b) Strategic business planning, budgeting and reporting

  The Company Management prepares and provides regular and comprehensive information for the 
purpose of monitoring of performance against strategic plan as well as company plan, covering all key 
financial and operational indicators. On a quarterly basis, the Managing Director reviews with the Audit 
Committee all issues covering, but not restricted to, strategy, performance, resources and Standards of 
Business Conduct. The quarterly, half yearly and full year financials are reviewed by the Audit Committee 
as per the stipulated statutory timelines before they are recommended to the Board for approval. 

 
  Detailed budgeting process requires all functions to prepare annual budgets for the Company plan.

  Effective reporting systems which allow the identification of significant variances against budgets and 
plans are in place to monitor performance. Key variances are followed up by Management and reported 
to the Board.  

c) Insurance and physical safeguard

  Adequate insurance and physical security of major Company assets are in place to ensure that those are 
sufficiently covered against mishap that may result in material losses to the Company.

d) Executive Committee meetings

  Executive Committee meetings are held, on a monthly basis as and when required, with the Managing 
Director and the Head of Departments, to review, identify, discuss and resolve strategic, operational, 
financial and key management issues.

e) Other matters

  Written declaration from all management personnel confirming their compliance to the Company’s 
Standard of Business Conduct and all conflicts of interest situations are formally collected and reviewed 
by management annually and relevant actions are taken, if required, to mitigate relevant risks.

  Any significant control incidents are probed and assessed by relevant members of senior management in 
detail along with required action plans to correct control weakness and prevent recurrence, reviewed by 
the Executive Committee and reported to the Audit Committee.    

Monitoring and development of awareness of internal control system

The system of internal control is monitored regularly through both on-going activities and separate evaluations. 
On-going monitoring activities are conducted through regular management activities. The Internal Audit 
function is responsible for providing an objective and independent view of the design and operational effective-
ness of business controls and procedures, as well as management action in dealing with issues of control.
In 2013, an Internal Control Committee (ICC) was launched. This forum, chaired by the Head of Marketing and 
represented by cross functional senior managers, meets at least 4 times a year to discuss and review the overall 
control environment of the business. Key areas of discussions are changes in internal policies, ensuring controls 
awareness and taking a consolidated view of the control assessment process. Key outcomes of the ICC are 
shared in the Executive Committee meetings.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, ensures that awareness of internal control is enhanced throughout 
the Company. This occurs through management by self-assessment of controls, discussion of internal control 
issues at management meetings, off the job education on internal control and through creating an environment 
and control attitude within the Company that is challenging, proactive, and considers the worst case scenarios 
to measure the appropriateness of controls.The Board has delegated the process of reviewing the effectiveness 
of internal controls to the Audit Committee whose functions are described in the Audit Committee Report. 

The Board is of the view that the system of internal control of the Company is forceful and able to detect any 
material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Annual Report.   
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited has constituted an Audit 
Committee according to the conditions of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) guidelines 
which as appended at the Compliance Report enclosed with the Directors’ Report. The committee comprises of 
Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is 
an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the Committee. Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman, Company Secretary, 
functions as the Secretary of the Committee.The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and all the mem-
bers are Non-Executive Directors. All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and are able to 
analyse and interpret financial statements to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members 
of the Audit Committee. 

Purpose of Audit Committee 

The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company and 
review and, when appropriate, make recommendations to the Board on business risks, internal controls and 
compliance. The Committee satisfies itself, by means of suitable steps and appropriate information, that proper 
and satisfactory internal control systems are in place to identify and contain business risks and that the Compa-
ny's business is conducted in a proper and economically sound manner. The key responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee include:

  Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process ensuring
     compliance to accounting policies, standards and principles.
  Monitor internal control and business risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
  Monitor and review the effectiveness of internal audit function.
  Other matters as per terms of reference of Audit Committee. 

Authority

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to review any activity within the business as per its terms of 
reference. It is authorised to seek any information it requires from, and require the attendance at any of its 
meetings of, any director or member of management, and all employees are expected to co-operate with any 
request made by the Committee. 
The Committee is also authorised to have information and advice from the Company Legal Advisor, Tax Consul-
tant and Statutory Auditor if required. The terms of reference of Audit Committee may be amended from time 
to time as required for the business in line with BSEC notifications subject to approval by the Board.

Meeting Attendance

The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the 
Committee. The details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings during 2013 are as 
follows:

Number of Audit Committee Meetings

Composition of Audit Committee    Held  Attended % 

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui
Chairman
(Independent Non-Executive Director)   4  4  100%

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman
(Non-Executive Director)     4  4  100%

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
(Non-Executive Director)     4  4  100%

The Managing Director, Finance Director, Internal Auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited and representatives of the external auditors had attended all the meetings upon invitation by the Audit 
Committee. From time to time, other senior members of the management have also been invited by the Audit 
Committee to attend Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and, 
separately, with the internal auditors, on an annual basis without any Executive Director being present.
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K. H. Masud Siddiqui
Chairman, Audit Committee

(Independent Director)

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Secretary, Audit Committe
Company Secretary, BATB

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES 2013
In 2013 the Audit Committee reviewed its terms of reference in line with the requirements of BSEC notification 
on corporate governance. The Committee carried out its duties in accordance with the terms of reference of 
the Audit Committee. Moreover, an Audit Committee effectiveness survey had been carried out for the year 
2013 which reflected full compliance to the effectiveness Guidelines. 

During the year 2013, the Audit Committee carried out the following activities:

1. Financial reporting

Reviewed the quarterly and annual audited financial statements of the Company with the Finance Director and 
Managing Director, focusing particularly on significant changes to accounting policies and practices, 
adjustments arising from the audits, compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements before 
recommending them to the Board for approval.

2. Internal control and Business Risk management

a. Reviewed BAT Bangladesh’s Business Risk Management Framework, including the top risks for the business 
as well as deep dive of key risks to assess and evaluate the relevance and robustness of mitigation plans.

b. Reviewed the status, learning and enhancements of the identified Business Continuity Plans.

c. Reviewed the management self-assessment of controls across the business and the action plans put forward 
for further enhancement of the same.

d. Reviewed and recommended to the Board steps to improve the Company’s internal control systems derived 
from the findings of the internal and external auditors.

 
e. Received updates on breaches of the Standards of Business Conduct and whistle-blowing incidents and 

reviewed relevant management action.

3. Internal audit

a. Reviewed internal audit plan as to its consistency with the BAT Bangladesh’s Business Risk Management 
Framework used and adequacy of coverage.

b. Reviewed the internal audit reports as per BATB’s annual audit plan and corresponding actions to improve 
controls as agreed by management

c. Reviewed status reports of internal audit to ensure that appropriat eactions had been taken to implement 
the audit recommendations.

4. Related party transactions

a. Reviewed the recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Company in 2013.

5. External audit

a. Reviewed with the external auditors the Company’s Statement of Internal Control before recommending 
the same for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report 2013.

b. Reviewed with the external auditors the Company’s annual financial statements with the Finance Director 
and Managing Director, focusing on findings arising from audits particularly the comments and responses in 
management letter as well as assistance given by the employees of the Company before recommending 
them to the Board of Directors for approval.

c. Reviewed the external auditors’ audit plan including its nature and scope, audit report, evaluation of internal 
controls and coordination of the external auditors.

      
d. Reviewed the external auditors’ findings arising from audits, particularly comments and responses in 

management letters as well as the assistance given by the employees ofthe Company in order to be satisfied 
that appropriate action is being taken.



British American Tobacco
Bangladesh (BATB) has won Asia’s 

top rank business award Asia 
Responsible Entrepreneurship Award 

(AREA)-2014 on Green Leadership. 
The award was handed over to BATB 

in a grand program in New Delhi, 
India recently. 

  
Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Secretary, Ministry of Libera-
tion War A�airs and Independent Director and Chair-
man of the Audit Committee of BATB received the 
honor on behalf of the organization. 

Enterprise Asia’s Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship 
Awards (AREA) program (AREA) recognizes and 
honors Asian businesses for championing sustainable 
and responsible entrepreneurship in the categories: 
Green Leadership, Investment in People, Health 
Promotion, Social Empowerment, SME CSR and 
Responsible Business Leadership. The Awards are 
held in four sub-regions of Asia, namely, East Asia, 
South Asia, Southeast Asia and Middle East. 

BATB was nominated for the coveted award for its 
�agship A�orestation Program. BATB has planted 
more than 79 million saplings since 1980, which is 
probably the largest private sector driven a�oresta-
tion program in Bangladesh. BATB also won National 
Awards for Tree Plantation from the Government of 
Bangladesh in the year of 1992, 1999, 2002, 2005 and 
2007.     

High o�cials from leading corporate conglomerates 
of South Asian countries attended the award giving 
ceremony. 

The award aims to bring together Asia’s leading 
minds and businesses, providing priceless network-
ing opportunities coupled with the best opportuni-
ties, to share ideas, network and discover new 
ventures and opportunities in the Asian entrepre-
neurial landscape. Enterprise Asia, the top-notch 
institution on entrepreneurship development based 
in Malaysia, declares the award every year.   

The AREA award declaration started from 2009 and 
Asia’s best corporate conglomerates have been 
awarded so far. 

BATB WINS PRESTIGIOUS
ASIA RESPONSIBLE ENTREPRENEURSHIP AWARD
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CSR COMMITTEE REPORT
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of British American Tobacco 

Bangladesh Company Limited (‘BATB’ or ‘BAT Bangladesh’ or ‘The Company’). It is integral to the business 

sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company has a role to play in helping 

society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social 

progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of BATB Limited in its meeting held on 11 April 2012 has established 

a CSR Committee as a sub-committee of the Board.

PURPOSE OF BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way 

that ensures business sustainability and creates and maintains positive impact for the reputation of the Compa-

ny among its stakeholders.

AUTHORITY

The Board CSR Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to evaluate activities within the business with 

respect to CSR. The terms of reference of the Committee may be amended from time to time as required, 

subject to approval by the Board of Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEE AND ITS MEETINGS

There were two meetings in 2013 and all the Committee members were present in the meetings. Considering 

the increasing importance of the Company’s CSR activities, the Committee has decided to convene at least 

thrice yearly from the coming year.  The committee comprised of the following members: 

  Mr. Kamrul Hasan    -  Chairman
  Non-Executive Director
  Former Secretary of Bangladesh Govt.

  Mr. Jalal Ahmed     -  Member 
  Non-Executive Director
  Additional Secretary, Ministry of Finance

  Mr. Shehzad Munim    - Member
  Managing Director, BATB

  Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman   - Secretary
  Company Secretary, BATB

Mr. Shahed Zubair, Head of Corporate and Regulatory Affairs, and Mr. Shiblee Shakik Ahmed, Senior Corporate 

Affairs Manager, are the permanent invitees of the CSR Committee meetings. Other relevant Managers and 

stakeholders may attend the meeting by invitation.   

ACTIVITIES SUMMARY

In 2013, the CSR Committee highlighted the following matters:

  BATB’s CSI (Corporate Social Investment) portfolio includes three flagship CSI programmes driving the 

corporate reputation all under the sustainable agriculture and environment theme. These are Afforesta-

tion, Safe Drinking Water and Solar Home Systems.
  
  Water Filtration Project: 7 units of water filtration have been installed during 2013 for safe arsenic-free 

drinking water. The expenses incurred were BDT 3.5 million. 

  Solar Home System Project: In 2013, the Company installed 366 units of solar home power systems in 

Chittagong hill tracts especially in off-grid areas to provide electricity for rural people for which 

incurred expenses were BDT 5 million.

    Afforestation Project: In 2013, the Company distributed a total of 4 million free saplings to 1.0 million 

recipients throughout Bangladesh for which expenses amounting to BDT 10 million were incurred. 

Sapling varieties consisted of fast growing, timber, native fruits and medicinal plants. We have 

achieved 10 first prizes from local administration.   

  Aligning our CSI with Group and Government requirements, its business relevance, focus area and 

success factors. 

  A combined effort from Government and TCGs are threatening our leaf growing continuity.
 

  Engagement for reducing misperception of stakeholders.
 

  Raising farmers’ voices to re-normalise especially in leaf growing continuity and partnering with top 

media. 
 

  Establishing CSI independent brands to enhance corporate reputation through below the line 

engagement. 
 

  Exploring women empowerment opportunity for farmers’ families in northern leaf region in 2014.
 

  Developing an independent organisation for CSI Impact study in Q4 2013.
 

  Developing partnership with Bangladesh Agriculture University in Q1 2014 for sustainable agriculture 

dialogue.

BAT Bangladesh from its inception has worked intimately with farmers. To ensure e�ectiveness in all aspects of agricultural farming, various environmentally 
friendly and sustainable agricultural methodologies and techniques have been developed by BAT. Skills have been developed of the farmers by imparting 
training for their appropriate application. BAT’s Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Club has been assisting farmers with crop management. Farmers’ Field 
School (FFS) method was adopted in collaboration with Department of Agricultural Extension (DAE) to further train farmers. IPM clubs were established to 
comprehensively manage pests, thus strengthening the ‘crop production and soil quality management’ initiative. The main objective of IPM is to produce 
crops in an environmentally friendly manner by developing organic farming and establishing organic pest  management programs. Through these initiatives 
in collaboration with Agriculture Extension Department (DAE) BAT has been successful in demonstrating ways of making agricultural initiatives both 
environmentally friendly and sustainable. 

This meaningful relationship between farmers and BAT Bangladesh did not develop overnight. For generations we have been allies to these people close to 
the soil and their roots. It has thus been possible for us to play an enduring role in ensuring environmentally friendly and sustainable agricultural initiatives 
in collaboration with the Farmers on one side and DAE on the other.  And this relationship will continue far into the future. 

Kamrul Hasan
Chairman, Board CSR Committee, BATB

Former Secretary of the Bangladesh Govt.

CSR COMMITTEE
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CSR COMMITTEE REPORT
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of British American Tobacco 

Bangladesh Company Limited (‘BATB’ or ‘BAT Bangladesh’ or ‘The Company’). It is integral to the business 

sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company has a role to play in helping 

society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social 

progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of BATB Limited in its meeting held on 11 April 2012 has established 

a CSR Committee as a sub-committee of the Board.

PURPOSE OF BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way 

that ensures business sustainability and creates and maintains positive impact for the reputation of the Compa-

ny among its stakeholders.

AUTHORITY

The Board CSR Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to evaluate activities within the business with 

respect to CSR. The terms of reference of the Committee may be amended from time to time as required, 

subject to approval by the Board of Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEE AND ITS MEETINGS

There were two meetings in 2013 and all the Committee members were present in the meetings. Considering 

the increasing importance of the Company’s CSR activities, the Committee has decided to convene at least 

thrice yearly from the coming year.  The committee comprised of the following members: 

  Mr. Kamrul Hasan    -  Chairman
  Non-Executive Director
  Former Secretary of Bangladesh Govt.

  Mr. Jalal Ahmed     -  Member 
  Non-Executive Director
  Additional Secretary, Ministry of Finance

  Mr. Shehzad Munim    - Member
  Managing Director, BATB

  Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman   - Secretary
  Company Secretary, BATB

Mr. Shahed Zubair, Head of Corporate and Regulatory Affairs, and Mr. Shiblee Shakik Ahmed, Senior Corporate 

Affairs Manager, are the permanent invitees of the CSR Committee meetings. Other relevant Managers and 

stakeholders may attend the meeting by invitation.   

ACTIVITIES SUMMARY

In 2013, the CSR Committee highlighted the following matters:

  BATB’s CSI (Corporate Social Investment) portfolio includes three flagship CSI programmes driving the 

corporate reputation all under the sustainable agriculture and environment theme. These are Afforesta-

tion, Safe Drinking Water and Solar Home Systems.
  
  Water Filtration Project: 7 units of water filtration have been installed during 2013 for safe arsenic-free 

drinking water. The expenses incurred were BDT 3.5 million. 

  Solar Home System Project: In 2013, the Company installed 366 units of solar home power systems in 

Chittagong hill tracts especially in off-grid areas to provide electricity for rural people for which 

incurred expenses were BDT 5 million.

    Afforestation Project: In 2013, the Company distributed a total of 4 million free saplings to 1.0 million 

recipients throughout Bangladesh for which expenses amounting to BDT 10 million were incurred. 

Sapling varieties consisted of fast growing, timber, native fruits and medicinal plants. We have 

achieved 10 first prizes from local administration.   

  Aligning our CSI with Group and Government requirements, its business relevance, focus area and 

success factors. 

  A combined effort from Government and TCGs are threatening our leaf growing continuity.
 

  Engagement for reducing misperception of stakeholders.
 

  Raising farmers’ voices to re-normalise especially in leaf growing continuity and partnering with top 

media. 
 

  Establishing CSI independent brands to enhance corporate reputation through below the line 

engagement. 
 

  Exploring women empowerment opportunity for farmers’ families in northern leaf region in 2014.
 

  Developing an independent organisation for CSI Impact study in Q4 2013.
 

  Developing partnership with Bangladesh Agriculture University in Q1 2014 for sustainable agriculture 

dialogue.
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CSR COMMITTEE REPORT
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of British American Tobacco 

Bangladesh Company Limited (‘BATB’ or ‘BAT Bangladesh’ or ‘The Company’). It is integral to the business 

sustainability and enhancement of long-term shareholder value. The Company has a role to play in helping 

society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social 

progress. Therefore, the Board of Directors of BATB Limited in its meeting held on 11 April 2012 has established 

a CSR Committee as a sub-committee of the Board.

PURPOSE OF BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way 

that ensures business sustainability and creates and maintains positive impact for the reputation of the Compa-

ny among its stakeholders.

AUTHORITY

The Board CSR Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to evaluate activities within the business with 

respect to CSR. The terms of reference of the Committee may be amended from time to time as required, 

subject to approval by the Board of Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEE AND ITS MEETINGS

There were two meetings in 2013 and all the Committee members were present in the meetings. Considering 

the increasing importance of the Company’s CSR activities, the Committee has decided to convene at least 

thrice yearly from the coming year.  The committee comprised of the following members: 

  Mr. Kamrul Hasan    -  Chairman
  Non-Executive Director
  Former Secretary of Bangladesh Govt.

  Mr. Jalal Ahmed     -  Member 
  Non-Executive Director
  Additional Secretary, Ministry of Finance

  Mr. Shehzad Munim    - Member
  Managing Director, BATB

  Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman   - Secretary
  Company Secretary, BATB

Mr. Shahed Zubair, Head of Corporate and Regulatory Affairs, and Mr. Shiblee Shakik Ahmed, Senior Corporate 

Affairs Manager, are the permanent invitees of the CSR Committee meetings. Other relevant Managers and 

stakeholders may attend the meeting by invitation.   

ACTIVITIES SUMMARY

In 2013, the CSR Committee highlighted the following matters:

  BATB’s CSI (Corporate Social Investment) portfolio includes three flagship CSI programmes driving the 

corporate reputation all under the sustainable agriculture and environment theme. These are Afforesta-

tion, Safe Drinking Water and Solar Home Systems.
  
  Water Filtration Project: 7 units of water filtration have been installed during 2013 for safe arsenic-free 

drinking water. The expenses incurred were BDT 3.5 million. 

  Solar Home System Project: In 2013, the Company installed 366 units of solar home power systems in 

Chittagong hill tracts especially in off-grid areas to provide electricity for rural people for which 

incurred expenses were BDT 5 million.

    Afforestation Project: In 2013, the Company distributed a total of 4 million free saplings to 1.0 million 

recipients throughout Bangladesh for which expenses amounting to BDT 10 million were incurred. 

Sapling varieties consisted of fast growing, timber, native fruits and medicinal plants. We have 

achieved 10 first prizes from local administration.   

  Aligning our CSI with Group and Government requirements, its business relevance, focus area and 

success factors. 

  A combined effort from Government and TCGs are threatening our leaf growing continuity.
 

  Engagement for reducing misperception of stakeholders.
 

  Raising farmers’ voices to re-normalise especially in leaf growing continuity and partnering with top 

media. 
 

  Establishing CSI independent brands to enhance corporate reputation through below the line 

engagement. 
 

  Exploring women empowerment opportunity for farmers’ families in northern leaf region in 2014.
 

  Developing an independent organisation for CSI Impact study in Q4 2013.
 

  Developing partnership with Bangladesh Agriculture University in Q1 2014 for sustainable agriculture 

dialogue.

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Secretary, Board CSR Committee

Company Secretary, BATB

Kamrul Hasan
Chairman, Board CSR Committee



weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k
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cvwb me©iv‡ni gva¨‡g cÖwZw`b `yM©vcyi

MÖv‡gi gvby‡li gy‡L nvwm dzUv‡”Q

The supply of pure arsenic-free drinking water, thanks to British American Tobacco Bangladesh’s initiative, is 
bringing smiles to the faces of the inhabitants of Durgapur village every day.  



Gross Turnover 
(GT) BDT 10,958 
crores

Net Profit
BDT 486 crores; 
4.45% of GT

Foreign currency 
income from Leaf 
exports US$ 32.59 
million

Earnings Per 
Share
BDT 81.14

Dividend Per 
Share BDT 62

Contribution to
Government’s 
Exchequer
BDT 8,436 crores; 
78.28% of  GT

KEY HIGHLIGHTS
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It is a pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors to place herewith the Directors' Report and 
Auditors' Report together with the audited financial statements of British American Tobacco Bangladesh 
Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013.

KEY STRATEGIC PILLARS

As before, the Company was governed throughout 2013 under the core crucial pillars of Growth, Productivity, 
Sustainability and Winning Organisation which has enabled us to post remarkable results for the year under 
review. The significant components of the business under each pillar, together with the salient features of such 
performance are described and highlighted in the succeeding parts of this report. 

GROWTH

Industry Outlook

Overall cigarette industry experienced a slump in 2013 because of turbulent external factors which 
progressively worsened towards the end of the year. However, segment growth varied  during the year. The 
Low segment, which was growing over the last few years, witnessed a slow down this year. The Medium and 
High segments were more resilient due to product quality and favourable market dynamics. The Medium 
segment took a sharp decline in the first half but made a partial recovery during the latter half of the year. The 
High segment which was on a declining trend in previous years started to recover in 2013 due to prudent pricing 
and distribution expansion. However, the Premium segment once again came under heavy pressure and 
experienced a decline after the mid-year price increase. Looking ahead, we expect growth in the cigarette 
industry to grow magically due to the up-trading from the biri segment.

Cigarette Segment Performance

Despite challenges from the external environment and competition, your Company achieved desirable share 
growth in 2013 which delivered excellent business results. This growth was achieved through a focused 
marketing strategy that was supported and implemented by our employees across all business functions. Our 
brand portfolio was strengthened through insights on the preferences of adult tobacco smokers. The focus 
throughout the year was to match consumer expectations with the right quality in the selected segments. 

Like previous years, 2013 featured a stronger first half-year performance as the market recovered from the 
impact of annual mid-year tax-led price increase.  Total volume increased by 16% with higher growth in the low, 
medium and high segments partially offset by a decline in the premium segment. The indexing gap between the 
premium segment and other lower segments has widened further which is a deterrent in facilitating uptrading 
in the cigarette industry.  This trend is a matter of concern as it negatively impacts not only British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh but also Government revenue earning capacity from the cigarette industry. Therefore, we 
continue to engage with policy makers to ensure that balanced taxation policies are implemented. A review on 
performance of each of the cigarette segments follows: 

Low Segment: The low segment has come under serious challenge after years of steady growth. Although your 
Company has achieved uprise in market share of this segment, it still continues to hold the lowest slice in this 
segment compared to other key market players. This segment is extremely competitive and your Company 
continues to implore for the establishment of a level playing field for all market players. 

Medium Segment: Our share returned to growth with regular market investment behind Star through consis-
tently improved quality to meet consumer preference. Star Next – the only range offer in the segment from the 
house of Star also played an instrumental part in helping Star to this turnaround by enhancing overall image of 
the family among the target adult consumers. This growth helped the company to attain absolute leadership in 
the segment. 

High Segment: John Player Gold Leaf sales volume met expectations in 2013 despite price increases in June. 
Consistent investment and consumer-relevant innovation behind this brand have helped to reinforce its strong 
brand equity and to retain the leading brand status within this segment. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2013
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Premium Segment: Once again Benson & Hedges faced tough challenges in the market in the wake of steep 
price increases in 2012 and 2013 resulting in a volume decline in 2013. Nevertheless, the Company continues to 
focus on building the equity of Benson & Hedges and has made consumer  centric investments towards the end 
of the year to revive the Benson & Hedges volumes in the coming years.

Leaf Export Performance

Leaf export volume was affected due to the external turmoil 
in 2013 which impacted our ability to continue shipments. This 
was a major challenge given that Bangladesh Leaf had to 
compete strongly against neighboring countries, despite the 
10% export duty imposed on exported leaf from Bangladesh 
which does not exist in any other country. The recent decision 
of the US government to withdraw GSP facility may also 
aggravate the situation further as the Company exports 
around 3.5 million KGs of tobacco to different buyers in the 
USA. 

Financial Performance

The Company grew its gross turnover to BDT 10,958 crores, up by BDT 1,941 crores from the previous year. This 
increase was driven by volume growth and tax-led price increases. Profit after tax improved by 25% from BDT 
394 crores last year to BDT 492 crores in 2013.  The higher profit after tax reflects higher volumes, better brand 
mix and increased prices, as well as cost savings and productivity initiatives driven across the Company. There 
is no significant variance between the quarterly and the annual financial performance of your Company for the 
year 2013. Furthermore, there is no extra-ordinary gain or loss in 2013. The notes to the annual financial 
statements explain the variations against the previous year. 

Contribution to National  Exchequer

British American Tobacco Bangladesh continues to 
contribute 2/3rd of the total tax collections from the 
cigarette industry. In 2013, the Company contributed BDT 
8,436 crores as supplementary duty; value added tax and 
other levies. This represents an increase of BDT 1,738 
crores.  The Company will continue to support 
Government proposals that establish a sustainable level of 
tax contribution to the National Exchequer while ensuring 
a  sustainable growth for the industry and promoting a 
level playing field among market players. Since this is a 
matured industry, it must not be stretched without 
considering its market dynamics and its ability to absorb 
price increases.       

In the National Budget for 2013-2014, the Corporate Tax rate for a cigarette manufacturer listed in Stock 
Exchange was increased again from 35% to 42.5% after an increase two years ago. The Company acknowledges 
the Government’s revenue growth targets and the industry has been working with the National Board of 
Revenue (NBR) over the years to ensure sustainable revenue growth from the cigarette industry in the form of 
indirect tax. However, the Company strongly feels that by targeting the corporate tax structure of listed 
cigarette manufacturer, it significantly impacts the shareholders’ return (which includes the Government of 
Bangladesh and local shareholders) and takes away the urge and interest of other tobacco companies to be 
listed in both stock exchanges. BAT Bangladesh is the only public listed cigarette manufacturing company 
whereas competitors are operating as non-listed private limited companies. The Company firmly hopes that the 
Government will reinstate  investment-friendly corporate tax rate structures when considering the upcoming 
National Budget. 

PRODUCTIVITY

In 2013, our supply chain was stretched to deliver the highest ever increase in production volume of 18% 
compared to last year while ensuring 100% On-Time-In-Full delivery. Manufacturing capacity was increased 
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significantly with heavy investments in the right technologies to serve the future market. At the same time 
productivity improvement initiatives continued as outlined in our supply chain strategy. The enhanced Green 
Leaf Threshing Plant (GLTP) delivered desired results in leaf processing performance in terms of cost, quality 
and yields. The supply chain teams also drove improvements in efficiency, quality and waste reduction whilst 
supporting the innovations within the marketing strategy. Environmental, Health and Safety (EH&S) standards 
were enhanced across all sites. We also embarked on a number of change management initiatives that  
promoted enhanced technical skills in the factory which will bring productivity gains in the coming years. 

Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins

Our supply chain faced serious challenges in the wake of the volatility in the external environment. Normal 
logistics operations including transportation and warehousing was severely impacted. However, we activated 
our contingency plans which ensured that our ability to manufacture and supply cigarettes to the market would 
not be compromised.  These contingency plans increased the costs of production and sales resulting in an 
upward pressure on our cost base. However, your Company was able to mitigate this through delivering a 
number of initiatives that resulted in reduced cost of goods sold per unit in 2013. This contributed to the 
improvement of the profit margin over the year. 

Furthermore, your Company continued its company-wide smart cost management programme and analyzed all 
opportunities to reduce costs. This programme has helped to optimize the operating expenses of the Company 
and focused resources on areas that were required to fuel growth and sustainability. As a result of all these 
efforts, the Company’s operating margin has improved from 24% in 2012 to 29% in 2013. 

SUSTAINABILITY

Your Company believes that the business has a key role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary 
sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social progress in ways that will build 
value for all our stakeholders. The Standards of Business Conduct set out what is required of each employee in 
terms of responsible corporate behavior and personal integrity. The Company is conducting its activities in line 
with the amended Smoking and Tobacco Products Usage (Control) Act, 2013.

The flagship activity of the Company, the Afforestation Programme, began in 1980.  So far, your Company has 
distributed approximately 7.95 crores saplings in and around our operational areas, including 40 lakh saplings in 
2013.  This relentless effort makes the programme one of the largest private sector driven afforestation 
programmes in the country. The Company is committed to continue this programme in the wake of a global and 
national drive as well as to support the Government initiative to combat the adverse effects of climate change. 
In 2013, the Company received a number of awards and accolades for the afforestation drive across the country. 

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity of safe drinking water due to arsenic contamination. A community 
project by British American Tobacco Bangladesh, the initiative provides 205,000 liters of safe drinking water 
free from arsenic and other impurities to arsenic-prone rural communities every day. This initiative is aligned 
with the Government’s aim to achieve the Millennium Development Goals of securing sustainable access to safe 
drinking water. So far, 41 water filtration plants have been installed, using government approved community 
based water filtration technology in Jhenaidah, Chuadanga, Meherpur, Kushtia, Tangail, Manikganj, Satkhira, 
Gopalganj, Lalmonirhat, Kurigram, Jamalpur, Madaripur and Natore ensuring pure drinking water for 
approximately 102,500 people every day. 

To complement Bangladesh Government’s efforts in the renewable energy sector, British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh has undertaken a project to install solar home systems in village homes that are in remote, off-grid 
areas of Chittagong Hill Tracts districts of the country. The solar home system initiative of British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh has already installed 466 units of solar home systems in 2013 which totals to 1,366 units in 
four remote villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari districts, giving more than 8,000 rural people their first 
access to electricity at home and the use of mobile phones.

BAT Bangladesh has had a fruitful partnership with farmers across the country through its various programmes 
dedicated to improving agricultural practices and standards. In 2013 an art camp was jointly organised by BAT 
Bangladesh and Bengal Gallery of Fine Arts where 6 prominent artists of Bangladesh visited and interacted with 
the farmers of Bandarban and Cox’s Bazar. The artists painted 12 paintings that reflected the happiness, freedom 
and revolutionary progress of the farmers’ lives. The beautiful artworks were subsequently featured in annual 
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corporate greetings of the Company. 

The Company’s supply chain starts with the hard work of around 32,400 registered farmers within the village 
community. BATB’s contract farming model has been a proven and renowned model for years. The Company 
ensures that the sources are sustainable and responsible by proactively setting high standards for agricultural 
practices. The initiatives include green manuring with Dhaincha (Sesbania Aculeata) - an effective approach to 
enrich soil health and fertility. Dhaincha is also promoted as alternate fuel in leaf growing areas. In 2013, the 
Company has distributed more than 232 tons of free Dhaincha seeds amongst farmers, which ensured 75% 
coverage of our registered farmers. Moreover, Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Clubs have also been 
expanded in collaboration with the Department of Agricultural Extension to educate the farmers about the 
adoption of good agricultural practices. As a result of this continuous education programme farmers became 
more cautious about the use of chemicals as pesticide in farming. 

Improving soil fertility and conserving water are integral elements of good agricultural practices. The Company 
provides the know-how and bears full costs to install compost pits in the homesteads of our registered farmers. 
This significantly reduces dependence on the use of chemical fertilizers and also reduces the cost of production. 
The Company plans to establish 80 compost pits in leaf cultivation areas every year and it has established 200 
compost pits in 2013. As a water management programme, proper irrigation systems have been introduced 
which ensures that, only the required level of water is used and there is no wastage. 

The Company acknowledges its impact as well as dependence on biodiversity, through the business operations 
and use of eco-system services, such as forest products, soil and water. So far, 48 biodiversity corners have been 
established with the help of the registered farmers in order to make farming communities aware about the 
importance of different elements in nature and their contribution in the eco-system. The biodiversity corners 
are located in Kushtia, Meherpur, Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manikganj, Bandarban, Khagrachari and Cox’s 
Bazar districts.

The Company supports sensible tobacco regulations that balances the preferences of consumers with the 
interests of society and enables the business to continue to compete and prosper. All of the marketing activities 
are governed by Smoking and Tobacco Usage (Control) Act, 2005 and Amendment Act, 2013 and their 
subsequent rules along with the BAT Group’s own International Marketing Principles. A corroboration of the 
Tobacco Laws and International Marketing Principles combines the Company’s Marketing Communications 
Guideline. These principles embody the commitment to marketing Company products appropriately and only to 
adult smokers, as well as compliance to local laws and regulations.  The Tobacco control groups are however 
continuously agitating against the production and marketing of tobacco.   

The tobacco industry has an economic impact both in terms of revenue generation for the Government and 
employment generation by appointing 1,500 direct employees, and 50,000 indirect employees in the form of 
farmers, distributors and suppliers and over 1.3 million retailers. The Company therefore, seeks that the 
Government takes an inclusive and participative approach about tobacco regulations, so that the regulatory 
policies reflect the views of all relevant stakeholders and are practical and enforceable on ground realities.  

WINNING ORGANISATION

British American Tobacco Bangladesh is a company that is built on the development, growth and innovation of 
its people. Engagement of its people in the business and “a great place to work” culture enables the progressive 
growth of both the company and its people. 2013 has been a year where our people have demonstrated the 
ability to deliver outstanding results in a dynamic, ever changing market amidst one of the most challenging 
external environments. This was made possible due to the significant investment that went into human resource 
development in 2013, which harnesses our goal of making British American Tobacco Bangladesh “a great place 
to work”.

A more focused and rigorous effort was put into the learning and development of the employees across all 
levels, in line with our vision to develop our leaders. Over 140 managers went through various training 
programmes throughout the year in a continuous effort to improve our training coverage. With the view to 
provide development and career opportunities to our people, 93 employees were transferred to various roles 
with another 73 being promoted, while 7 managers were sent during 2013 on international assignments to 
various countries such as Hong Kong, Japan, Malaysia, UK, Srilanka, Pakistan and Vietnam.
In line with the Company’s confidence of drawing strength from diversity, we have continued to recruit the best 
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in-class management talent in Management Trainees as well as some of the best performing mid-career recruits. 
In total, 121 new faces were added to our talent roster in order to boost the overall performance of the company 
and meet the ever increasing talent needs. The Company’s flagship talent promoting platform, “Battle of Minds”, 
completed a decade of creating leaders by venturing into its 10th year in 2013. With newer business elements, 
social media usage and student ambassadors, Battle of Minds 2013 was bigger, better and more challenging than 
ever before. Over 2400 students participated this year, with the Company adamant on leaving its footprint in 
the nation-building process today through its flagship initiative.

The Company's aim towards delivering a highly engaged workforce was further enforced by the level of 
initiatives taken to bring its people together in various company events. The Company organized events such as 
Family Day and Kid's Carnival to continue the effort in giving its people the opportunities to socialize through 
their families. In an effort to successfully implement our SAP system upgradation, all the management 
executives of the organization from various departments engaged and interacted with each other on a large 
scale. All these ensured that all the employees were motivated and energized to overcome the significant 
challenges that came our way in 2013 and meet the objectives of the Company as one integrated team and 
delivered results for the shareholders.
 
KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The key operating and financial information for the year 2013 along with the preceding four years are presented 
below:
Financial & Operational Performance Summary 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Operational Results (financials in million BDT)     
Gross Turnover  109,582   90,174   75,357   65,987   55,075 
Net Turnover  31,225   27,471   23,269   20,946   17,576 
Profit before Tax  9,104   6,501   4,914   4,093   2,794 
Profit after Tax  4,924   3,942   2,551   2,879   2,069 
Share Capital  600   600   600   600   600 
EPS in BDT  81.14   65.69   42.51   47.98   34.48 
Leaf Export Volume (million Kg)  9,903   11,792   12,045   13,146   10,262 
No of Employees  1,251   1,119   1,146   1,186   850 
Total Contribution to National Exchequer in million BDT  84,357   66,983   55,913   47,678   39,613 
Supplementary Duty & VAT as % of Turnover 72% 70% 69% 68% 68%

DIVIDEND

An interim cash dividend of 100% i.e. Tk. 10 (ten) per share amounting to Tk 600,000,000 was paid in November 
2013. In view of the performance of the Company and the current cash position, the Board now recommends a 
final cash Dividend of BDT 52 per share i.e. amounting to BDT 3,120,000,000 for the year 2013, to be approved 
in the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company. Inclusive of the interim dividend BDT 10 which has been paid 
already, the total Cash Dividend of the Company, accordingly, would stand at BDT 62 per share for the year 
2013.

After approval of the above mentioned proposed final dividend, the summary of the total dividend paid in 2013 
is represented below:

Amount in million BDT

      2013 2012
Profit after Tax    4,924 3,942
Interim Cash Dividend @ 100% i.e. Tk 10 per share for 2013    600 600
Final Cash Dividend @ 400% i.e. Tk 40 per share for 2013    3,120 2,400
Retained Profit for Reinvestment    1,204 942

BOARD SIZE
 
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 8 (eight) Directors, with Mr. Golam Mainuddin as Chairman 
of the Board. The other Directors are Mr. Shehzad Munim, Mr. Kamrul Hasan, Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Jalal 
Ahmed, Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah, Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman and Mr. Anthony Yong. The 2 (two) 
Independent Directors in the Board are Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui and Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah. Out of 
eight Directors, six are non-executive individuals who are also senior officials of the Bangladesh Government.   
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DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Jalal Ahmed shall retire from the Board by rotation at the 41st Annual General Meeting. 
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting.   

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. However, being eligible, he is proposed for 
re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)  Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company which is mentioned at the Compliance Report enclosed 
herewith. The committee comprises of Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the 
Committee. All the members of the Committee are non-executives Directors. The Audit Committee met 4 
(four) times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee. Mr. Azizur 
Rahman, Company Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The key terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee during the year were as follows:   

 1. Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year 
2013.

 2. Considered and recommended to the Board about appointment and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors of the Company.

 3. Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal control system.
 4. Reviewed and recommended to the Board about the Internal Audit Plan and monitored the progress 

about the same.
 5. Discussed the Internal Audit Report and findings therein with the auditors, members of Management and 

monitored the status of implementation of recommendations therein.
 6. Reviewed and considered the report on matters as required under the BSEC Guidelines.
 7. Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.  

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of three Directors among whom a 
Non-Executive Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure long term 
sustainability of Company aspirations, management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that secures 
business stability and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders 
and to establish the Company’s commitment to the nation. The CSR committee met 2 (two) times in 2013.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the Company has a competent risk management process to 
ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes 
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews these 
risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to assess that the controls in place are 
adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 

framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

PROJECT 'TaO'

'TaO' (Target Operating Model AND OneSap) is a global project which is being implemented across all the 
markets in BAT group. TaO is all about improving and standardising key business in areas of Supply Chain, 
Finance and Marketing with an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. 
BAT Bangladesh successfully implemented the project on 1 January 2014 after going through yearlong planning 
and preparation activities. A cross-functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to 
plan this project which has been successfully implemented in the Company. TaO will bring in greater process 
control, better insights through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among 
the functions which will further enable the Company to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda as well as 
further strengthen internal control systems. 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION  AS TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements, the Directors also report that: 

 a) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view of 
Company’s state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

 b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.
 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial statements and 

Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent.
 d) The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and 

Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
 e) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 

believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

 f) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 
believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

 g) The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

CONCERN REGARDING RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY NBR 

On November 2013, LTU-VAT authority of NBR claimed BDT 1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from the 
Company on the sale of Company brands Bristol and Pilot. The Company filed two writ petitions before the High 
Court challenging retrospective Tax demand by National Board Revenue (NBR). Accordingly, the High Court has 
issued Stay Order along with a Rule upon the National Board Revenue. However, the VAT Authorities have 
appealed against the stay orders and the matter is pending for CP hearing before the Appellate Division.

The Company always obtained price approvals of Bristol and Pilot from LTU authority on the prescribed price 
declaration form every year. As such it is totally unjustified and against the norms of natural justice to put the 
blame of wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim on the Company and to ask to pay the amount 
within 10 days. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of the country 
at the approved price of LTU-VAT and duly paid taxes in the Government Exchequer as per the rate of taxes in 
each respective year. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to identify and realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not shown any evidence to justify their claim that the Company had collected price 
differential of Low and Medium segments from the customers. As such, the Company strongly believes that the 
demand to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness.      

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES: 

  The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, 
and is prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial risk management has been disclosed 
under note 35 of the financial statements as per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS).

  All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was the 
principle of "Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and transactions have been disclosed 
under note 31 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

  The Company’s IPO was made in the 1960’s. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
  From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 

financial statements of the Company.
  As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented 

as ‘extraordinary gain or loss’ in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has 
been recognized in the financial statements. 

  No significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2013.

  During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of Tk. 38,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. 
The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

  All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been 
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

  The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
  The Company has declared both interim and final dividends for the year 2013.
  During 2013, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 

respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2013 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

As part of its corporate policy, BAT Bangladesh always strives to maximize its shareholders’ value and wealth. In 
doing so, the Company has long been committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner 
which is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honesty, reliability, transparency and 
accountability. The characteristic elements that define effective corporate governance in the Company are 
outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is appended in the Annual Report. The statement 
further expands on the broad practices in BAT Bangladesh. All the employees are expected to live up to these 
principles and guidance which are communicated regularly throughout the Company in the form of various 
training and awareness programmes.  

We have the pleasure to confirm that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the necessary guidelines 
under BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The compliance 
report along with the necessary remarks/disclosures is appended in this Annual Report of the Company for the 
year 2013. Further, a Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. 
Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited, M/S. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. They have 
expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2014 at the same fees. Based on suggestions of the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2014 and continuation upto the next AGM at a fee of Tk. 
8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the Shareholders to approve the appointment.  

BOARD COMMITMENT 

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering commitment to the country and 
this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness reflects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh 
across the country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. 
BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and 
other stakeholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Jalal Ahmed shall retire from the Board by rotation at the 41st Annual General Meeting. 
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting.   

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. However, being eligible, he is proposed for 
re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)  Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company which is mentioned at the Compliance Report enclosed 
herewith. The committee comprises of Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the 
Committee. All the members of the Committee are non-executives Directors. The Audit Committee met 4 
(four) times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee. Mr. Azizur 
Rahman, Company Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The key terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee during the year were as follows:   

 1. Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year 
2013.

 2. Considered and recommended to the Board about appointment and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors of the Company.

 3. Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal control system.
 4. Reviewed and recommended to the Board about the Internal Audit Plan and monitored the progress 

about the same.
 5. Discussed the Internal Audit Report and findings therein with the auditors, members of Management and 

monitored the status of implementation of recommendations therein.
 6. Reviewed and considered the report on matters as required under the BSEC Guidelines.
 7. Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.  

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of three Directors among whom a 
Non-Executive Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure long term 
sustainability of Company aspirations, management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that secures 
business stability and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders 
and to establish the Company’s commitment to the nation. The CSR committee met 2 (two) times in 2013.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the Company has a competent risk management process to 
ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes 
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews these 
risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to assess that the controls in place are 
adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 

framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

PROJECT 'TaO'

'TaO' (Target Operating Model AND OneSap) is a global project which is being implemented across all the 
markets in BAT group. TaO is all about improving and standardising key business in areas of Supply Chain, 
Finance and Marketing with an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. 
BAT Bangladesh successfully implemented the project on 1 January 2014 after going through yearlong planning 
and preparation activities. A cross-functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to 
plan this project which has been successfully implemented in the Company. TaO will bring in greater process 
control, better insights through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among 
the functions which will further enable the Company to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda as well as 
further strengthen internal control systems. 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION  AS TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements, the Directors also report that: 

 a) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view of 
Company’s state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

 b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.
 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial statements and 

Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent.
 d) The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and 

Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
 e) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 

believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

 f) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 
believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

 g) The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

CONCERN REGARDING RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY NBR 

On November 2013, LTU-VAT authority of NBR claimed BDT 1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from the 
Company on the sale of Company brands Bristol and Pilot. The Company filed two writ petitions before the High 
Court challenging retrospective Tax demand by National Board Revenue (NBR). Accordingly, the High Court has 
issued Stay Order along with a Rule upon the National Board Revenue. However, the VAT Authorities have 
appealed against the stay orders and the matter is pending for CP hearing before the Appellate Division.

The Company always obtained price approvals of Bristol and Pilot from LTU authority on the prescribed price 
declaration form every year. As such it is totally unjustified and against the norms of natural justice to put the 
blame of wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim on the Company and to ask to pay the amount 
within 10 days. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of the country 
at the approved price of LTU-VAT and duly paid taxes in the Government Exchequer as per the rate of taxes in 
each respective year. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to identify and realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not shown any evidence to justify their claim that the Company had collected price 
differential of Low and Medium segments from the customers. As such, the Company strongly believes that the 
demand to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness.      

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES: 

  The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, 
and is prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial risk management has been disclosed 
under note 35 of the financial statements as per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS).

  All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was the 
principle of "Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and transactions have been disclosed 
under note 31 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

  The Company’s IPO was made in the 1960’s. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
  From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 

financial statements of the Company.
  As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented 

as ‘extraordinary gain or loss’ in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has 
been recognized in the financial statements. 

  No significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2013.

  During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of Tk. 38,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. 
The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

  All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been 
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

  The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
  The Company has declared both interim and final dividends for the year 2013.
  During 2013, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 

respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2013 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

As part of its corporate policy, BAT Bangladesh always strives to maximize its shareholders’ value and wealth. In 
doing so, the Company has long been committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner 
which is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honesty, reliability, transparency and 
accountability. The characteristic elements that define effective corporate governance in the Company are 
outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is appended in the Annual Report. The statement 
further expands on the broad practices in BAT Bangladesh. All the employees are expected to live up to these 
principles and guidance which are communicated regularly throughout the Company in the form of various 
training and awareness programmes.  

We have the pleasure to confirm that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the necessary guidelines 
under BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The compliance 
report along with the necessary remarks/disclosures is appended in this Annual Report of the Company for the 
year 2013. Further, a Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. 
Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited, M/S. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. They have 
expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2014 at the same fees. Based on suggestions of the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2014 and continuation upto the next AGM at a fee of Tk. 
8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the Shareholders to approve the appointment.  

BOARD COMMITMENT 

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering commitment to the country and 
this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness reflects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh 
across the country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. 
BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and 
other stakeholders of the Company.
       

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to extend its foremost regards and appreciation to the valued Shareholders 
and other Stakeholders of the company for their continued support and guidance to the company that led to 
many achievements. The Board also recognises that its journey to attainments during the year was possible 
because of the cooperation, positive support, and guidance that it had received from  the Government of 
Bangladesh, particularly the National Board of Revenue (NBR), Board of Investment (BOI), Registrar of Joint Stock 
Companies and Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Central Depository 
Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE), 
BATB’s bankers, insurers & financial institutions, vendors, the Press and Media, business partners and all of our 
employees. Accordingly, the Board offers its utmost gratitude to them. The Board would also like to thank each 
and every customer for their continued support and for making Company brands their preferred choices. 

We also extend to the Management and Employees our warmest greetings and felicitation for being the 
essential part of BAT Bangladesh during the year. It was your unrelenting commitment, dedication and diligence 
throughout the year that led to the Company achieving the awards and accolades in 2013.   

We are proud of you all and look forward to your continued support as we march ahead to take BAT Bangladesh 
further forward as a leading player within the Bangladesh business community.   

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Shehzad Munim           Anthony Yong   
Managing Director         Finance Director
26 February 2014
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DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Jalal Ahmed shall retire from the Board by rotation at the 41st Annual General Meeting. 
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting.   

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. However, being eligible, he is proposed for 
re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)  Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company which is mentioned at the Compliance Report enclosed 
herewith. The committee comprises of Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the 
Committee. All the members of the Committee are non-executives Directors. The Audit Committee met 4 
(four) times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee. Mr. Azizur 
Rahman, Company Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The key terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee during the year were as follows:   

 1. Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year 
2013.

 2. Considered and recommended to the Board about appointment and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors of the Company.

 3. Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal control system.
 4. Reviewed and recommended to the Board about the Internal Audit Plan and monitored the progress 

about the same.
 5. Discussed the Internal Audit Report and findings therein with the auditors, members of Management and 

monitored the status of implementation of recommendations therein.
 6. Reviewed and considered the report on matters as required under the BSEC Guidelines.
 7. Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.  

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of three Directors among whom a 
Non-Executive Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure long term 
sustainability of Company aspirations, management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that secures 
business stability and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders 
and to establish the Company’s commitment to the nation. The CSR committee met 2 (two) times in 2013.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the Company has a competent risk management process to 
ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes 
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews these 
risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to assess that the controls in place are 
adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 

framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

PROJECT 'TaO'

'TaO' (Target Operating Model AND OneSap) is a global project which is being implemented across all the 
markets in BAT group. TaO is all about improving and standardising key business in areas of Supply Chain, 
Finance and Marketing with an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. 
BAT Bangladesh successfully implemented the project on 1 January 2014 after going through yearlong planning 
and preparation activities. A cross-functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to 
plan this project which has been successfully implemented in the Company. TaO will bring in greater process 
control, better insights through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among 
the functions which will further enable the Company to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda as well as 
further strengthen internal control systems. 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION  AS TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements, the Directors also report that: 

 a) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view of 
Company’s state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

 b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.
 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial statements and 

Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent.
 d) The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and 

Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
 e) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 

believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

 f) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 
believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

 g) The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

CONCERN REGARDING RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY NBR 

On November 2013, LTU-VAT authority of NBR claimed BDT 1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from the 
Company on the sale of Company brands Bristol and Pilot. The Company filed two writ petitions before the High 
Court challenging retrospective Tax demand by National Board Revenue (NBR). Accordingly, the High Court has 
issued Stay Order along with a Rule upon the National Board Revenue. However, the VAT Authorities have 
appealed against the stay orders and the matter is pending for CP hearing before the Appellate Division.

The Company always obtained price approvals of Bristol and Pilot from LTU authority on the prescribed price 
declaration form every year. As such it is totally unjustified and against the norms of natural justice to put the 
blame of wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim on the Company and to ask to pay the amount 
within 10 days. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of the country 
at the approved price of LTU-VAT and duly paid taxes in the Government Exchequer as per the rate of taxes in 
each respective year. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to identify and realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not shown any evidence to justify their claim that the Company had collected price 
differential of Low and Medium segments from the customers. As such, the Company strongly believes that the 
demand to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness.      

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES: 

  The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, 
and is prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial risk management has been disclosed 
under note 35 of the financial statements as per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS).

  All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was the 
principle of "Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and transactions have been disclosed 
under note 31 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

  The Company’s IPO was made in the 1960’s. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
  From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 

financial statements of the Company.
  As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented 

as ‘extraordinary gain or loss’ in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has 
been recognized in the financial statements. 

  No significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2013.

  During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of Tk. 38,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. 
The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

  All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been 
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

  The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
  The Company has declared both interim and final dividends for the year 2013.
  During 2013, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 

respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2013 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

As part of its corporate policy, BAT Bangladesh always strives to maximize its shareholders’ value and wealth. In 
doing so, the Company has long been committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner 
which is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honesty, reliability, transparency and 
accountability. The characteristic elements that define effective corporate governance in the Company are 
outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is appended in the Annual Report. The statement 
further expands on the broad practices in BAT Bangladesh. All the employees are expected to live up to these 
principles and guidance which are communicated regularly throughout the Company in the form of various 
training and awareness programmes.  

We have the pleasure to confirm that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the necessary guidelines 
under BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The compliance 
report along with the necessary remarks/disclosures is appended in this Annual Report of the Company for the 
year 2013. Further, a Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. 
Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited, M/S. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. They have 
expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2014 at the same fees. Based on suggestions of the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2014 and continuation upto the next AGM at a fee of Tk. 
8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the Shareholders to approve the appointment.  

BOARD COMMITMENT 

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering commitment to the country and 
this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness reflects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh 
across the country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. 
BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and 
other stakeholders of the Company.
       

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to extend its foremost regards and appreciation to the valued Shareholders 
and other Stakeholders of the company for their continued support and guidance to the company that led to 
many achievements. The Board also recognises that its journey to attainments during the year was possible 
because of the cooperation, positive support, and guidance that it had received from  the Government of 
Bangladesh, particularly the National Board of Revenue (NBR), Board of Investment (BOI), Registrar of Joint Stock 
Companies and Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Central Depository 
Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE), 
BATB’s bankers, insurers & financial institutions, vendors, the Press and Media, business partners and all of our 
employees. Accordingly, the Board offers its utmost gratitude to them. The Board would also like to thank each 
and every customer for their continued support and for making Company brands their preferred choices. 

We also extend to the Management and Employees our warmest greetings and felicitation for being the 
essential part of BAT Bangladesh during the year. It was your unrelenting commitment, dedication and diligence 
throughout the year that led to the Company achieving the awards and accolades in 2013.   

We are proud of you all and look forward to your continued support as we march ahead to take BAT Bangladesh 
further forward as a leading player within the Bangladesh business community.   

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Shehzad Munim           Anthony Yong   
Managing Director         Finance Director
26 February 2014
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DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Jalal Ahmed shall retire from the Board by rotation at the 41st Annual General Meeting. 
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting.   

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. However, being eligible, he is proposed for 
re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)  Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company which is mentioned at the Compliance Report enclosed 
herewith. The committee comprises of Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the 
Committee. All the members of the Committee are non-executives Directors. The Audit Committee met 4 
(four) times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee. Mr. Azizur 
Rahman, Company Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The key terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee during the year were as follows:   

 1. Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year 
2013.

 2. Considered and recommended to the Board about appointment and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors of the Company.

 3. Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal control system.
 4. Reviewed and recommended to the Board about the Internal Audit Plan and monitored the progress 

about the same.
 5. Discussed the Internal Audit Report and findings therein with the auditors, members of Management and 

monitored the status of implementation of recommendations therein.
 6. Reviewed and considered the report on matters as required under the BSEC Guidelines.
 7. Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.  

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of three Directors among whom a 
Non-Executive Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure long term 
sustainability of Company aspirations, management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that secures 
business stability and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders 
and to establish the Company’s commitment to the nation. The CSR committee met 2 (two) times in 2013.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the Company has a competent risk management process to 
ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes 
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews these 
risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to assess that the controls in place are 
adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 

framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

PROJECT 'TaO'

'TaO' (Target Operating Model AND OneSap) is a global project which is being implemented across all the 
markets in BAT group. TaO is all about improving and standardising key business in areas of Supply Chain, 
Finance and Marketing with an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. 
BAT Bangladesh successfully implemented the project on 1 January 2014 after going through yearlong planning 
and preparation activities. A cross-functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to 
plan this project which has been successfully implemented in the Company. TaO will bring in greater process 
control, better insights through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among 
the functions which will further enable the Company to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda as well as 
further strengthen internal control systems. 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION  AS TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements, the Directors also report that: 

 a) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view of 
Company’s state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

 b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.
 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial statements and 

Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent.
 d) The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and 

Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
 e) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 

believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

 f) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 
believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

 g) The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

CONCERN REGARDING RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY NBR 

On November 2013, LTU-VAT authority of NBR claimed BDT 1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from the 
Company on the sale of Company brands Bristol and Pilot. The Company filed two writ petitions before the High 
Court challenging retrospective Tax demand by National Board Revenue (NBR). Accordingly, the High Court has 
issued Stay Order along with a Rule upon the National Board Revenue. However, the VAT Authorities have 
appealed against the stay orders and the matter is pending for CP hearing before the Appellate Division.

The Company always obtained price approvals of Bristol and Pilot from LTU authority on the prescribed price 
declaration form every year. As such it is totally unjustified and against the norms of natural justice to put the 
blame of wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim on the Company and to ask to pay the amount 
within 10 days. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of the country 
at the approved price of LTU-VAT and duly paid taxes in the Government Exchequer as per the rate of taxes in 
each respective year. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to identify and realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not shown any evidence to justify their claim that the Company had collected price 
differential of Low and Medium segments from the customers. As such, the Company strongly believes that the 
demand to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness.      

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES: 

  The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, 
and is prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial risk management has been disclosed 
under note 35 of the financial statements as per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS).

  All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was the 
principle of "Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and transactions have been disclosed 
under note 31 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

  The Company’s IPO was made in the 1960’s. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
  From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 

financial statements of the Company.
  As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented 

as ‘extraordinary gain or loss’ in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has 
been recognized in the financial statements. 

  No significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2013.

  During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of Tk. 38,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. 
The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

  All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been 
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

  The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
  The Company has declared both interim and final dividends for the year 2013.
  During 2013, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 

respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2013 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

As part of its corporate policy, BAT Bangladesh always strives to maximize its shareholders’ value and wealth. In 
doing so, the Company has long been committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner 
which is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honesty, reliability, transparency and 
accountability. The characteristic elements that define effective corporate governance in the Company are 
outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is appended in the Annual Report. The statement 
further expands on the broad practices in BAT Bangladesh. All the employees are expected to live up to these 
principles and guidance which are communicated regularly throughout the Company in the form of various 
training and awareness programmes.  

We have the pleasure to confirm that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the necessary guidelines 
under BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The compliance 
report along with the necessary remarks/disclosures is appended in this Annual Report of the Company for the 
year 2013. Further, a Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. 
Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited, M/S. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. They have 
expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2014 at the same fees. Based on suggestions of the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2014 and continuation upto the next AGM at a fee of Tk. 
8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the Shareholders to approve the appointment.  

BOARD COMMITMENT 

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering commitment to the country and 
this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness reflects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh 
across the country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. 
BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and 
other stakeholders of the Company.
       

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to extend its foremost regards and appreciation to the valued Shareholders 
and other Stakeholders of the company for their continued support and guidance to the company that led to 
many achievements. The Board also recognises that its journey to attainments during the year was possible 
because of the cooperation, positive support, and guidance that it had received from  the Government of 
Bangladesh, particularly the National Board of Revenue (NBR), Board of Investment (BOI), Registrar of Joint Stock 
Companies and Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Central Depository 
Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE), 
BATB’s bankers, insurers & financial institutions, vendors, the Press and Media, business partners and all of our 
employees. Accordingly, the Board offers its utmost gratitude to them. The Board would also like to thank each 
and every customer for their continued support and for making Company brands their preferred choices. 

We also extend to the Management and Employees our warmest greetings and felicitation for being the 
essential part of BAT Bangladesh during the year. It was your unrelenting commitment, dedication and diligence 
throughout the year that led to the Company achieving the awards and accolades in 2013.   

We are proud of you all and look forward to your continued support as we march ahead to take BAT Bangladesh 
further forward as a leading player within the Bangladesh business community.   

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Shehzad Munim           Anthony Yong   
Managing Director         Finance Director
26 February 2014



BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 55

DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Jalal Ahmed shall retire from the Board by rotation at the 41st Annual General Meeting. 
All the retiring Directors, being eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting.   

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. However, being eligible, he is proposed for 
re-election at the 41st Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General 
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)  Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee for the Company which is mentioned at the Compliance Report enclosed 
herewith. The committee comprises of Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman, of whom Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui is an Independent Director and also the Chairman of the 
Committee. All the members of the Committee are non-executives Directors. The Audit Committee met 4 
(four) times during the year 2013. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee. Mr. Azizur 
Rahman, Company Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The key terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee during the year were as follows:   

 1. Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year 
2013.

 2. Considered and recommended to the Board about appointment and remuneration of the statutory 
auditors of the Company.

 3. Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal control system.
 4. Reviewed and recommended to the Board about the Internal Audit Plan and monitored the progress 

about the same.
 5. Discussed the Internal Audit Report and findings therein with the auditors, members of Management and 

monitored the status of implementation of recommendations therein.
 6. Reviewed and considered the report on matters as required under the BSEC Guidelines.
 7. Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.  

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the 
members of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This 
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2013, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include 
the Managing Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of three Directors among whom a 
Non-Executive Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to ensure long term 
sustainability of Company aspirations, management of the Company’s CSR initiatives in a way that secures 
business stability and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the Company among the stakeholders 
and to establish the Company’s commitment to the nation. The CSR committee met 2 (two) times in 2013.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the Company has a competent risk management process to 
ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes 
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews these 
risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to assess that the controls in place are 
adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 

framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

PROJECT 'TaO'

'TaO' (Target Operating Model AND OneSap) is a global project which is being implemented across all the 
markets in BAT group. TaO is all about improving and standardising key business in areas of Supply Chain, 
Finance and Marketing with an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. 
BAT Bangladesh successfully implemented the project on 1 January 2014 after going through yearlong planning 
and preparation activities. A cross-functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to 
plan this project which has been successfully implemented in the Company. TaO will bring in greater process 
control, better insights through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among 
the functions which will further enable the Company to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda as well as 
further strengthen internal control systems. 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION  AS TO  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements, the Directors also report that: 

 a) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view of 
Company’s state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

 b) Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.
 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial statements and 

Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent.
 d) The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and 

Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
 e) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 

believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

 f) The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and 
believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

 g) The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

CONCERN REGARDING RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY NBR 

On November 2013, LTU-VAT authority of NBR claimed BDT 1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from the 
Company on the sale of Company brands Bristol and Pilot. The Company filed two writ petitions before the High 
Court challenging retrospective Tax demand by National Board Revenue (NBR). Accordingly, the High Court has 
issued Stay Order along with a Rule upon the National Board Revenue. However, the VAT Authorities have 
appealed against the stay orders and the matter is pending for CP hearing before the Appellate Division.

The Company always obtained price approvals of Bristol and Pilot from LTU authority on the prescribed price 
declaration form every year. As such it is totally unjustified and against the norms of natural justice to put the 
blame of wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim on the Company and to ask to pay the amount 
within 10 days. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of the country 
at the approved price of LTU-VAT and duly paid taxes in the Government Exchequer as per the rate of taxes in 
each respective year. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to identify and realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not shown any evidence to justify their claim that the Company had collected price 
differential of Low and Medium segments from the customers. As such, the Company strongly believes that the 
demand to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness.      

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES: 

  The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, 
and is prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial risk management has been disclosed 
under note 35 of the financial statements as per Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS).

  All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was the 
principle of "Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and transactions have been disclosed 
under note 31 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

  The Company’s IPO was made in the 1960’s. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
  From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 

financial statements of the Company.
  As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented 

as ‘extraordinary gain or loss’ in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has 
been recognized in the financial statements. 

  No significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2013.

  During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of Tk. 38,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. 
The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

  All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been 
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

  The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
  The Company has declared both interim and final dividends for the year 2013.
  During 2013, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 

respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2013 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.
  The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

As part of its corporate policy, BAT Bangladesh always strives to maximize its shareholders’ value and wealth. In 
doing so, the Company has long been committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance framework is directed towards achieving its business objectives in a manner 
which is responsible and in accordance with its high standards of honesty, reliability, transparency and 
accountability. The characteristic elements that define effective corporate governance in the Company are 
outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement which is appended in the Annual Report. The statement 
further expands on the broad practices in BAT Bangladesh. All the employees are expected to live up to these 
principles and guidance which are communicated regularly throughout the Company in the form of various 
training and awareness programmes.  

We have the pleasure to confirm that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the necessary guidelines 
under BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The compliance 
report along with the necessary remarks/disclosures is appended in this Annual Report of the Company for the 
year 2013. Further, a Certificate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. 
Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory auditors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company 
Limited, M/S. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the 41st Annual General Meeting. They have 
expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2014 at the same fees. Based on suggestions of the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2014 and continuation upto the next AGM at a fee of Tk. 
8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the Shareholders to approve the appointment.  

BOARD COMMITMENT 

More than 100 years ago, the Company established itself on the land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh has displayed an unwavering commitment to the country and 
this commitment sets BAT Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. This uniqueness reflects through 
the passion and dedication of the 52,000 employees, farmers, distributors and suppliers of BAT Bangladesh 
across the country. BAT Bangladesh is listed on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1(one) amongst the listed companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the highest taxpayer. 
BAT Bangladesh has and will continue to value relationship with the Bangladesh government, shareholders and 
other stakeholders of the Company.
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Annexure -1

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Names of the shareholders along with their position of the shares are listed below: 

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER SHARES HELD % OF HOLDING

i) Parent/subsidiary/associate/related parties:
 Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd. 43,745,358 72.91%
ii) Directors/CEO/CS/CFO/Audit Head and   
 their spouses and minor children nil nil
iii) Executives (HOD) nil nil
iv) Shareholders, who hold 10% or more:
 Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 6,096,310 10.16%
v) Others Shareholders, who hold less than 10%
 • Sadharan Bima Corporation  1,694,047 2.82%
 • Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 221,866 0.37%
 • President People’s Republic of Bangladesh 386,824 0.64%
 • Sena Kallyan Sangstha 157,258 0.26%
 • Others 7,698,337 12.84%

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met nine times during the year 2013. The Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer (Finance Director) 
were present in the Board meetings. The attendance by each Director is mentioned below: 

Present Directors’ Name         No. of Attendance   
         

Mr. Golam Mainuddin  9 

Mr. Shehzad Munim  4 (Appointed as MD on 1 October 2013)

Mr. Arun Kaul  7 (Resigned as MD on 1 October 2013)  

Mr. K.H. Masud Siddiqui  9

Mr. Kamrul Hasan  9

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah  7

Mr. Jalal Ahmed  7

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman  9

Mr. Anthony Yong  9
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Annexure 2

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed
by BSEC’s Noti�cation on Corporate Governance

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

 Condition Title Status Remarks 
 No.

1.1 Board Size: The number of the Board members of the Company shall not be Complied The BATB Board is comprised of 9  
 less than 5 (�ve) and more than 20 (twenty)  Directors.

1.2 (i) "Independent  Directors: Complied There are two Independent Directors
 At least one �fth (1/5) of the total number of  Directors in the Company’s  in the BATB Board, namely: 
  Board shall be Independent  Directors"   Mr. K.H. Masud Siddique and
   Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah
1.2 (ii) a) Independent  Director does not hold any share or holds less than 1% shares  Complied The Independent  Directors have
 of the total paid-up capital   declared their compliances.

1.2 (ii) b) Independent  Director or his family members are not connected with the  Complied DO
 Company's any sponsor or  Director or Shareholder who holds 1% or more shares

1.2 (ii) c) Does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the Complied DO
 Company or its subsidiary/associated companies 

1.2 (ii) d) Independent  Director is not a member,  Director or o�cer of any Stock Exchange Complied DO

1.2 (ii) e) Independent  Director is not a shareholder,  Director or o�cer of any member of Complied DO
 Stock Exchange or an intermediary of the capital market 

1.2 (ii) f ) Independent  Director is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an Complied DO
  executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of any statutory audit �rm
 
1.2 (ii) g) Independent  Director shall not be an Independent  Director in more than Complied DO
 3 (three) listed companies

1.2 (ii) h) Independent  Director has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction Complied DO
 as a defaulter in payment of any loan to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution
 (NBFI)

1.2 (ii) i) Independent  Director has not been convicted for a criminal o�ence involving Complied DO
  moral turpitude

1.2 (iii) The Independent  Director(s) shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and  Complied/ The appointments are duly 
 approved by the shareholders in the AGM In Process approved at AGM

1.2 (iv) The Post of Independent  Director(s) can not remain vacant for more Complied No vacancy occurred
  than 90 (ninety) days
   The Company has laid down a 
   detailed code of conduct for all  
1.2 (v) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct of all Board members and annual Complied known as 'Standards of Business
 compliance of the code to be recorded  Conduct' which is applicable for 
   the Directors as well. Every Director 
   has signed a con�rmation as to its
    compliance. 
 1.2 (vi) The tenure of o�ce of an Independent  Director shall be for a period of 3 (three) Complied The Independent Directors (IDs) are 
  years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only  in their �rst term of o�ce.

1.3 (i) Independent  Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is Complied The quali�cation and background of
 able to ensure compliance with �nancial, regulatory and corporate laws and can   IDs justify their abilities as such.
 make meaningful contribution to business

1.3 (ii) "Independent  Director should be a Business Leader/Corporate Leader/Bureaucrat/ Complied Existing Independent  Directors are
 University Teacher with Economics or Business Studies or Law background/  bureaucrats with more than 12
 Professionals like Chartered Accountants, Cost & Management Accountants,  years of experience. 
 Chartered Secretaries. The Independent  Director must have at least 12 (twelve)
 years of corporate management/professional experiences"
  
1.3 (iii) In special cases the above quali�cations may be relaxed subject to prior approval  Not Applicable
 of the Commission
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1.4 Chairman and CEO shall be �lled by di�erent individuals. Chairman shall be elected Complied Chairman of the Board and CEO are 
 from among the Directors. The Board of Directors shall clearly de�ne respective  di�erent individuals and Chairman is
 roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO.   elected from amongst the Directors.
   The roles and responsibilities of the
   Chairman of the Board and the CEO
   are approved in Board meeting. 
1.5 The  Directors’ Report to Shareholders on:  

1.5 (i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry Complied The Directors' report complies with 
   the guideline. 

1.5 (ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance Complied The Directors' report complies with 
   the guideline

1.5 (iii) Risks and concerns Complied Discussed at 'System of Internal
   Control' and 'Other Regulatory 
   Disclosures'.

1.5 (iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Pro�t Margin and Net Pro�t Margin Complied The Directors' report complies with
    the guideline

1.5 (v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or loss Complied Discussed at 'Financial Performance' 
   and 'Other Regulatory Disclosures'.

1.5 (vi) Basis for related party transactions- a statement of all related party transactions Complied Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory 
  should be disclosed in the annual report  Disclosures'. A statement of all 
   related party transactions are 
   disclosed under Notes to the 
   Financial Statements no. 32 
1.5 (vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights issues and/or through Complied Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory 
  any others instruments  Disclosures'. 

1.5 (viii) An explanation if the �nancial results deteriorate after the Company goes for Initial Complied Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
  Public O�ering (IPO), Repeat Public O�ering (RPO), Rights O�er, Direct Listing, etc  Disclosures'. 

1.5 (ix) If signi�cant variance occurs between Quarterly Financial performance and  Complied Discussed at 'Financial Performance' 
 Annual Financial Statements the management shall explain about the variance  and 'Other Regulatory Disclosures'.
  on their Annual Report
1.5 (x) Remuneration to  Directors including Independent  Directors Complied Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
   Disclosures'. 
1.5 (xi) The �nancial statements prepared by the management of the issuer Company  Complied Stated under section "Directors' 
 present fairly its state of a�airs, the result of its operations, cash �ows and  Declaration as to the Financial
  changes in equity  Statements" in the Directors Report.

1.5 (xii) Proper books of account of the issuer Company have been maintained Complied                         - DO -
     1.5 (xiii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation  Complied                         - DO -
 of the �nancial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on
 reasonable and prudent judgment

1.5 (xiv) "International Accounting Standards (IAS)/Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/I Complied                         - DO -
 nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)/Bangladesh Financial Reporting
 Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation
 of the �nancial statements and any departure there-from has been adequately
 disclosed"

1.5 (xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been e�ectively Complied Stated under section 'The System of
 implemented and monitored  Internal Control ' in the Directors 
   Report.  
    1.5 (xvi) There are no signi�cant doubts upon the issuer Company's ability to continue as a  Complied Stated under section 'Going
 going concern. If the issuer Company is not considered to be a going concern,  Concern' in the Directors Report. 
 the fact along with reasons thereof should be disclosed

1.5 (xvii) Signi�cant deviations from the last year’s operating results of the issuer Company  Complied Discussed in the Directors Report 
 shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof should be explained  under section "Growth Pillar".

1.5 (xviii) Key operating and �nancial data of at least preceding 5 (�ve) years shall be Complied The Directors' Report complies with 
  summarized  the guideline.  
1.5 (xix) No Declaration of Dividend Complied Interim and �nal dividend declared. 
   The Directors' report complies with
    the guideline .
1.5 (xx) The number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each  Complied Stated in Annexure -1 of the 
  Director shall be disclosed  Directors' report which comply with 
   the guideline. 

 Condition Title Status Remarks 
 No.
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1.5(xxi) The pattern of shareholding shall be reported to disclose the aggregate number of  DO
 shares (along with name wise details where stated below) held by:-
1.5 (xxi) a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties Complied DO
 (name wise details);
1.5 (xxi) b) Directors, Chief Executive O�cer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial O�cer,  Complied DO
 Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children (name wise details)
1.5 (xxi) c) Executives Complied DO
1.5 (xxi) d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the Company  Complied DO
 (name wise details)
1.5 (xxii) "In case of the appointment/re-appointment of a  Director the Company shall Complied The Directors' Report complies with 
 disclose the following information to the shareholders:-  the Guidelines as stated at "Board
 a) a brief resume of the  Director;  Composition Section' in the Annual
 b) nature of his/her expertise in speci�c functional areas;  Report.
 c) names of companies in which the person also holds the  Directorship and the
 membership of committees of the Board" 
2.1 The Company shall appoint a Chief Financial O�cer(CFO), a Head of Internal Audit  The Company has appointed CFO,
 (internal Control and Compliance) and a Company Secretary (CS). The Board of Complied CS and Head of Internal Audit. There
 Directors should clearly de�ne respective roles, responsibilities and duties of CFO,  are clearly de�ned roles,
 the Head of Internal Audit and the CS.   responsibilities and duties which
   have been approved by Board as
   per requirement of SEC noti�cation. 

2.2 Attendance of CFO and the Company Secretary in the Board meeting Complied In practice
3 (i) The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of  Complied Already in place. The TOR is available.
 Directors
3 (ii) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of  Directors in ensuring that the  Complied In practice.  The TOR is available.
 �nancial statements re�ect true and fair view of the state of a�airs of the Company
 and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business  
3 (iii) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board of  Directors. The duties of  Complied In practice. The duties are clearly 
 the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing  written in the TOR of Audit 
   Committee 
3.1 (i) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members Complied The Audit Committee is composed of 
   3 (three) members.
3.1 (ii) The Board of  Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall Complied The members of the Audit 
  be Directors of the Company and shall include at least 1 (one) Independent  Committee are appointed by the
 Director  Board who are Directors and which
   includes  one Independent Director.
3.1 (iii) All members of the Audit Committee should be “�nancially literate” and at least 1   Complied Based on the academic quali�cations
 (one) member shall have accounting or related �nancial management experience:  and professional experiences, the 
 The term Financially literate means the ability to read and understand the �nancial  Board reviewed and considered  that
 statements i.e. Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Cash Flow Statementand a  all the existing members of the Audit 
 person will be considered to have accounting or related �nancial management  Committee are '�nancially literate' 
 expertise if (s)he possesses professional quali�cation or Accounting/�nance  and they have 'related �nancial
 graduate with at least 12 (twelve) yeasr of corporate management/professional  management experience' as per SEC
 experiences.   noti�cation.
3.1 (iv) Casual vacancy in Audit Committee shall be Filled by the Board Complied The Board appointed AC member in
   due time and they work as per the 
   TOR.
3.1 (v) The Company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee Complied In practice.
3.1 (vi) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at  Complied In practice.
 least 1 (one) Independent  Director
3.2 (i) The Board of  Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be  Complied Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui has been
 Chairman of the Audit Committee, who shall be an Independent  Director  appointed as Independent Director,
   who is also Chairman of AC.
3.2 (ii) "Chairman of the audit committee shall remain present in the Complied In practice.
 Annual General Meeting (AGM)" 
3.3 (i) "The Role of Audit Committee: Oversee the �nancial reporting process" Complied In practice.
3.3 (ii) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles Complied In practice.
3.3 (iii) Monitor Internal Control Risk management process Complied In practice.
3.3 (iv) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors Complied In practice.
3.3 (v) Review along with the management, the annual �nancial statements before  Complied In practice.
 submission to the Board for approval
3.3 (vi) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly �nancial  Complied In practice.
 statements before submission to the Board for approval                                

 Condition Title Status Remarks 
 No.
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3.3 (vii) Review the adequacy of internal audit function Complied In practice.
3.3 (viii) Review statement of signi�cant related party transactions submitted by the management Complied In practice.
3.3 (ix) Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Control weakness issued Complied In practice.
  by statutory auditors.
3.3 (x) When money is raised through Initial Public O�ering IPO)/Repeat Public O�ering  Not Applicable There was no IPO/RPO/Rights Issue 
 (RPO)/Rights Issue the Company shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the  in 2012 or in recent past. Stated in 
 uses/applications of funds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and  the Directors' Report under the 
 marketing expenses, working capital, etc), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their  section 'Other Rerolatory Disclosure'.
 quarterly declaration of �nancial results. Further, on an annual basis, the Company
 shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated
 in the o�er document/ prospectus
3.4.1 (i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board of  Directors Complied Audit Committee informs the Board 
   periodically through its minutes 
   which are placed at Board Meetings.
3.4.1 (ii) a) Report on con�icts of interests to the Board of  Directors Complied There was no reportable case of 
   con�ict of interest in 2012.
3.4.1 (ii) b) Will report any suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in  Complied There was no such case in the year.
 the internal control system to the Baord
3.4.1 (ii) c) Will report any suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws,  Complied DO
 rules and regulations to the Board
3.4.1 (ii) d) Will report any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of  Complied DO
  Directors immediately 
3.4.2 Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board of  None   DO
 Directors about anything which has material impact on the �nancial condition
 and results of operation and has discussed with the Board of Directors and the
 management that any recti�cation is necessary and if the Audit Committee
 �nds that such recti�cation has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee
 shall report such �nding to the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the
 Board of Directors for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from
 the date of �rst reporting to the Board of Directors, whichever is earlier. 
3.5 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: report on activities carried  Complied The Audit Committee report is 
 out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board of Directors  disclosed in the Annual Report and 
 under condition 3.4.1 (ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the Chairman  signed by the Chairman of the AC
 of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer Company
4 (i) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in appraisal or valuation Complied In practice
  services or fairness opinions
4 (ii) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in �nancial information systems  Complied In practice
 design and implementation
4 (iii) "Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in Book-keeping or other services Complied In practice
  related to the accounting records or �nancial statements"
4 (iv) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in Broker-dealer services Complied In practice
4 (v) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in Actuarial services Complied In practice
4 (vi) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in Internal audit services Complied In practice
4 (vii) Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in any other service that the Complied In practice
 Audit Committee determines
4 (viii) No partner or employees of the external audit �rms shall possess any share of the  Complied The audit �rm has declared as such 
 Company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment  that none of them holds any share in 
 of that Company  the Company. 
4 (ix) Non- engagement of Auditor in audit/certi�cation services on compliance of    Complied In practice
 corporate governance as required under clause (i) of condition no. 7
5 (i) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of  Directors of the holding  Not Applicable BATB does not have any subsidiary 
 Company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of  Directors of  Company
 the subsidiary Company
5 (ii) At least 1 (one) Independent  Director on the Board of  Directors of the holding  Not Applicable BATB does not have any subsidiary 
 Company shall be a  Director on the Board of  Directors of the subsidiary Company  Company
5 (iii) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary Company shall be placed for Not Applicable BATB does not have any subsidiary 
  review at the following Board meeting of the holding Company  Company
5 (iv) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding Company shall state  Not Applicable BATB does not have any subsidiary 
 that they have reviewed the a�airs of the subsidiary Company also  Company
5 (v) The Audit Committee of the holding Company shall also review the �nancial  Not Applicable BATB does not have any subsidiary 
 statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary Company  Company

 Condition Title Status Remarks 
 No.
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6 (i) a) The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that they have reveiwed the �nancial   Complied CEO and CFO certi�ed to the Board 
 statements and believe that these statements do not contain any materially  during �nalisation of Financial 
 untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might  Statement which is stated in the 
 untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might  'Directors declaration as to �nancial 
 be misleading  statements' in the Directors Report.       
6 (i) b) The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that they have reveiwed the �nancial  Complied CEO and CFO certi�ed to the Board 
 statements and believe that these statements together present a true and fair  during �nalisation of Financial 
 view of the Company’s a�airs and are in compliance with existing accounting  Statement which is stated in the 
 standards and applicable laws  'Directors declaration as to �nancial 
   statements' in the Directors Report.
6 (ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the  Complied CEO and CFO certi�ed to the Board 
 Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the  during �nalisation of Financial 
 Company’s code of conduct  Statement which is stated in the 
   'Directors declaration as to �nancial 
   statements' in the Directors Report.   
7 (i) The Company shall obtain a certi�cate from a Professional Chartered Secretary Complied Proper certi�cation has been 
 /Accountant (Chartered Accountant/Cost & Management Accountant/Chartered  obtained from M/s Al-Muqtadir 
 Secretary) regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance  Associates, Chartered Secretaries, for 
 Guidelines of the Commission and shall send the same to the shareholders along  the year 2012 which is published as 
 with the Annual Report on a yearly basis  Annexure -3 to the Directors' Report.
7 (ii) The  Directors of the Company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure  Complied Status of Compliance is published 
 attached, in the  Directors' report whether the Company has complied with  with the Directors' Report as 
 these conditions  required.

 Condition Title Status Remarks 
 No.
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited

(As required under the BSEC Guidelines)

We have examined compliance to the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance by British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited for the year ended 31st December 2013. 
These guidelines relate to the Noti�cation no.SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 
7th August 2012 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on Corporate 
Governance.

Such compliance to the codes of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company. 
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by 
the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance. This is a 
scrutiny and veri�cation only and not an expression of opinion or audit on the �nancial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided 
to us, we certify that, subject to the remarks and observations as reported in the attached 
Compliance Statement,  the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned guidelines issued by BSEC. We also state 
that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor a 
certi�cation on the e�ciency or e�ectiveness with which the Management has conducted 
the a�airs of the Company.

                AL-MUQTADIR ASSOCIATES
Dhaka, 26 February, 2014                    Chartered Secretaries & Consultants

Annexure -3

AL-MUQTADIR ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries & Consultants

Circle Zareen, Block-A, Road-16,
House # 413 (5-B), Bashundhara R/A
Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh
Cell: +8801730 340 340
e-mail: akamuqtadir@gmail.com
muqtadir@muqtadirbd.com
www.muqtadirbd.com



WHAT IS A BAT LEADER?

The BAT Leader
Passionate Owners 

inspiring our 
people to deliver 

outstanding
results
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A Decade
of Creating Leaders
Battle of Minds, which started out primarily as a business case 
competition in 2004, has now evolved into the biggest and the 
most sought after business competition for aspiring soon-to-be 
graduates in Bangladesh. Each year it has gotten tougher and more 
competitive, superseding the standard of business competitions in 
every possible way in Bangladesh. This year, the competition 
ventured into its 10th edition – a landmark achievement – with a 
fresher, more engaging perspective. With newer business 
elements, social media usage and student ambassadors, Battle of 
Minds 2013 was bigger, better and more challenging than ever 
before!

Over the past decade, Battle of Minds has evolved from a one-day 
business case solving competition into a month-long process that 
grooms individuals and gives them a vast exposure to the corpo-
rate world. It has not only provided British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh with over 70 employees in di�erent managerial 
positions, but has also built a legacy of creating leaders out of 
fresh, young talents.

As Golam Sakib Choudhury, Learning & Sourcing Executive at 
British American Tobacco Bangladesh, put it: “With BoM in its tenth 
year, we intend to make a well-knit community among the contes-
tants, similar to what we employees do at BATB. It enables a level of 
solidarity and interaction among them, even after a substantial 
period of time.”

After an intense week of hard work and �erce competition, the 
Grand Finale was held on 4 September, 2013. Each of the teams 
presented their cases and showcased their products in their 
self-designed kiosks to the judging panel which included Mustans-
er Ali Khan (Area Head of Supply Chain, South Asia Area, BAT); 
Felicio Ferraz (General Manager, Ceylon Tobacco Company, Sri 
Lanka); Syed Imtiaz Faruque (Area Head of Human Resources, 
South Asia Area, BAT); and Anthony Yong (Finance Director, BAT 
Bangladesh).



The entire ballroom at Radisson Blu Water Garden burst into cheer as the winners were announced. This 
year, the team “Sentinels” from IUT became 2nd runners-up and the team “Decepticons” from NSU became 
1st runners-up. However, the Champion of Battle of Minds 2013 was the team “Ocean’s 4” from IBA, DU.

Minhaj Nur Alam, a member of the 2nd runners-up team “Sentinels”, said: “BoM is a very prestigious 
competition and gives us new challenges, new ways of thinking and an idea about challenges faced by 
businesses.”

“Battle of Minds is a brand we have built over the years with passion, innovation and commitment with an 
aim to provide a platform to young university graduates who are about to enter the corporate world of 
Bangladesh.” Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources, adds: “Over the last 10 years, Battle of Minds 
has been enriched with di�erentiated challenges which the young graduates have embraced with great 
mind and might. Each year participants of the competition fought it out in the Battle and made their way 
to the British American Tobacco Bangladesh family with their capabilities and di�erence. The di�erence 
that these people bring is a competitive advantage for our organization. This competitive advantage 
translates into business growth and excellence.”

Since its inception in 2004, Battle of Minds has gradually raised the bar for budding graduates by introduc-
ing newer and more realistic perspectives of business to the competition. With the commitment of provid-
ing holistic development for the participants involved, British American Tobacco Bangladesh is adamant 
on leaving its footprint in the nation-building process today through its �agship initiative of Battle of 
Minds.
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE & DEVELOPMENT

As a world renowned multinational organization BAT 
Bangladesh takes pride in being one of the most preferred 
employers in the country. BAT Bangladesh employs more 
than 1,200 people directly and about 50,000 people 
indirectly as farmers, distributors and local suppliers. It is 
our pool of talented people who bring their di�erence 
every day and make BAT Bangladesh a great place to work.

Being a responsible corporate entity, BAT Bangladesh 
abides by all the applicable laws and regulations of the 
country and extending beyond the range of its 
responsibilities for speci�c services, social welfare has a 
further function within the broad area of a country's social 
development. In this larger sense, social welfare plays a 
major role in contributing to the e�ective mobilization and 
deployment of human and material resources of the 
country to deal successfully with the social requirements of 
change, thereby participating in nation-building. 

The employees of this fabulous organization are availing 
the welfare bene�ts free of cost, which includes food facility 
inside a canteen located in BATB premises with no hierarchy 
and discrimination. 

The Managing Director of the company and a factory 
employee take the same type of food in the same place. 
Moreover, a full-�edged 24/7 dispensary located inside the 
factory premise is serving 850 unionized employees with 
medical facilities along with the renowned hospitals of the 
country.

Family Day 2013 Family Day 2013

‘Circle’ - the canteen where we meet
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In addition to that every year BAT Bangladesh organizes 
Family Day, Kids Carnival, Annual Sports, Picnic, Eid-e-Mila-
dunnabi, and Annual Iftaar, MD’s Trophy etc and various 
events with an intention of motivation and recreation of 
BATB employees. The organization also gives scholarship to 
the children of the employees to motivate them for higher 
education every year.To value the heart of the organization, 
our People,BATB shows its respect by giving Long Service 
Award and Retirement Award. It eventually brings out their 
real human capability and help in the growth and success of 
the business.

Welfare activities include another signi�cant area that is 
Occupational Health & Safety (OHS). Prime focus is to 
educate the employees/sta� of BATB on “Occupational 
Health & Safety” to ensure well-being of employees & compli-
ance (Labour Law & EHS policies) along with EHS. The bene-
�ts of maintaining good health, proper food habit & work-
place safety are mostly highlighted for physical, mental and 
social well-being of the workers. 

The scopes of OHS are working environment, surrounding 
environment and health and safety where we educate with 
appropriate knowledge of appreciation of OHS’s relevance & 
importance, risk awareness, signi�cance of hygiene & cleanli-
ness ensuring all safety policies and rules. The year 2013 was 
started with the slogan “Apnar Jotno Apnari ”through period-
ic health checkups, improved diet engaging renowned 
doctors and nutrition experts to follow up and build aware-
ness.

BAT Bangladesh also looks into the employees’ development 
along with the extrinsic rewards, by providing them with 
relevant trainings. We take apprentices and invest in their 
learning and development so that they can be retained at 
the end of their apprenticeship as per need. We also provide 
with functional level based classroom, play shop type soft 
skill and international training to the workforce to develop 
their skill. In the training session employees are taught how 
to have a positive mind set, working in a team, advance 
communication, capability building.

MD’s Trophy 2013 MD’s Trophy 2013

Training & Development Apprenticeship Program



Monglapur is now illuminated with the light of British American Tobacco Bangladesh’s solar electricity.

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`‡ki
†mŠiwe`y¨‡Zi Av‡jvq

gsjvcvov AvR D¾xweZ



CORA



SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

As a responsible Company, British American Tobacco Bangladesh believes that 
the business has a key role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary 
sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social 
progress. Therefore, its CSR activities are designed to contribute to the 
economic, social and environmental sustainability of the community in which it 
operates. The Company's CSR initiatives are  afforestation, supply of safe 
drinking water and providing Solar Home Systems free of cost in rural 
communities of the country - all three structured in perfect alignment with the 
Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) of United Nations.

Afforestation: BAT Bangladesh’s flagship CSR programme 

British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh) initiated its afforestation 
programme in 1980 when the forest department called on the private sector to 
support its endeavour to conserve the forests. So far, BAT Bangladesh has 
contributed around 79.5 million saplings to the country’s afforestation initiative 
in the last 34 years. It is presumably the largest private sector driven 
afforestation effort in Bangladesh. The Project has also won international 
recognition for the company recently when BAT Bangladesh was awarded Asia 
Responsible Enterprenership Award in 2014  under green leadership by Enterprise 
Asia, a non-governmental organization striving for the pursuit of 
entrepreneurship development in Asia Region.The programme is designed to 
focus on the socio-economic needs of the human society as well as overall 
environmental perspectives. 

BAT Bangladesh carried out extensive awareness building and motivation 
campaigns supported by the forest department at the beginning. The Company 
took participatory approach, where they gave free saplings to the tobacco 
farmers along with maintenance expenses for the first year. The trees have been 
planted alongside roads, railway tracks and embankments and also in farmers’ 
land holdings. Such afforestation projects can be found all over Bangladesh.

Every year BAT Bangladesh distributes more than 4 million saplings free of cost 
countrywide starting from end June. As a national recognition for special 
contribution in tree plantation, BAT Bangladesh has received National Award five 
times. Moreover, every year the company receives 1st prize in most of the fruits, 
trees & agricultural fairs held at the district level.



Supply of Safe Drinking Water: Bringing smiles to one hundred 
thousand people everyday

Having recognized the gravity of water and sanitation and in the context 
of the Milennium Development Goals, BAT Bangladesh has stepped 
forward with the supply of safe drinking water project. As a part of the 
safe drinking water initiative, BAT Bangladesh has already installed 50 
filtration plants to make water free from arsenic and other harmful 
contents in arsenic prone areas in the country.

All the 50 plants now purify 255,000 litres of drinking water, meeting 
the need of 127,500 people every day. The plants are maintained by local 
committees consisting of members from local communities. 

The safe drinking water plants draw water from the underground water 
basin and remove arsenic, iron and manganese. The purification system 
of the established plants ensures that the water which is drawn from 
underground through a deep tube-well is filtrated several times before 
finally being pumped to an overhead tank and supplied to end-users.

More than hundred communities in rural areas with the safe drinking 
water plants are now living a better life than before as safe drinking 
water is enriching their livelihood.  

Solar Home Systems: Bringing a ray of hope in rural communities

BAT Bangladesh is providing Solar Home Systems free of cost to rural 
communities of the country which are currently out of electricity. 
So far, the Company has installed 1,366 units of solar home systems in 
eight villages of Bandarban and Khagrachari districts, illuminating the 
community and its people in the off grid areas of the country. Now, 
more than 800 rural people are connected with electricity for the first 
time. This initiative will continue its journey to kindle hope in remote 
rural communities by bringing in a completely new dimension in the lives 
of people and progressing it with the power of energy.



2013 brought about a domino ripple of achievements that broke all 
previous records in the history of British American Tobacco Bangla-
desh. The year also ended with a glorious win- South Asia Area bagged 
the Golden Leaf Awards proving once again that BAT Bangladesh can 
win in challenging markets. 2013 was a tough year for Bangladesh and 
the company was put head-on with intense challenges that demand-
ed great agility and spontaneity  from the people. This was all possible 
with collective results of the successes from various sides of the 
business. The low segment was rightfully reclaimed with magnificent 
performance and operational excellence for John Player Gold Leaf, 
Star, Pilot and Derby. The premium segment also performed magnifi-
cently with Bangladesh being the first market to lead Benson & 
Hedges pack change. 

GOLDEN LEAF AWARD CELEBRATION

BAT Bangladesh saw astounding numbers in 2013 - an incredible 4 
billion stick volume growth and 3.7% growth in  market share than 
the previous year that has given BAT Bangladesh a clear leadership.



BAT Bangladesh has also witnessed the power of 
people and the power of passion. Looking back on 
2012 and 2013, the journey was as turbulent and 
stormy as it could get but the will to fight back and 
rewrite destiny made BAT Bangladesh rise above. 

The milestone numbers and the beaten records are 
the true reflections of dedication and passion of the 
people at BAT Bangladesh that ultimately resulted in 
the massive contribution of BAT Bangladesh to the 
SAA win for Golden Leaf Award.



LEAF
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BAT Bangladesh established the �rst Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM) Club in 2005 to support the 
farmers for better crop management in Chechua Leaf 
Area, Kushtia. For last couple of years BAT Bangladesh 
has established a number of IPM clubs at its di�erent 
Leaf growing locations with an aim to drive farmers’ 
education/awareness regarding the non-chemical 
alternatives to pest management & safe use of Agro-
chemicals. The objective of IPM clubs is to reinforce 
government initiatives to reduce use of agrochemicals. 
One of our main focuses was to promote the usage of 
Neem Leaf Decoction. Thus, we ensured installation of 
Neem Decoction Machines beside our IPM clubs. The 
IPM club is led by a committee comprising of BATB 
representatives and local leading tobacco farmers. We 
provide our crop related training and brie�ng to the 
farmers in the IPM clubs.

To embed the concept of IPM among the farmers, BATB 
has been running Farmers Field School (FFS) in these 
IPM clubs in partnership with the Department of 
Agricultural Extension (DAE). The FFS approach to drive 
IPM has made the IPM clubs as a power house for 
disseminating knowledge on pest management 
through non-chemical alternatives. This is a �eld orien-
tated and participatory program placing emphasis on 
learning by doing. Training takes place over an extend-
ed period and is a combination of classroom lessons 
and �eld work. Moreover, IPM clubs are now contribut-
ing to create trained resources for IPM education and 
training. So far till 2013, we have established 54 IPM 
Clubs, organized 48 FFS sessions, distributed 5,510 
Personal Protective Equipment sets and 2,000 
agro-chemical boxes (free of cost) among our regis-
tered farmers. This initiative is to make sure that 
agro-chemicals are applied only when is assessed to be 
a must and with all necessary precautions. Formal 
trainings to farmers are ensured as per training calen-
dar. Our plan is to build 11 IPM clubs, organize 11 FFS 
sessions and distribute 1000 sets of PPE’s to farmers at 
free of cost every year.  

INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT (IPM) CLUB

IPM CLUB

Demosnstration of Personal Protective Equipment use Farmers’ �eld school session at IPM Club



FACTORY & OUR PEOPLE



SUPPLY CHAIN
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British American Tobacco (BAT) as a Group, believes in 
creating an inspiring, motivating and high performing 
working environment for all its employees across the 
world. As a socially responsible organization, British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh (BATB) puts a lot of e�ort 
and resources in maintaining a world class standard of 
Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) practices. As BAT 
Bangladesh’s market is growing impressively, the 
betterment of Environment, Health and Safety standard 
is even more important for the welfare of its employees 
and sustainability of the environment. In 2012-2013, 
several initiatives were taken from the management to 
build the awareness level of EHS among the employees 
and improve the practices in this sector.

BATB is fully committed to ensuring the safety and 
health of its people who come into its premises as well 
as minimize impact on environment. We expect our 
people inside the premises to stay safe so that they can 
get back home safe and sound. To remain safe while 
carrying out various business activities it is extremely 
important for all of us to be aware of the risks associated 
with any activity and act safely. 

To facilitate safer work at height activities the Company 
procured standardized access equipment like mechani-
cal and electrical ladders, custom sca�olding, boom lift 
for Dhaka Factory (DF), Kushtia GLT Plant (GLTP) and 
Manikganj Redrying Plant (RDP).

We organized a EHS Development Program for manag-
ers. Participants from Sri Lanka and Pakistan participat-
ed in the week long program and EHS experts were 
brought in to conduct the workshop. In total 25 manag-
ers were trained in this workshop.

To keep our people aware we carried out various kinds 
of communication, awareness programs for managers, 
employees, and contractors throughout the year. We 
observed EHS Week in September which gave excellent 
opportunity for all of us to raise our awareness to great-
er heights to identify risks and hazards in activities that 
we do and take a renewed pledge to act safely. The 
purpose of the event was to raise awareness of health 
and safety issues among the employees, and to 
motivate them to keep these issues in mind as they go 
about their work. The EHS event was designed keeping 
tangible and intangible bene�ts in mind. As part of the 
tangible measures, a workshop was organized by the 
EHS team to help managers identify safety hazards and 
their possible solutions. As part of the intangible 
measures of the program, banners were made and 
brochures were distributed highlighting the impor-
tance of safety in the workplace. These promotional 
literature covered topics such as prevention of hand 
injuries, safe working practices for height work, equip-
ment maintenance, how to avoid slips, trips and falls. 
Stalls with knowledge based puzzles were also set up at 
the o�ce premises as an enjoyable way to illustrate and 
convey the message of the program. Participants were 
rewarded for their knowledge and performance with 
gifts and prizes. Like Safety Employee Health was given 
due importance. A nutritionist and a doctor were 
invited to provide expert advice to the employees on 
food habit, how to reduce weight and stay �t. The nutri-
tionist shared healthy food plans to have a healthy 
lifestyle. The doctor provided an overview on diseases 
prevalent in Bangladesh and the measures which can 
be taken to prevent them. 
  

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY
-------------------------------------- Closing the Gap to Zero

Participants of “Closing the Gap to Zero”
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In December the Company launched the Awareness Session 
on “Closing the Gap to Zero” day long program. We have 
already covered 15% employees and 30% of managers. 

All contractual employees of Dhaka factory and GLTP 
received professional training on hazardous work. 

Fire safety is one of the key priorities for the company. We 
have taken phase wise implementation plan to install and 
strengthen �re/smoke detection and �re�ghting system. We 
have installed a robust �re hydrant system in GLTP and leaf 
warehouses in the Kushtia region.

The Company also installed a standardized lightning 
arrestor system to improve the �re and equipment 
safety as well in DF, GLTP, leaf and Finished Goods 
warehouses.

In energy and water conservation and waste recycling, 
several new initiatives were taken in 2013 to reduce the 
overall environmental impact. LED light has been 
installed replacing the CFL lights to bring energy 
e�ciency.

We have also made sure to maximize the usage of 
sunlight during day time. Almost 30% of total DF 
compound are using daylight which is helping us in 
reducing energy consumption and greenhouse gas 
emission.

To comply with KYOTO protocol and also the 
directive from the Department of Environ-
ment of the Bangladesh Government, BATB 
has adopted a road to install CFC free ACs in 
its establishment. As a part of this roadmap 
we have replaced 56 ACs in 2013, which is 
almost 25% of total ACs.

BATB has been the pioneer in practicing 
Biodiversity. The Leaf and CORA teams are 
continuously undertaking a�orestation and 
green manuring programs. We have estab-
lished a sanctuary in Kushtia where rare 
species of plants are being nurtured. 

BATB will continue to spread out EH&S 
among its suppliers in the future and will 
continuously improve awareness and work 
standards while growing with less environ-
mental impact.

Awareness Session on “Closing the Gap to Zero”

Boom Lift

Fire �ghting training

Custom Sca�olding

LED Light

LED Light
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BAT Bangladesh goes live with "Project TaO" 

'TaO' is a global project which is being implemented across all the markets in BAT group. TaO is all about 
improving and standardising key processes and systems in areas of Supply Chain, Finance and Marketing with 
an aim to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiencies in our business operation. BAT Bangladesh success-
fully implemented the project on 1st January 2014 after going through a year long planning and preparation 
activities. A cross functional project team from the Company has made a significant effort to plan and imple-
ment this project successfully for BAT Bangladesh. The project has implemented benchmark processes like 
warehouse management, machine maintenance, manufacturing execution, transactional finance manage-
ment, supply chain planning etc. As a part of the project deployment, the entire organization went through a 
series of training sessions to learn the new processes and systems. The project has also deployed improved 
and stronger IT infrastructure across the factories, head office, trade marketing offices and leaf warehouses 
to enable smooth platform for the new system. TaO will bring in greater process control, better insights 
through real time information, improved infrastructure and stronger integration among the functions which 
will further enable BAT Bangladesh to achieve its Growth and Productivity agenda.







MARKETING
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BATB) has 
one of the strongest distribution networks in 
Bangladesh, that enables us to make our brands 
available to consumers in convenient places, at the 
best quality. BATB’s strong network of distributors, 
spread across the country, ensures distribution of 
its brands in more than half a million outlets.

In a country with highly dispersed outlets and 
infrastructural challenges, the wide distribution 
coverage provided by our distributors acts as a 
critical success factor for our business. Every morn-
ing, thousands of salesmen all across the country  

start on a journey, with the promise of making our 
brands available.

Our distributors are a great source of strength for us. 
This strength was built over decades through their 
long and passionate association with the Company. It’s 
no wonder that our oldest distributor started doing 
business with us way back in 1921. In alignment with 
the Company’s direction and guidance, they are work-
ing relentlessly to steer through the challenges and 
opportunities an emerging market like Bangladesh 
o�ers. Our distributors strongly believe in BATB’s 
resolute stand for responsible tobacco marketing as 
well as regulatory compliance.  

“The biggest joy of working with BATB is how much I have learned as a businessman”

Kashem Jamal, Managing Director,
Jamal & Co. (Distributor for Dhaka East  market since 1956)

OUR DISTRIBUTORS

There is no better way to shed light on their role & relation with BATB than to share some remarks from our distributors on their 
journey with the Company:

Our great journey of success is built on our distributors’ ability 
and passion to deliver strong business performance – with 2013 
being another successful chapter in that journey.



BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 85

“My father had started the business and his a�ection for the business helped me to 
�nd out the best part of being a BATB distributor – to get steered towards embedding 
a culture where employees are treated with respect”

Rijvi Jamal, Managing Director
J Ahmed & Co. (Distributor for Barisal market since 1964)

“Hard to believe that at the beginning it was just a few people and me. Now more than hundred 
people are working and the number is growing every year. For them and their family, being part 
of a stable business is the employment certainty that they really value in life. ”

Kazi Abu Shahid, Managing Director
M/S Channa & Brothers (Distributor for Naogaon market since 1973)

 

 “Being a distributor for a fairly long time, I got the opportunity to work through the challenges of 
an evolving industry. During that journey, I can say one thing very con�dently - we only gained 

more and more trust of our customers as BAT always guided us to act in a responsible manner”

Abdus Sattar, Managing Director
M/S Habib Brothers (Distributor for Feni market since 1946)

“What makes me really proud of being a BATB distributor is that it gave me the 
opportunity to support thousands of small retail businesses in my locality who 
had started their business by selling solely our brands and became successful 
businesses later. My personal relation with them is so much more than just 

business.”

 Keshab Chandra Paul, Managing Director
BC Paul (Distributor for Brahman Baria market since 1921)



SNAPSHOTS

BAT Bangladesh Family in Communication Day August 2014

BATB family day cultural program inaugurated with
traditional dance

The glorious moment with the fabulous employees of
the 25 years of Service Award 

Kids’ Carnival – a day long amusement for the children of BATB
family with unlimited ride

Annual Iftaar- shows the respect and gratitude towards our
religion having iftaar both management & non-management
under one umbrella



Factory Premier League (Motivational scheme programme for
employees) inauguration in March

MD’s Trophy- Mental and physical refreshment in a fun and competitive environment

The glorious Trophy for which eight departmental teams
�ghting every year

Derby launching event in February 40th Annual General Meeting held on April



SECURITY



IT



FINANCE



BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 91

Gulshan Pink City
Suites # 01-03, Level : 7
Plot # 15, Road # 103,
Gulshan Avenue
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.
Phone : 880-2-8881824-6
Fax : 880-2-8881822
E-mail : aqasem@aqcbd.com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited, which 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and 
applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), give 
a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the results of its operations and 
cash flows for the year then ended and comply with applicable section of the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and 
Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
  necessary for the purposes of our audit and have made due verification thereof;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
  appeared from our examination of those books;

 c) The Company's Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income dealt with by the report  
  are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

 d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business.

 Auditors
 Dhaka, 26 February 2014

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
of

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013

  2013 2012  

 Notes  Taka '000s Taka '000s

ASSETS          

Non-current assets:            

Property, plant and equipment 4 8,513,167  5,861,627

Current assets: 

Inventories 5 6,626,703  4,956,887 

Trade and other receivables 6 770,917  937,873 

Advance, deposit and pre-payments 7 634,885  999,016 

Cash and cash equivalents 8  1,918,126  2,279,090 

Total current assets  9,950,631 9,172,866 

Total assets    18,463,798  15,034,493 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

Equity attributable to owners of the Company :

Share capital 9 600,000 600,000 

Capital reserve 10 64,896 64,896 

Retaind earnings 11  8,236,694 6,368,044 

Total equity   8,901,590 7,032,940  

Non-current liabilities:     

Gratuity 12  364,063 240,592 

Deferred tax liability 13  883,376 723,643 

Obligation under finance lease (due after one year) 14.2 - 7,541 

Total non-current liabilities   1,247,439 971,776 

Current liabilities:     

Provision for expenses 15  2,338,056 2,188,035 

Trade and other payables 16  3,701,889  3,245,676 

Income tax liability 17 2,267,283  1,585,731 

Obligation under finance lease (due within one year) 14.1 7,541  10,335 

Total current liabilities  8,314,769 7,029,777 

Total equity and liabilities  18,463,798  15,034,493 

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Shehzad Munim  Anthony Yong Md. Azizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director             Company Secretary            

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 26 February 2014                                              A. Qasem & co.                                    

                                      Chartered accountants
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2013

          

   2013 2012

  Notes Taka '000s Taka '000s

Gross turnover   109,581,710 90,174,080

Supplementary duty & VAT   (78,356,273) (62,702,736)

Net turnover 18  31,225,437 27,471,344

Cost of Sales 19  (17,501,330) (15,946,224)

Gross profit   13,724,107 11,525,120

Operating expenses 20  (4,219,739) (4,612,418)

Operating profit  9,504,368 6,912,702

Other Income 21 89,661 50,820

Net financial expense 22  (11,215) (119,878)

   9,582,814 6,843,644

Workers' profit participation fund  (479,141) (342,182)

Profit before income tax   9,103,673 6,501,462

Income tax expense:    

 Current tax 23.1 (3,988,381) (2,505,258)

 Deferred tax 23.2 (191,165) (54,564)

   (4,179,546) (2,559,822)

Profit for the year  4,924,127 3,941,640

Actuarial revaluation for employee benefit  (86,910) -

Deferred tax arising from actuarial revaluation  31,432 -

other comprehensive expense  (55,478) -

Total comprehensive income for the year  4,868,649 3,941,640

   Taka  Taka

Earnings Per Share 24 81.14 65.69

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.  

 

 Shehzad Munim  Anthony Yong Md. Azizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director   Company Secretary  

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 26 February 2014                                              A. Qasem & co.                                    

                                      Chartered accountants
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2013

  Share Revenue Capital  
  capital reserve reserve Total

  Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s

Balance at 1 January 2012 600,000 5,246,404 64,896 5,911,300

Dividend paid in 2012: - (2,820,000) - (2,820,000)

 Final Dividend for 2011 - (2,220,000) - (2,220,000)

 Interim Dividend for 2012 - (600,000) - (600,000)

Profit for the year 2012 - 3,941,640 - 3,941,640

Balance as at 31 December 2012 600,000 6,368,044 64,896 7,032,940

Balance at 1 January 2013 600,000 6,368,044 64,896 7,032,940

Dividend paid in 2013: - (3,000,000) - (3,000,000)

 Final Dividend for 2012  (2,400,000)  (2,400,000)

 Interim Dividend for 2013  (600,000)  (600,000)

Profit for the year 2013 - 4,868,649 - 4,868,649

Balance as at 31 December 2013 600,000 8,236,694 64,896 8,901,590

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Shehzad Munim Anthony Yong Md. Azizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director   Company Secretary  

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 26 February 2014                                           A. Qasem & co.                                    

                                    Chartered accountants
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2013

 2013 2012

   Taka '000s  Taka '000s

Cash flows from operating activities:   

Collection from distributors, leaf export and others  109,659,616 90,283,106

Payment for costs and expenses   (23,591,083) (21,582,397)

Supplementary duty and VAT paid   (76,726,491) (61,324,848)

Cash generated from operation    9,342,042 7,375,861

Income tax paid   (3,306,829) (1,897,470)

Interest paid     (11,215) (119,878)

Net cash flows from operating activities    6,023,998 5,358,513

Cash flows from investing activities:

   

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (3,419,137) (1,116,245)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    42,345 30,145

Net cash used in investing activities   (3,376,792) (1,086,100)

 

Cash flows from financing activities:    

Finance lease payment   (10,335) (17,025)

Dividend paid   (2,997,835) (2,813,690)

Net cash used in financing activities   (3,008,170) (2,830,715)

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the year  (360,964) 1,441,697

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    2,279,090 837,393

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   1,918,126 2,279,090

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Shehzad Munim Anthony Yong Md. Azizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director   Company Secretary  

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 26 February 2014                                              A. Qasem & co.                                    

                                      Chartered accountants
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended

31 December 2013

1. Reporting Entity    

 British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company incorporated in 
Bangladesh and its shares are quoted in the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. The address of the Company's 
registered office is New DOHS Road, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, Bangladesh.    
 

  The Company manufactures and markets both international and local brands like Benson & Hedges, John Player Gold 
Leaf, Pall Mall, Capstan, Star, Derby, Pilot and Hollywood.     
 

 The Company has its Head Office and the cigarette factory in Dhaka, a green leaf threshing plant in Kushtia, a green 
leaf redrying plant in Manikganj and a number of leaf and sales offices throughout the country.    

2. Basis of preparation    

2.1  Going concern assumption    
 

 The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are prepared 
on a going concern basis.    

2.2 Statement of compliance    

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and 
other applicable laws in Bangladesh. Cash flows from operating activities are computed under direct method as 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.    

2.3 Authorization for issue    

 The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2014    

2.4 Basis of measurement    

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.    

2.5 Functional and presentational currency    

 These financial statements are prepared in Bangladesh Taka (BDT) which is the Company's functional currency. All 
financial information presented in Taka has been rounded to the nearest thousand.    

2.6 Use of estimates and judgments    

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with BFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.    

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.    

2.7 Comparative information    

 Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2012 for all numerical information in the financial 
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current 
year's financial statements. Certain figures for 2012 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary, to ensure 
better comparability with the current year's financial and to comply with relevant BAS.    
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2.8 Off setting    

 "In compliance to BAS 1 and BAS 32, offsetting is done for a particular vendor or customer when the following 
conditions are met:

 - Each of the two parties owes the other determinable amounts.
 - The entity has the right to set off against the amount owed by the other party.
 - The entity intends to offset.
 - The right of setoff is legally enforceable."    

3. Significant accounting policies    

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.

3.1 Foreign currency

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies at an exchange rate applicable on the date 
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on         
translation are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 
of  historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment
         

3.2.1 Recognition and measurement
         
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated                 

impairment losses.     

 Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment. 
Property, plant and equipment under construction are stated at cost. Fully depreciated assets except plant and    
machinery are carried in the books at one percent of their original cost. Fully depreciated plant and machinery are 
carried in the books at one Taka.     

 Buildings constructed by the Company on leasehold land are capitalized and included under the category of leasehold property.  

 Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds 
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized as gain or loss.  

3.2.2 Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can  
 be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the 
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

3.2.3 Depreciation
         
 Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted  for  
 cost less its residual value.

 Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the straight-line method with a pro-rata 
charge based  on the month of acquisition. Land is not depreciated. The depreciation rates per annum and residual value 
applicable to different categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows:      
        Useful life (in years)   Residual Value 

 Freehold buildings 40 1%
 Leasehold buildings 22 1%
 Plant and machinery 5/14 Tk 1
 Laboratory equipment 14 1%
 Office equipment                            3/4/10 1%
 Furniture and fixtures 10 1%
 Air conditioners 4 1%
 Vehicles 4 1%
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3.3 Leased assets 
         
 Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 

finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value 
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in 
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

    

3.4 Inventories
         
 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value after making due allowance for slow moving and 

obsolete items. Cost is determined on a weighted average method. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred 
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing 
location and condition.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.5 Impairment
         
 The carrying amount of non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is 
estimated and impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.6 Trade and other receivables 
         
 Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given in return. 

After initial recognition these are carried at cost less any impairment losses due to uncollectibility of any amount so 
recognized.

         

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents
         
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and with bank including fixed deposits having maturity of three 

months or less and short term credit arrangements which are held and available for use by the Company without any 
restriction.

3.8 Retirement benefit schemes

3.8.1 Defined Benefit Plans

 Management Gratuity Scheme     
 As required by BAS 19, the company operates  a gratuity scheme for managers who joined with the Company up to 

February 2013. Members become eligible to receive Gratuity on completion of 5 years of continuous services with the 
Company. Provisions are made annually covering all its eligible managers other than the expatriates.   

 Management Pension Fund     
 The company operates a pension scheme for the managers who joined the company within 1st January 1987 to 31 August 

2007.  Members become eligible for the fund on completion of 5 years of continuous service with the Company. The 
fund is managed by a board of Trustees. The fund is applicable only for the Bangladeshi nationals mangers.     
 

  An actuarial valuation of the gratuity and pension schemes are made to assess the adequacy of the  liabilities provided 
for the schemes as per "BAS 19: Employee Benefits". In respect of any actuarial gains or losses arising from actuarial 
valuation of the Company's obligation in terms of retirement benefits under defined benefit plans, it is fully recognized 
in the other comprehensive income.    

3.8.2 Defined Contribution Plans

 Management Gratuity Scheme
    
 The company operates  a funded gratuity scheme for managers who joined the Company from 1 March 2013 onwards. 

Company contributes 15% of basic salary as contribution to the fund for the managers from the date of joining. The 
fund is managed by a board of Trustees. Members become eligible to receive the Gratuity on completion of 5 years of 
continuous services with the Company.        
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 Provident Fund

 Members, on confirmation, in regular employment of the Company, are required by the Company  to join the provident 
fund to which members contribute 10% of their basic salaries and the Company makes a matching contribution. The 
Fund is administered by a board of Trustees.  Members become eligible to receive company contribution on completion 
of 5 years of continuous services with the Company.  

 Employee Gratuity Scheme     
 The company operates funded gratuity scheme for employees whereby the Company contributes 15% of basic salary 

as contribution to the fund for the employees from the date of joining. The Fund is administered by a board of Trustees.  
Members become eligible to receive Gratuity on completion of 5 years of continuous services with the Company.   
 

 Company's contribution to the defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income when incurred.     

3.9 Provisions

 A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can reliably be estimated and, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.    

 
 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 

longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are required to settle the obligation, the 
provision are reversed.

3.10 Revenue recognition policy

3.10.1 Sale of Goods

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to 
the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be 
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and where amount of revenue can 
be measured reliably.

 Gross turnover comprises of domestic sales of cigarettes, export of leaf and inclued supplementary duty, export duty  
and value added tax paid to the Government of Bangladesh.     

3.10.2 Interest income

 Interest Income is derived from short-term investments and is recognized on an accrual basis.

3.11  Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

 The Company provides 5% of its profit before charging such expense as WPPF in accordance with the Bangladesh 
Labour Act 2006.

3.12 Income tax
   
 Income tax expense comprising of current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income. 

3.12.1 Current tax

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect to previous years. The Company qualifies 
as a "Publicly Traded Cigarette Manufacturing Company"; hence, the applicable tax rate is 40%. 

3.12.2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they are reversed, based on the laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity.
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 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

3.13 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
         

3.13.1 Basic earnings per share
         
 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

3.14 Dividends
 
 Final dividend distributions to the company's shareholders are recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the 

period in which the dividends are approved by the company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, while interim 
dividend distributions are recognized in the period in which the dividends are declared and paid.  

3.15 Related party transactions
         
 Disclosures have been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the ability to control or exercise     

significant influence over the financial and operating policies/decisions over the other, irrespective of whether a price 
is charged.

3.16 Segment reporting

 A segment is a distinguishable component of the group/company that is engaged in providing products or services 
within a particular economic environment. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company regards its Board of Directors as its chief 
operating decision maker, as the Board is responsible for allocating resources, assesses performance, and makes          
strategic decision.

   
 The Company is a single product business primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of cigarettes in Bangladesh 

and this forms the focus of the Company's internal reporting system. While the Company has clearly differentiated 
brands, segmentation within a wide portfolio of brands is not a part of the regular internally reported financial                    
information to the chief operating decision maker. Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company's results by 
brand without a high degree of estimation.

3.17 Materiality and aggregation

 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar nature or 
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

3.18 Events after the reporting date

 Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the Company's position at the reporting date 
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in 
the notes when material. 
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  2013 2012

  Taka '000 Taka '000

5. Inventories         
          

 Leaf 4,165,565 3,331,867

 Wrapping materials 623,328 413,728

 Work in process 31,082 25,154

 Finished goods 1,336,598 917,440

 Consumable stores 470,130 268,698

           6,626,703 4,956,887
          
6. Trade and other receivables         
          

 Letter of credit  16,733 44,659

 Trade debtors 244,645 324,760

 Intercompany receivables 27,427 25,217

 Sundry debtors 16,861 18,516

 Agricultural inputs 465,251 524,721

   770,917 937,873

 These are all unsecured but considered good; as such no provision
 was required to be recognised against these debtors.

7. Advance deposit and pre-payments
         

 Supplementary duty and VAT 96,299 216,519

 VAT recoverable 184,562 212,909

 Prepaid expenses 354,024 569,588

  

   634,885 999,016

           
8. Cash and cash equivalents        
          

 Cash in hand 2,062 3,881

 Cash at banks: 

  Dividend accounts 33,051 30,886 

  Foreign currency accounts 329,051 409,492

  Current accounts 1,369,446 265,133

  Fixed and short term deposits 184,516 1,569,698

               1,918,126 2,279,090

          

 Foreign currency account balances have been converted to Taka at the ruling rate at the reporting date.
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  2013 2012 

  Taka Taka

9. Share capital         

 Authorised: 

  60,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 600,000,000 600,000,000 

 

 Issued, subscribed and paid up: 

            Issued for cash -         

       3 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each  30 30

       Issued for consideration other than cash -        

      59,999,997 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 599,999,970 599,999,970

   600,000,000 600,000,000

           

 The composition of shareholders at 31 December 2013 was:

  2013 2012 

 Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd., UK 72.91% 72.91%

 Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 10.16% 11.51%

 Sadharan Bima Corporation 2.82% 2.82%

 Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 0.37% 0.93%

 Government of Bangladesh 0.64% 0.64%

 Sena Kallyan Sangstha 0.26% 0.26%

   Others 12.83% 10.92%

  100.00% 100.00%

           

 A distribution schedule of the shares as at 31 December 2013 is given below as required by listing regulations:

  No. of Total no. of Total 
 Number of shares holders shares  holdings

 Less than  500 shares 3,113 215,465 0.359%

 500 to 5,000 shares 249 295,510 0.493%

 5,001 to 10,000 shares 14 98,160 0.164%

 10,001 to 20,000 shares 20 294,128 0.490%

 20,001 to 30,000 shares 8 193,875 0.323%

 30,001 to 40,000 shares  6 215,800 0.360%

 40,001 to 50,000 shares 4 174,050 0.290%

 50,001 to 100,000 shares 14 1,044,300 1.741%

 100,001 to 1,000,000 shares  15 6,165,433 10.276%

 Over  1,000,000 shares 5 51,303,279 85.505%

                                                               Total 3,448 60,000,000  100.000%
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         2013   2012

        Taka '000s   Taka '000s

10. Capital reserve      64,896   64,896

 Capital reserve represents non-remittable reserve of Tk 64,896 thousands which are 90% of the cumulative post tax 
profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment as defined and directed by Bangladesh Bank. The requirement to 
create such special reserve on profit from sale of property, plant and equipment has been withdrawn since 1993. 

         2013   2012

        Taka '000s   Taka '000s

11.  Retained earning         
          

 Opening balance      6,368,044   5,246,404

 Less:  Dividend paid       3,000,000   2,820,000

        3,368,045   2,426,404

 Add: Total comprehensive income transferred to retained earnings   4,868,649   3,941,640

 Closing balance      8,236,694   6,368,044

12. Gratuity
 Opening balance       240,592   252,089

  Actuarial revaluation for the year 2012 (refer to 12.1)                       78,575   -

  Restated opening balance      319,167   -

  Provision for the year      70,684   51,525

 Payment      (25,788)   (63,022)

 Closing Balance      364,063   240,592

12.1 Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

           2012

           Taka '000s

 Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the period     252,089

 Current service cost         33,250

 Interest cost         23,160

 Contributions by plan participants         -

 Actuarial (gains)/losses         73,690

 Benefits paid         (63,022)

 Present value of defined benefit obligations at end of the period      319,167

 As recognized at year end         240,592

 Actuarial revaluation for the year 2012 recognized in 2013*      78,575

 * The actuarial revaluation study was conducted on various retirement and long-term benefit scheme liabilities for 
the year ended 31 December 2012. The report was provided on the 11 February 2013 after preparation of 2012 
accounts. 

            2013 
Breakdown of Current service cost         BDT '000s

 Total service  cost         33,250

 Increase/decrease in contributions tax (asset)/liability        - 

 Current Service Cost         33,250
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       2013 2012

      Taka '000s Taka '000s

13. Deferred tax liability

 Opening balance      723,643   669,079

 Add : Provision the year (note 23.2)       159,733   54,564

 Closing balance      883,376   723,643

14. Obligation under finance lease 

 Repayment of finance lease obligation is classified as under:   

  2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012

  Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

  Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s

 14.1  Due within one year 7,541 465 8,006 10,335 1,512 11,846

 14.2  Due after one year but within five years - - - 7,541 465 8,007

         Due after five years - - - - - -

         Total obligation under finance lease 7,541 465 8,006 17,876 1,977 19,853

       2013 2012

      Taka '000s Taka '000s

15. Provision for expenses

 Departmental accruals                   940,856 717,561

 VAT & duty related provision                1,243,607 1,403,656

 Other provisions                     153,593 66,818

                   2,338,056 2,188,035

16. Trade and other payables 

           Trade creditors   1,552,406 1,539,414

 Provident/pension funds   - 13,980

 Workers' profit participation fund   141 505

 Wages and other benefits   340,151 362,406

 Unclaimed dividend (note 25)   33,051 30,886

 Intercompany   1,732,939 1,175,230

 Sundry creditors   43,201 123,255

      3,701,889 3,245,676

17. Income tax liability

 Opening balance                6,800,124 4,294,866

 Charged during the year                3,988,381 2,505,258

                  10,788,505 6,800,124

 Less: Advance payment of corporate tax (Note 17.1)         (8,521,222) (5,214,393)

 Closing balance                2,267,283 1,585,731
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  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s

17.1 Advance payment of corporate Tax

 Opening balance                 5,214,393 3,316,923

 Add: Paid during the year                3,306,829 1,897,470

 Closing balance                8,521,222 5,214,393

 
18. Net turnover 
    Unit Qty 

 Gross Turnover Million sticks  34,738 107,492,258 87,411,032

 Supplementary duty and VAT   (78,144,165) (62,420,334)

      29,348,093 24,990,698

 Turnover from leaf tobacco export        Million Kg  9,903 2,089,451 2,763,048

 Export duty   (212,107) (282,402)

      1,877,344 2,480,646

      31,225,437 27,471,344

19. Cost of sales
         

 Raw material consumed 14,390,034 13,274,677 

 Production overhead (Note 20) 3,111,296 2,671,547

  17,501,330 15,946,224

20. Operating expenses

          Operating expenses include the following items:
 Salaries and wages 1,416,995 1,270,001
 Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 110,575 93,500
 Staff welfare 164,882 126,939
 Brand marketing expenditure  730,474 675,105
 Trade marketing expenditure  718,122 617,954
 Utilities 383,207 298,678
 Rent, rates, services and taxes  235,867 189,819
 Repairs and maintenance 574,324 649,752
 Travelling and training 277,474 220,590
 Vehicle running expenses 85,474 73,830
 Legal and Secretarial 9,457 12,784
 Information Technology 274,009 223,833
 Office and administrative expenses 144,542 117,618
 Social responsibility 31,696 39,863 
 Security and safety 50,368 41,449
 Market information 329,114 261,269
 Distribution expenses 119,938 79,988
 Freight and handling 296,970 214,108
 Insurance 62,655 59,309
 Depreciation  632,870 538,117
 Technical assistance fees 631,051 786,960
 Audit fees 800 800 
 Other fees (certification and other fees) 760 730
 Financial charges 17,077 16,386
 Other expenses 32,334 674,583
  7,331,035 7,283,965 
 Less: Charged to production overhead 3,111296 2,671,547 
  4,219,739 4,612,418
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  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s

21 Other Income

 Profit/(Loss) on disposal of fixed assets 34,946 26,497

 Other miscellaneous income 54,715 24,323

  89,661 50,820

22 Net Financial Income/(Expense)
          

 Interest income 77,581 64,562 

 Interest expense (88,796) (184,440) 

  (11,215) (119,878) 

23. Tax

23.1 Current Tax 
 Provision for current year 3,988,381 2,505,258

     3,988,381 2,505,258 
23.2 Deferred Tax 

 Charged to statement of profit and loss 191,165 54,564

 Deferre tax asset shown under other (31,432) -

 comprehensive income provision for the year 159,733 54,564

  Taxable/(deductible) temporary difference

  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s

 Assets 

 Property, plant and equipment                           2,662,510 2,360,019

 Inventory and debtors (90,009) (51,877)

     2,572,501 2,308,142

 Liabilities

 Provision for gratuity                               364,063 240,592

 Net taxable temporary difference 2,208,439 2,067,550

 Effective deferred tax rate 40% 35%

 Deferred tax liability 883,377 723,642

 Charge for the year 159,734 

23.3 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
     2013 2012

      % Taka ‘000s % Taka ‘000s
 Profit before tax  9,103,673  6,501,462
 Current tax expense 43.81% 3,988,381 38.53% 2,505,258
 Deferred tax expense 1.75% 159,733 0.84% 54,564
 Total tax expense 45.57% 4,148,114 39.37% 2,559,822

 Expected income tax using applicable tax rate 40.00% 3,641,469 35.00% 2,275,512
 Previous year adjustment 3.93% 357,893
 Tax on non deductible expenses   0.12% (10,981) 3.53% 229,746
  Effective current Tax 44.05% 3,988,381 38.53% 2,505,258
 Effective deferred tax 1.52% 159,733 0.84% 54,564
      45.57% 4,148,114 39.37% 2,559,822
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24. Earnings per share

24.1 Basic earnings per share
 Basic earning per share has been calculated taking a capital base of 60,000,000 ordinary share of Tk. 10 each as  issued 

up to 31 December 2013.

  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s

 Total comprehensive income for the year 4,868,649 3,941,640

 No of shares outstanding at 31 Dec 2013 60,000,000 60,000,000

 Earnings per share 81.14 65.69

24.2 Diluted earnings per share
 No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the year 

under review.

25. Dividend paid
    Aging Analysis of unclaimed dividend          Taka ‘000s

  Prior to 

  2011 2011 2012 2013 Total 2012

 Opening balance of unclaimed dividend 18,028 6,549 6,310 - 30,887 24,577 

 Add: Dividend Declared - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,820,000 

      Final dividend for 2012 - - - 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,220,000

      Interim dividend for 2013 - - - 600,000 600,000 600,000

 Less: Closing balance of unclaimed dividend             18,028 6,549 6,310 2,165 33,052 30,887

 Dividend paid - - - 2,997,835 2,997,835 2,813,690 

26. Numbers employed

 The Company had 1,251 permanent employees as at 31 December 2013 vs. 1,119 employees in 2012 and a varying 
number of seasonal and temporary workers as required. All permanent employees receive total remuneration in 
excess of Tk 36,000 per annum per employee.

  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s
27. Remuneration of Directors
 Attendance fee 38 36  

 Meeting expenses 918 689

 Remuneration (including MD's) 35,034 42,555

 Retirement benefit scheme 3,360 3,317

 Medical and welfare 144 483

 Housing 7,600 7,202

  47,094 54,282

28. Remittances of foreign currency 2013 2012
  Taka '000s Taka '000s

 Charge for the year:

    Royalty 446,844 348,480  

   Technical assistance fee 631,051 786,960

 ** Above expenses were remitted after converting them into foreign currency 
      at the spot rate on the remittance date. 
     USD '000s USD '000s

 Payment made during the year:

  Royalty (after deduction of withholding tax as per law) - 6,109

  Technical fees (after deduction of withholding tax as per law) 7,530 15,437

  Dividend 25,313 20,857

 Technical Fee for 2012 was paid in 2013 While for 2011 and 2010, it was paid in 2012. Roylty for 2012 will be paid in 2014.
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29. Capacity

 The Company works on continuous operation basis and given the current installed machine configurations and 
planned expansions, there is sufficient capacity to meet forecast future demand on a variety of specifications (e.g. 
filter) and packaging (e.g. hinge lid, shell and slide) configurations. The Directors regularly review the production 
capability of the Company and are satisfied that the current and future capacities are adequate.

     

 Actual production  2013 2012

 Cigarettes (in million sticks) 35,338 30,040

30. Value of leaf export earnings received                USD (in 000s) 32,587 35,189

31. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of 
business and on an arms' length basis. The name of related parties, nature of these transactions and their total value 
have been set out in accordance with the provisions of BAS 24 : Related Party Disclosure.

 Name of the parties Nature of relationship Amount of  Receivable/(Payable)
   Transaction in as at 31 December
    2013, Taka '000s 2013, Taka '000s
 Income
 a. Leaf Export
 The Company sold leaf to:

 BAT (GLP) Limited* BAT Group company 1,148,689 (193,532)
 Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited BAT Group company 210,607 -

 Expenses
 b. Procurement of services Recharge
 Procurement of information technology, product and other services:

 BASS GSD UK  BAT Group company 176,404 (62,967)
 BAT Holdings Limited Holding company 267,081 (5,176)
 BAT Asia-Pacific Region Limited BAT Group company 15,385 (13,539)
 BAT Aspac Service Centre BAT Group company 95,773 (25,997)
 BAT Korea  BAT Group company 132 (133)
 BAT Korea manufacturing Limited BAT Group company 728 -
 BAT Singapore BAT Group company 29 -
 
 c. Purchase of goods WM Purchase
 Purchase of leaf and wrapping materials from:

 BAT Singapore BAT Group company 295,864 3,834
 BAT (GLP) Limited** BAT Group company 493,450 11,586

 d. Royalty
 Royalty paid/payable to:

 BAT Holdings Limited*** Holding company 391,433 (711,098)

 e. Technical and advisory fee T&A
 Payment of fees for technical and advisory support services to:

 BAT Holdings Limited Holding company 705,157 (705,157)

 f. Purchase of equipment Capex

 BAT Australia Limited BAT Group company 51,422 -
 BAT Germany Limited BAT Group company 21,513 -
 Ceylon Tobacco Company Limited BAT Group company 8,732 -
 
 h. Sale of Fixed Asset to Key Management Personnel 4,050 - 
 

 One fully depreciated vehicle was sold to a non-executive key management person through proper competitive 
bidding procedure.  The transaction has been fully settled.     

*    Advance received    
  ** Advance paid    
  ***Closing balance consists of Royalty of 2012 which will be paid in 2014
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  2013 2012
     
   Taka '000s  Taka '000s

32. Capital expenditure commitments
 Contracted but not provided for in these financial statements 
 in the areas of property, plant and office 308,639 336,810

33. Segment Reporting

 The Company is domiciled in Bangladesh. The revenue from external customers is BDT 108,394,687 thousand (2012: 
BDT 88,263,788 thousand). The Company does not have any non current assets that are located outside Bangladesh. 
There are also no revenue arising from transactions with a single external customer that comprises 10% or more of the 
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

 The Company is a single product business primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of cigarettes in Bangladesh 
and this forms the focus of the Company's internal reporting system. While the Company has clearly differentiated 
brands, segmentation within a wide portfolio of brands is not part of the regular internally reported financial informa-
tion to the chief operating decision maker. Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company's results by brand 
without a high degree of estimation.

 Apart from cigarette manufacturing, the Company exports leaf outside of Bangladesh, which contributes less than 10% 
of gross and net turnover. However, the break up of cigarette and export sales has been provided in Note 18.

34. Consumption of imported and local raw materials

          2013   2012

                                  Wrapping  Wrapping
                                  materials  Leaf  materials Leaf

  Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s  Taka '000s  

 Imported:         

 Opening stock 242,742 488,366 264,848 449,232

 Purchases 2,890,530 1,421,024 2,251,068 1,519,095

 Consumption (2,658,465) (1,446,395) (2,273,174) (1,479,961)

 Closing stock (a) 474,807 462,996 242,742  488,367

 Domestic:         

 Opening stock 170,986 2,843,500 38,885 3,160,287

 Purchases 4,006,921 7,045,016 3,662,442 5,499,667

 Consumption (4,029,386) (4,758,243) (3,530,341) (3,969,501)

 Export - (1,427,705) - (1,846,953)

 Closing stock (b) 148,521 3,702,569 170,986 2,843,500

 Closing stock (a+b) 623,328 4,165,565 413,728 3,331,868

 As the Company deals in large number of items which vary in units, item-wise quantity statement of raw materials 
could not be given.

35. Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value 
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk 
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a risk management committee under policies & procedure approved by the audit 
committee. The committee identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co operation with the Company's Treasury 
function. The Treasury function is governed by the Treasury committee, headed by the Finance Director and within 
the requirements of an approved treasury policy.
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Market Risk

i)  Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US 
Dollar, Euro and the British Pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions of recognized assets 
and liabilities. Management complies with the treasury policy to manage foreign exchange risk against the functional 
currency.          
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows on the reporting dates:    
  

         

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year: 

   Exchange rates as at

  31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012

 US Dollar (USD) 77.67 79.78

 Great Britain Pound (GBP) 128.63 129.67

 Euro (EUR) 107.02 105.18

The Company considers a 5% strengthening or weakening of the functional currency against non-functional currencies as a 
reasonably possible change. At December 31, 2013  if the functional currency had weakened/strengthened by 5% against 
foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, the profit after taxation for the year would not show any material 
changes.

ii) Price risk 
            

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial statement will fluctuate because of a change 
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded 
in the market.
         
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk since there are no investments in equity securities. The Company is also not 
directly exposed to commodity price risk. 
    
iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no long term interest bearing assets or liabilities, the Company's income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rate. 

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to 
discharge a contractual obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from trade debtors, advances and prepayments and cash at bank. 
Group treasury guidelines are followed for managing cash and cash equivalents while short term investment decisions are

  EUR GBP USD EUR GBP USD

Foreign currency denominated assets

Receivable from related parties - 15,715 11,289 - 6,369 10,281 

Accounts receivable 82,082 2,574 102,808 - - 40,658

Cash at bank - - 329,051 300 349 410,241

  82,082 18,289 443,148 300 6,718 461,180

Foreign currency denominated liabilities

Payable to related parties - 63,954 137,308 - 47,424 737,092

Trade and other payables 13,143 46,761 253,522 - - 108,634

  13,143 110,715 390,830 - 47,424 845,726

Net exposure 68,939 (92,426) 52,318 300 (40,706) (384,546)

  2013           2012

‘000s BDT ‘000s BDT
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taken after proper review by Treasury committee ensuring compliance with group guidelines. The Company operates 
almost on a 100% cash sales modality while credits are extended for a very short period to selected distributors during 
extended bank holidays after taking proper approval from the Finance & Marketing functions. As a security for the credit 
given, cheques for the equivalent amount of credit are collected from customers and kept under the custody of the 
Company. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date in terms of carrying value of assets are as follows:  

      
   2013 2012

   Taka '000s  Taka '000s

 Receivables from trade debtors (note 6) 244,645  324,760

 Receivables from intercompany (note 6) 27,427  25,217  

 Receivables from sundry debtors (note 6) 16,861  18,516  

 Agricultural input adjustment (note 6) 465,251  524,721 

    754,184  893,214

 Cash at banks (note 8) 1,916,064  2,275,209

   2,670,248  3,168,423 

 

 The aging of receivables as at 31 December 2012 was:

  0-30 days 310,795  443,277 

  31-60 days 262,285  189,291 

  61-90 days 157,494  233,982 

  91-180 days 20,679  25,437 

  181-365 days 2,932  -   

  More than 365 days -  1,227 

   754,184  893,214

   
Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to honour its financial obligations  as they fall due. 

The Company's management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position, expressed in cash and cash equivalents on 
the basis of expected cash flow and ensure saccess to short term credit as per the credit limit approved by the Board 
whenever needed in order to meet the high working capital funding requirements and implement investment decisions. As 
at 31 December  2013, the Company's entire borrowing facility remained unutilized and also the Company had BDT 1.92 
billion cash and bank balances. Considering the foregoing, and also the fact that the Company was in a positive working 
capital position as at the year end, management considers the liquidity risk to be low.

Relevant non-derivative financial liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

  2013 2012

  Taka '000s Taka '000s

 Trade creditors (note 16) 1,552,406 1,539,414

 Provident/Pension funds (note 16) - 13,980

 Unclaimed dividend (note 16) 33,051 30,886

 Intercompany (note 16) 1,732,939 1,175,230

 Sundry creditors (note 16) 43,201 123,255

  3,361,597 2,882,765 

a) Aging of relevant non-derivative financial liabilities

 0-30 days 525,426  2,036,556 

 31-60 days 1,067,277  117,059

 61-90 days 622,205  172,414

 91-180 days  146,058  331,401 

 181-365 days 608,774  170,525

 More than 365 days 379,378  54,810

   3,349,118  2,882,765

 Fair value estimation

 The carrying values of applicable financial instruments represent their fair values.
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36. Sale of property, plant and equipment

 *All vehicles were sold in auction as per policy of the company

37. System Upgradation    

From 2014, the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software "SAP" has been upgraded from previous "Symphony" 
version to the latest "OneSAP" version. This upgradation was completed successfully and is expected to improve 
overall control and processes.     

38. Events after the reporting date    

For the year 2013, an interim cash dividend of 100% i.e. BDT. 10 per share amounting to BDT. 600,000,000 was paid in 
November 2013. The Board of Directors recommended a final cash dividend of 520% i.e. BDT. 52 per share amounting 
to BDT. 3,120,000,000 at the board meeting held on 26 February, 2014. As a result, total 620% cash dividend for the 
year 2013, inclusive of 100% interim cash dividend, is recommended by the Board of Directors for approval in the 41st 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.    

39. Contingent liabilities    

There are certain pending legal, tax and VAT claims made against the Company, which will be settled through the 
legal process in due course. These are being vigorously defended by the Company. The management have not 
considered it necessary at the reporting date to make provisions in the financial statements in respect of any of 
these claims.      

       

 Shehzad Munim                 Anthony Yong Md. Azizur Rahman
 Managing Director               Director   Company Secretary  

Plant and Machinery  833,230 741,136 92,095 6,027 As per company policy Third party

Office Equipment  27,764 25,969 1,795 167  Do Third party

Furniture and fixtures 122 70 51 42 Do  Third party

Vehicles*  62,965 60,752 2,213 36,110 Do Employees of  
      the Company

 2013 924,081 827,927 96,154 42,346

 2012 64,091 60,443 3,648 30,145

Original

cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Mode of
disposalBook value PurchaserSale value

Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s Taka '000s
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evwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß

GZØviv Rvbv‡bv hv‡”Q †h, weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv wb‡gœ 
ewY©Z welqvw` m¤úv`bK‡í AvMvgx 23 GwcÖj 2014 †ivR eyaevi mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡U †mvbviMuvI †nv‡Uj, 107 KvRx 
bRiæj Bmjvg GwfwbD, XvKv-1215-Gi ejiæ‡g AbywôZ n‡e:

 1. 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Avw_©K weeiYx, cwiPvjKgÐjxi cÖwZ‡e`b Ges wbix¶Ke„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b 
MÖnY, we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`b|

 2. 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii jf¨vsk †NvlYv|

 3. cwiPvjKgÐjxi wbe©vPb|

 4. 2014 mv‡ji Rb¨ wewae× wbix¶K wb‡qvM Ges Zvu‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viY|

   †ev‡W©i wb‡`©k Abymv‡i
   

7 GwcÖj 2014 †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb GdwmGm
   †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

`ªóe¨:

  12 gvP© 2014 n‡”Q †iKW© †WU| †h mKj †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi bvg D³ Zvwi‡L †Kv¤úvwbi m`m¨ ewn wKsev wW‡cvwRUwi 
ewn‡Z ˆeafv‡e _vK‡e, Zviv GB 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †hvM`vb Ki‡Z cvi‡eb Ges jf¨vsk jv‡fi †hvM¨ e‡j 
we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

  hw` †Kv‡bv †kqvi‡nvìvi cÖwZwbwa wb‡qvM Ki‡Z Pvb, Z‡e Zv‡K Aek¨B ÷¨v¤úmn cÖwZwbwa digwU †Kv¤úvwbi 
†iwR÷vW©  Awd‡m 21 GwcÖj 2014 ZvwiL mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡Ui g‡a¨ Rgv w`‡Z n‡e|

  ïaygvÎ †kqvi‡nvìviMY A_ev AvBb Abyhvqx Zv‡`i g‡bvbxZ cÖwZwbwaivB GB mfvq Ask wb‡Z cvi‡eb|

  weÁwßi mv‡_ cvVv‡bv nvwRiv w¯øc cÖ`k©‡bi ci mfvq cÖ‡e‡ki AwaKvi †`qv n‡e|

  mfvq wkï‡`i cÖ‡ekvwaKvi †bB|
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
  

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i cÖwZ wbix¶Ke„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b
Avgiv weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n wbixÿv K‡iwQ hvi g‡a¨ D‡jøL i‡q‡Q 31 wW‡m¤^i 
2013 Zvwi‡L Avw_©K Ae¯’v, mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx, gvwjKvbv ¯^‡Z¡i cwieZ©b weeiYx I mgvß eQ‡ii bM` A_© cÖevn weeiYx Ges 
¸iæZ¡c~Y© wnmveiÿY bxwZi mvivsk I Ab¨vb¨ e¨vL¨vg~jK Z_¨|

Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„c‡ÿi `vwqZ¡
evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (weGdAviGm), †Kv¤úvwb AvBb 1994, wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 Ges AvBb 
I weav‡bi mv‡_ m½wZ †i‡L Gme Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ¯‘ZKiY I myôzfv‡e Dc¯’vcb e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„c‡ÿi ̀ vwqZ¡| GQvovI e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„cÿ 
Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿‡Yi gva¨‡g e¯‘MZ ÎæwUwePz¨wZ gy³ Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b Dc¯’vcbv wbwðZ K‡i|

wbixÿK‡`i `vwqZ¡
Avgv‡`i `vwqZ¡ n‡”Q, Avgv‡`i wbixÿvi Ici wfwË K‡i cÖ¯‘ZK…Z GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Ici gZvgZ cÖKvk Kiv| Avgv‡`i GB wbixÿv, 
evsjv‡`k ÷¨vÛvW©m Ab AwWwUs (weGmG) Gi bxwZgvjv Abymv‡i cwiPvjbv Kiv n‡q‡Q| GB mKj Avek¨Kxq Pvwn`vi g‡a¨ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© n‡jv 
bxwZgvjv †g‡b Pjv Ges wbixÿvwU Ggbfv‡e cwiKíbv Ges cwiPvjbv Kiv †hb Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b †Kv‡bviƒc e¯‘MZ Am½wZ ˆZwi bv nq|

GKwU wbixÿvi cÖavb Kvh©vewji g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi A‡_©i AsK msµvšÍ DcvËmg~‡ni h‡_ó cÖgvbvw` msMÖn Kiv| wbixÿvi cš’v 
wba©vi‡Yi `vwqZ¡ wbixÿ‡Ki Ici Awc©Z, hvi g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q B”QvK…Z ev Awb”QvK…Zfv‡e m„ó e¯‘MZ Am½wZi SzuwK wbY©q Kiv| GB mKj SzuwK 
wba©vi‡Yi †ÿ‡Î cwiw¯’wZi Ici wfwË K‡i Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ¯‘Z Kiv nq Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿‡Yi Ici wbf©i K‡i| Z‡e G‡ÿ‡Î Af¨šÍixY 
wbqš¿‡Yi h_v_©Zv wb‡q gZvgZ cÖKvk Kiv Gi D‡Ïk¨ bq| wbixÿvq, wnmveiÿ‡Y e¨eüZ cš’vmg~‡ni h_v_©Zv Ges e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„K 
wba©viYK…Z AvbygvwbKZvi †hŠw³K Askmg~n wbwðZ Kiv nq Ges Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi cÖKvkbvi gvb`Ð wePvi Kiv nq|

Avgv‡`i wek¦vm, GB wbixÿvi Ici Avgv‡`i gZvgZ cÖKv‡ki Rb¨ Avgiv h‡_ó I h_v_© Z_¨vw` AR©b K‡iwQ|

gZvgZ
Avgv‡`i g‡Z, evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (weGdAviGm) Abyhvqx ˆZwi Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n 31 wW‡m¤^i, 2012 Zvwi‡L 
†Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Ae¯’vb I †mB Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Kg©Kv‡Ði djvdj I bM` A_© cÖev‡ni mZ¨ I h_v_© wPÎ cÖ`vb K‡i Ges †Kv¤úvwb 
AvBb 1994, wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 Ges Ab¨vb¨ AvBb I weav‡bi mv‡_ m½wZ iv‡L|

Avgiv AviI D‡jøL KiwQ †hÑ
K) Avgv‡`i Rvbv g‡Z GB wbixÿvKv‡h©i Rb¨ hveZxq Z_¨vw` I e¨vL¨vmg~n Avgiv †c‡qwQ Ges h_vh_fv‡e hvPvB K‡iwQ|
L) Avgv‡`i AwfgZ I cixÿY Abyhvqx, †Kv¤úvwb wnmveiÿ‡Yi Rb¨ AvBb Abyhvqx h_vh_ eB msiÿY Kiv n‡q _v‡K|

  M) †Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx Ges mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx wnmveiÿY eB‡qi mv‡_ m½wZc~Y© Ges 
  N) hveZxq e¨q msNwUZ n‡q‡Q †Kv¤úvwbi e¨emvwqK D‡Ï‡k¨|

       G. Kv‡kg GÛ †Kvs 
       wbixÿK

XvKv, 26 †deªæqvwi 2014  

Gulshan Pink City
Suites # 01-03, Level : 7
Plot # 15, Road # 103,
Gulshan Avenue
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.
Phone : 880-2-8881824-6
Fax : 880-2-8881822
E-mail : aqasem@aqcbd.com
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Abyhvqx

m¤ú` UxKv 2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
¯’vqx m¤ú`:
m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ  4 8,513,167  5,861,627

PjwZ m¤ú`:
gRy`  5 6,626,703  4,956,887
evwYR¨ I Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨ 6 770,917 937,873
AwMÖg, Rgv I AwMÖg cwi‡kva 7 634,885 999,016
bM` A_© I mgZzj¨ 8 1,918,126 2,279,090
†gvU PjwZ m¤ú`  9,950,631 9,172,866
†gvU m¤ú`      18,463,798 15,034,493

gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡ Ges `vq

†Kv¤úvwbi ¯^ZvaxKvix Ici Av‡ivwcZ gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡:
†kqvi g~jab  9 600,000 600,000
msiw¶Z g~jab Znwej  10 64,896 64,896
msiw¶Z gybvdv Znwej  11  8,236,694 6,368,044
†gvU gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡      8,901,590 7,032,940

A-PjwZ `vq:
MÖ¨vPzBwU 12 364,063 240,592
wejw¤^Z Ki `vq 13 883,376 723,643
Avw_©K BRvivi eva¨evaKZv (GK eQi ci cÖ‡hvR¨) 14.2 - 7,541

†gvU A-PjwZ `vq   1,247,439 971,776

PjwZ `vq:
msiw¶Z e¨q 15 2,338,056 2,188,035
e¨emv I Ab¨vb¨ `vq 16  3,701,889 3,245,676
AvqKi Gi `vq 17 2,267,283 1,585,731
Avw_©K BRvivi eva¨evaKZv (GK eQ‡ii g‡a¨ cÖ‡hvR¨) 14.1  7,541 10,335
†gvU PjwZ `vq  8,314,769 7,029,777
†gvU gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡ I `vq  18,463,798 15,034,493

ms‡hvwRZ 1-39 UxKvmg~n GB wnmv‡ei Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask|

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                              A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                  †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                             cwiPvjK                                                        †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

                                             Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|

 

 XvKv, 26 †deªæqvwi 2014                                                                                                                   G. Kv‡kg GÛ †Kvs 
   wbixÿK
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx

31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨

    2013    2012    
 UxKv UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
weµqjä A_©   109,581,710 90,174,080
ïé I g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki    (78,356,273) (62,702,736)
†bU weµqjã A_© 18 31,225,437 27,471,344
weµq msµvšÍ e¨q 19 (17,501,330) 15,946,224
†gvU gybvdv   13,724,107 11,525,120
cwiPvjb e¨q 20 (4,219,739) 4,612,418
cwiPvjb gybvdv   9,504,368 6,912,702
Ab¨vb¨ Avq 21 89,661 50,820
†bU Avw_©K e¨q 22 (11,215) (119,878)
    9,582,814 6,843,644
†Kv¤úvwbi gybvdvq kªwg‡Ki AskMÖnY Znwej   (479,141) 342,182
AvqKi c~e© gybvdv   9,103,673 6,501,462
AvqKi msµvšÍ e¨q
   PjwZ Ki  23.1 (3,988,381) 2,505,258
   wejw¤^Z Ki 23.2 (191,165) 54,564
    (4,179,546) 2,559,822
eQ‡ii gybvdv   4,924,127 3,941,640
 Kgx©‡`i mywe`v‡_© G¨vKPzwiqvj g~j¨vqb   (86,910) -
 G¨vKPzwiqvj g~j¨vqb †_‡K wejw¤^Z Ki   31,432 -

Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Avq   (55,478) -
me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq   4,868,649 3,941,640

     UvKv
†kqvi cÖwZ Avq 24 81.14 65.69

ms‡hvwRZ 1-39 UxKvmg~n GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask| 

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                              A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                  †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                             cwiPvjK                                                        †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

                                             Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|

 

 XvKv, 26 †deªæqvwi 2014                                                                                                                   G. Kv‡kg GÛ †Kvs 
   wbixÿK
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
gvwjKvbv ¯^‡Z¡i cwieZ©b weeiYx

31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨
 †kqvi  msiw¶Z  msiw¶Z   
 g~jab  g~jab Znwej gybvdv Znwej †gvU
 UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000

1 Rvbyqvwi 2012 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ  600,000 5,246,404 64,896 5,911,300

cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk 2012: - (2,820,000) - (2,820,000)

 P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk 2011 - (2,220,000) - (2,220,000)

 AšÍe©Zx©Kvjxb jf¨vsk 2012 - (600,000) - (600,000)

me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq 2012 - 3,941,640 - 3,941,640

31 wW‡m¤^i 2011 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 6,368,044 64,896 7,032,940

1 Rvbyqvwi 2012 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 6,368,044 64,896 7,032,940

cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk 2013: - (3,000,000) - (3,000,000)

 P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk 2012 - (2,400,000) - (2,400,000)

 AšÍe©Zx©Kvjxb jf¨vsk 2013 - (600,000) - (600,000)

me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq 2013 - 4,868,649 - 4,868,649

31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 8,236,694 64,896 8,901,590

ms‡hvwRZ 1-39 UxKvmg~n GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask| 

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                                     A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                   †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                                    cwiPvjK                                                         †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

                                             Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|

 

 XvKv, 26 †deªæqvwi 2014                                                                                                                   G. Kv‡kg GÛ †Kvs 
   wbixÿK
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
bM` A_© cÖev‡ni weeiYx

31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨

  2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
cwiPvjbv Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` A_© cÖevn:  
cwi‡ekK, ZvgvK ißvwb Ges Ab¨vb¨ Avq †_‡K jä  109,659,616 90,283,106

g~j¨ Ges LiPvw` cwi‡kva  (23,591,083) (21,582,397)

m¤ú~iK ïé Ges g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki cÖ`vb     (76,726,491) (61,324,848)

cwiPvjbv Kvh©µg †_‡K cÖvß bM` A_©  9,342,042 7,375,861

cwi‡kvaK…Z AvqKi   (3,306,829) (1,897,470)

cwi‡kvaK…Z my`      (11,215) (119,878)

cwiPvjbv Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` A_©    6,023,998 5,358,513

wewb‡qvM Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` A_© cÖevn:
m¤úwË, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ µq  (3,419,137) (1,116,245)

m¤úwË, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ weµqjä Avq   42,345 30,145

wewb‡qvM Kvh©µ‡g bM` A‡_©i e¨envi  (3,376,792) (1,086,100)

Avw_©K Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` A_© cÖevn:  

Avw_©K BRviv cwi‡kva   (10,335) (17,025)

cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk   (2,997,835) (2,813,690)

Avw_©K Kvh©µ‡g bM` A‡_©i e¨envi   (3,008,170) (2,830,715)

eQ‡ii †bU bM` A_© I A_©m`„k m¤ú‡`i e„w×/(n«vm)  (360,964) 1,441,697

eQ‡ii cÖviw¤¢K bM` A_© I A_©m`„k m¤ú`   2,279,090 837,393

eQ‡ii mgvcbx bM` A_© I A_©m`„k m¤ú`   1,918,126 2,279,090

ms‡hvwRZ 1-39 UxKvmg~n GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask|

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                              A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                  †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                             cwiPvjK                                                        †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

                                             Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|

 

 XvKv, 26 †deªæqvwi 2014                                                                                                                   G. Kv‡kg GÛ †Kvs 
   wbixÿK
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
wnmve msµvšÍ UxKv

wW‡m¤^i 31, 2013 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨

1. cÖwZôv‡bi AvBbMZ iƒc Ges e¨emvi aib
 
 weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW GKwU cvewjK wjwg‡UW †Kv¤úvwb hv evsjv‡`‡k wbewÜZ Ges 

Gi †kqvi XvKv I PÆMÖvg ÷K G·‡PÄmg~‡n ZvwjKvfy³| †Kv¤úvwbi †iwRw÷ªK…Z Kvh©vjq n‡”Q wbD wWIGBPGm 
†ivW, gnvLvjx, XvKv-1206, evsjv‡`k|

 
 GB †Kv¤úvwb wewfbœ AvšÍR©vwZK Ges ¯’vbxq wmMv‡iU eª¨vÛ †hgb: †ebmb A¨vÛ †n‡Rm, Rb †cøqvi †Mvì wjd, cvj 

gvj, K¨vc÷vb, ÷vi, Wvwe©, cvBjU Ges nwjDW wmMv‡iU Drcv`b Ges evRviRvZ K‡i _v‡K|
 
 †Kv¤úvwbi cÖavb Kvh©vjq Ges wmMv‡iU ˆZwii KviLvbv XvKvq Aew¯’Zv Kzwóqv‡Z wMÖbwjd †_ªwks cø¨v›U, gvwbKM‡Ä 

wMÖbwjd wiWªvBs cø¨v›U Ges †`kRy‡o †ek K‡qKwU wjd Ges †mjm Awdm i‡q‡Q|
 
2. cÖ¯‘ZKi‡Yi wfwË
 
2.1. AvbygvwbK avivevwnK e¨emv bxwZ
 
 †Kv¤úvwbi †evW© Ae wW‡i±i‡`i g‡Z †Kv¤úvwb GKwU avivevwnK e¨emvq bxwZ AbymiY K‡i| ZvB Avw_©K weeiYx 

aivevwnK e¨emvq bxwZ AbymiY K‡i ˆZwi Kiv n‡q‡Q|
 
2.2 wnmvei¶‡Yi KvVv‡gv/m½wZ
 
 GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`bwU evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (weGdAviGm), †Kv¤úvwb A¨v± 1994, 

wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 Ges Ab¨vb¨ AvBb I weav‡bi mv‡_ m½wZ eRvq †i‡L cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q| 
wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 †Z wb‡`©wkZ wewa Abyhvqx cwiPvjbv Kg©Kv‡Ði bM` A_© cÖev‡ni wnmve Kiv 
n‡q‡Q|

 
2.3 Aby‡gv`b
 
 cwiPvjbv cl©` KZ©„K GB Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n 26 †deªæqvwi, 2014 Zvwi‡L Aby‡gvw`Z|
 
2.4 wnmvei¶‡Yi wfwË
 GB Avw_©K weeiYxwU cÖK…Z Li‡Pi LwZqv‡bi Av‡jv‡K ˆZwi Kiv n‡q‡Q|

2.5 weeiYxi Avw_©K g~j¨vq‡bi GKK
 
 GB Avw_©K weeiYxwU evsjv‡`kx UvKvi gvb`‡Ð wnmve Kiv n‡q‡Q| Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z cÖ`wk©Z mKj A_©g~j¨Zv `kwgK 

hy³ msL¨vi †¶‡Î wbKUeZ©x c~Y© msL¨v e¨envi Kiv n‡q‡Q|
 
2.6 AbywgwZi e¨envi Ges g~j¨vqb
 weGdAviGm Abymv‡i GB Avw_©K weeiYx cÖ¯‘wZ‡Z wnmvei¶Y bxwZ‡Z `vq, Avq Ges Li‡Pi e¨envwiK bxwZi g~j¨vqb, 

wnmve Ges AbywgwZi Avkªq †bqv n‡q‡Q| ev¯ÍweK wnmve Gme wbixw¶Z wnmve †_‡K wfbœ n‡Z cv‡i|

 G mKj g~j wnmve I AbywgwZ¸‡jv GKwU Pjgvb cÖwµqvq cybtch©‡e¶Y Kiv hvq| wnmv‡ei AbywgwZ¸‡jv ZLbB wPwýZ 
Kiv nq †h mg‡q AbywgwZ¸‡jv cybg©~j¨vqb Kiv nq|
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2.7 Zzjbvg~jK Z_¨vw`
 
 2012 mv‡ji mKj Avw¼K Z_¨vw` GB Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q PjwZ eQ‡ii Avw_©K Ae¯’v‡bi mv‡_ 

Zzjbvg~jK wePvi m„wói D‡Ï‡k¨|   PjwZ eQ‡ii mv‡_ h_v‡hvM¨ Zzjbvi D‡Ï‡k¨ Ges cÖvmw½K weGGm Gi mv‡_ AbyeZ©x 
nIqvi Rb¨ 2012 mv‡ji  Avw¼K Z_¨mg~n‡K cÖ‡qvRb Abymv‡i bZzb K‡i mvRv‡bv n‡q‡Q| we¯ÍvwiZ AbymÜv‡bi Rb¨ 
38 bs UxKv †`Lyb|

 
2.8 gIKzd
 
 weGGm 1 Ges weGGm 32 Abymv‡i wb¤œewY©Z kZ©vejx c~iYmv‡c‡ÿ wbw`©ó we‡µZv wKsev †µZv‡K ÿwZc~iY †`qv nq: 
 - Dfq c‡ÿiB ci¯ú‡ii Kv‡Q wba©viY‡hvM¨ A¼ cvIbv _vK‡j
 - †Kv‡bv GK c‡ÿi Ab¨ c‡ÿi cvIbv UvKv gIKz‡di AwaKvi _vK‡j 
 - GK c‡ÿi gIKz‡di B”Qv _vK‡j
 - gIKz‡di AwaKvi AvBbvbyM n‡j|
 
3. ¸iæZ¡c~Y© wnmvei¶Y bxwZ
 
 †h mKj wnmvei¶Y bxwZ e¨eüZ n‡q‡Q Zv c‡ii cvZvq ewY©Z n‡jv Ges †m mKj bxwZmg~n wbqwgZfv‡e weeiYxi 

wewfbœ av‡c e¨eüZ n‡q‡Q|

3.1 ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv
 
 ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv †jb‡`bmg~n‡K †jb‡`‡bi wbw`©ó w`‡bi wewbgq g~‡j¨i wfwË‡Z evsjv‡`kx UvKvq iƒcvšÍi Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq wPwýZ Avw_©K m¤úwË Ges `vqmg~n‡KI wbw`©ó w`‡bi wewbgq g~‡j¨i wfwË‡Z evsjv‡`kx UvKvq iƒcvšÍi 
Kiv n‡q‡Q| ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbg‡q ZviZg¨ jvf¶wZ wnmv‡e D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q| Abvw_©K wRwbmmg~n †h¸‡jv 
ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq wnmve Kiv nq †m¸‡jv‡KI †jb‡`‡bi wbw`©ó w`‡bi wewbgq g~‡j¨i wfwË‡Z evsjv‡`kx UvKvq iƒcvšÍi 
Kiv n‡q‡Q|

3.2 m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ

3.2.1 ¯^xK…wZ Ges cwigvc
 
 m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw`mg~n wbY©q Ki‡Z µq g~j¨ n‡Z ev` †`Iqv nq cywÄf~Z AePq Ges cywÄf~Z AKvh©KvwiZv 

cÖm~Z ¶q¶wZ|
 
 µqg~‡j¨i g‡a¨ AšÍf©y³ LiPmg~n n‡jv m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw`i mivmwi µq LiP| wbg©vYvaxb m¤úwË, KviLvbv 

Ges hš¿vw`¸‡jv cÖ`wk©Z n‡q‡Q cÖK…Z LiP Abyhvqx| KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw` ev‡` m¤ú~Y© AePq n‡q hvIqv m¤úwËmg~n 
wnmv‡ei eB‡Z Avbv n‡q‡Q cÖK„Z Li‡Pi GK kZvsk wn‡m‡e| m¤ú~Y© AePq n‡q hvIqv KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw`mg~n 
wnmv‡ei eB‡Z †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q GK UvKv g~‡j¨|

 
 wewµZ m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw` n‡Z Avq Ges ¶wZ wba©vwiZ n‡q‡Q D³ m¤úwËmg~‡ni wjwLZ g~j¨ n‡Z wewµZ 

A_© ev` †`Iqvi ci Ges hv wK bv jvf †jvKmvb wn‡m‡e †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|
 
3.2.2 cÖvmw½K LiP
 
 †Kv‡bv m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw`i cybtms‡hvRb LiP‡K m¤úwËi g~j¨ wn‡m‡e wPwýZ Kiv n‡q‡Q, †m‡¶‡Î hLb 

GwU we‡ewPZ n‡q‡Q †h, G mKj LiP fwel¨‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi Rb¨ A_©‰bwZK DbœwZ mvab Ki‡e Ges hLb Zv 
MÖnY‡hvM¨Zvi mv‡_ cwigvc Kiv †M‡Q|

 
 m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿vw`i cÖvZ¨wnK iÿYv‡eÿY LiP mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z LiPK…Z wn‡m‡e †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|
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3.2.3  AePq
 
 AePq wbY©q Kiv nq AePq‡hvM¨ cwigvY n‡Z hv †Kv‡bv m¤úwËi g~j¨ A_ev Li‡Pi cÖwZK‡íi cwigvY †_‡K Gi 

we‡qvMK…Z evowZ g~j¨| 
 
 AePq mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv nq Ges Gi wnmve †÷ªBU jvBb †g_‡W Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges m¤ú` µ‡qi gv‡mi 

Ici wfwË K‡i AvbycvwZK nv‡i AePq avh© Kiv n‡q‡Q| f‚wg‡Z AePq avh© Kiv nq bvB| wewfbœ K¨vUvMwi‡Z, cÖwZ eQi 
wn‡m‡e Ges Aewkó g~j¨ m¤ú‡`i AeP‡qi wnmve wb‡gœ †`qv n‡jv:

    e¨envi mgqKvj (eQi) Aewkó g~j¨
  jv‡LivR feb  40  1%
  BRviv‡Z †bqv feb 22  1%
  KviLvbv Ges †gwkbvwi 5/14  UvKv 1
  j¨ve‡iUwi Ges hš¿vw` 14  1%
  Awdm miÄvg  3/4/10  1%
  AvmevecÎ Ges mvR-miÄvg 10  1%
  Gqvi KwÛkbvi  4  1%
  hvbevnb  4  1%

3.3 BRvivK…Z m¤úwË
 †h mKj BRvivi †¶‡Î †Kv¤úvwb gvwjKvbv welqK mKj ai‡bi SuzwK Ges cyi¯‹v‡ii `vwe`vi nq Zv‡`i‡K Avw_©K 

BRviv e‡j| cÖv_wgK mbv³Ki‡Yi ci BRvivK…Z m¤úwË Zvi fvovi cÖK…Z g~j¨ †_‡K wbgœ g~‡j¨ Ges b~¨bZg BRviv 
g~‡j¨i eZ©gvb g~‡j¨ wnmve Kiv n‡q‡Q| †mBmv‡_ wnmvei¶‡Yi bxwZ Abyhvqx GB mKj m¤úwË‡K m¤úwË wn‡m‡e MY¨ 
Kiv n‡q‡Q|

3.4 gRy`
 mgq mv‡cÿ weµq Ges AevwÂZ `ªe¨vw`i Rb¨ wbw`©ó g~j¨ wba©viY K‡i Zzjbvg~jK ¯^í g~j¨ Ges bxU wb¯úwËK…Z `‡ii 

Ici wfwË K‡i gRy` wba©viY Kiv nq| g~j¨ wba©viY Kiv nq I‡qB‡UW A¨vfv‡iR †g‡_vW Abymv‡i| cY¨`ªe¨ µ‡qi 
mg‡q Avbylw½K LiPmg~n, Drcv`b A_ev iƒcvšÍ‡ii LiP Ges eZ©gvb RvqMvq cY¨`ªe¨ wb‡q Avmvi Rb¨ †h mKj 
Avbylw½K LiP n‡q‡Q meB gRy`K…Z c‡Y¨i LiP wn‡m‡e †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|

  cY¨`ª‡e¨i AvbygvwbK weµqg~j¨ †_‡K wba©vwiZ µqg~j¨ Ges Drcv`‡bi Avbylw½K LiP ev` w`‡q Mo gybvdv g~j¨ 
wba©viY Kiv nq|

3.5 ¶q¶wZ
 †Kv‡bv ¶q¶wZi Aw¯ÍZ¡ Av‡Q wK bv Zv †evSvi Rb¨ gRy`K…Z cY¨`ªe¨ e¨ZxZ Ab¨vb¨ A-Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i enbK…Z 

cwigvY cÖwZ eQi cÖwZ‡e`b Rgv †`Iqvi w`‡b ch©‡e¶Y Kiv nq| hw` G ai‡bi wKQy cvIqv hvq Z‡e H m¤ú‡`i 
cybiæ×vi‡hvM¨ cwigvY wnmve Kiv nq Ges Gme ¶q¶wZ mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv nq|

3.6 e¨emv Ges Ab¨vb¨ Av`vq‡hvM¨ wnmve
 e¨emv Ges Ab¨vb¨ Av`vq‡hvM¨ wnmv‡ei g~j¨ cÖv_wgKfv‡e wPwýZ Kiv nq †mme Li‡Pi wfwË‡Z hv G‡`i wewbg‡q †`qv 

e¯‘i cÖK…Z g~‡j¨i mgvb| cÖv_wgKfv‡e mbv³Ki‡Yi ci cÖK…Z LiP †_‡K ¶wZi cwigvY ev` w`‡q G‡`i g~j¨ wba©viY 
Kiv nq, Gme ¶wZ Av`vq‡hvM¨ wnmve Abv`v‡qi Kvi‡Y n‡Z cv‡i| 

3.7 bM` A_© Ges Zvi mgZ~j¨
 GB cÖwZ‡e`b ˆZwi Kivi mgq nv‡Z Mw”QZ bM` A_© I e¨vs‡K iw¶Z UvKv, hv †Kv‡bv ai‡bi wb‡la QvovB †Kv¤úvwbi 

e¨env‡ii Rb¨ ivLv n‡q‡Q Zv‡K h_vµ‡g A_© Ges Zvi mgZ~j¨ wn‡m‡e aiv n‡q‡Q| 
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3.8 Aemi MÖnY myweav w¯‹g

3.8.1 wba©vwiZ †ewbwdU cwiKíbvmg~n

 g¨v‡bR‡g›U MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g
 weGGm 19 Abyhvqx, 2013 mv‡ji †deªæqvwi gvm ch©šÍ †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †hvM`vbKvix g¨v‡bRviM‡Yi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 

MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g i‡q‡Q| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z GKUvbv 5 eQi Kg©m¤úv`b-mv‡c‡ÿ m`m¨MY MÖ¨vPzBwU cv‡eb| mKj Dchy³ 
g¨v‡bRviM‡Yi Rb¨ cÖwZeQi GB msµvšÍ kZ©vejx ˆZwi Kiv nq| 

 
 g¨v‡bR‡g›U †cbkb dvÛ
 
 1987 mv‡ji 1 Rvbyqvwi †_‡K 2007 mv‡ji 31 AvM÷ ch©šÍ †h mKj g¨v‡bRvi †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †hvM`vb K‡i‡Qb, 

Zv‡`i Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwbi GKwU †cbkb w¯‹g Pvjy Av‡Q| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z GKUvbv 5 eQi Kg©m¤úv`b-mv‡c‡ÿ m`m¨MY GB 
dv‡Ûi Rb¨ Dchy³ e‡j we‡ewPZ n‡eb| GKwU Uªvw÷ †evW©-KZ…©K GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| GB dvÛ ïaygvÎ †mme 
g¨v‡bRv‡ii Rb¨ cÖ‡hvR¨ hviv evsjv‡`‡ki bvMwiK|

 
 ÔweGGm 19: Kg©Pvix myweavÕ Abyhvqx †`bvi cwigvY g~j¨vq‡bi gva¨‡g MÖ¨vPzBwU I †cbkb dv‡Ûi cwigvY MVb Kiv n‡q 

_v‡K| wba©vwiZ cø¨v‡bi AvIZvq wiUvqvi‡g›U †ewbwdU-Gi g‡Zv †Kv¤úvwbi `vq-Gi g~j¨vqb †_‡K D™¢‚Z †h‡Kv‡bv 
g~j¨vqbK…Z cÖvwß ev ÿwZ Ab¨vb¨ mgwš^Z Av‡q m¤ú~Y©iƒ‡c we‡ewPZ nq|

 
3.8.2 wba©vwiZ cÖ`vbRwbZ cø¨vbmg~n
  g¨v‡bR‡g›U MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g
 
 2013 mv‡ji 1 gvP© †_‡K cieZ©x mg‡q †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †hvM`vbKvix g¨v‡bRviM‡Yi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwb-KZ©„K GKwU 

ZnwejK…Z MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g cwiPvwjZ nq| †hvM`v‡bi ZvwiL †_‡K g¨v‡bRviM‡Yi Rb¨ wba©vwiZ GB dv‡Û †Kv¤úvwbi cÿ 
†_‡K g~j †eZ‡bi 15% A_© Rgv ivLv nq| GKwU Uªvw÷ †evW©-KZ…©K GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z GKUvbv 5 
eQi Kg©m¤úv`b-mv‡c‡ÿ m`m¨MY MÖ¨vPzBwU cv‡eb|

 
 cÖwf‡W›U dvÛ
 
 †Kv¤úvwb‡Z wbqwgZ PvKwii †ÿ‡Î wbwðZKi‡Yi wfwË‡Z m`m¨MY‡K cÖwf‡W›U dv‡Û AskMÖnY Ki‡Z nq, †hLv‡b 

Zv‡`i‡K g~j †eZ‡bi 10% cÖ`vb Ki‡Z nq| cÿvšÍ‡i, †mB dv‡Û †Kv¤úvwbi cÿ †_‡K mgcwigvY A_© Rgv ivLv nq| 
GKwU Uªvw÷ †evW©-KZ…©K GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z GKUvbv 5 eQi Kg©m¤úv`b-mv‡c‡ÿ m`m¨MY 
†Kv¤úvwb-KZ©„K cÖ`vbK…Z GB A_© cv‡eb|

 
 Ggcøwq MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g
 
 †Kv¤úvwb‡Z Kg©PvixM‡Yi †hvM`v‡bi w`b †_‡K Zv‡`i Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwb-KZ©„K GKwU ZnwejK…Z MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g cwiPvwjZ 

nq, †hLv‡b †Kv¤úvwbi cÿ †_‡K Kg©PvixM‡Yi g~j †eZ‡bi 15% A_© Rgv ivLv nq| GKwU Uªvw÷ †evW©-KZ…©K GB dvÛ 
cwiPvwjZ nq| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z GKUvbv 5 eQi Kg©m¤úv`b-mv‡c‡ÿ m`m¨MY †Kv¤úvwb-KZ©„K cÖ`vbK…Z GB A_© cv‡eb|

 mgwš^Z Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z wba©vwiZ cÖ`vbRwbZ cø¨vb¸‡jv‡Z †Kv¤úvwb-KZ…©K cÖ`vbK…Z A_© e¨q wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ nq|

3.9  mwÂwZ
 hLb c~‡e©i NUbvi †cÖw¶‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi †Kv‡bv eZ©gvb AvBwb A_ev MVbg~jK eva¨evaKZv MÖnY‡hvM¨fv‡e g~j¨vqb Kiv 

hvq ZLb mwÂwZi e¨e¯’v Kiv nq Ges GwU m¤¢ve¨ †h H eva¨evaKZv wba©viY Ki‡Z A_©‰bwZK myweavw`i GKwU 
ewntcÖevn cÖ‡qvRb n‡e|

 cÖwZ wi‡cvwU©s‡qi mgq mwÂwZ cybg~©j¨vqb K‡i †`Lv nq I hy‡Mvc‡hvMx wnmve ˆZwi Kiv nq| GB kZ©¸‡jvi mwÂwZ nq 
hLb eva¨evaKZv¸‡jv †gUv‡Z Avw_©K jvfRbK m¤ú‡`i ewntcÖev‡ni m¤¢ve¨Zv _v‡K bv| 
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3.10 Avq kbv³KiY bxwZgvjv
 
3.10.1 cY¨ weµq
 
 hLb gvwjKvbvi SzuwK Ges cyi¯‹vi †µZvi Kv‡Q n¯ÍvšÍi Kiv nq, e¯‘i cybiæ×vi hLb m¤¢e nq, hLb e¯‘i Avbylw½K 

Li‡Pi m¤¢ve¨ jvf MÖnY‡hvM¨fv‡e wbY©q Kiv m¤¢e nq, hLb `ª‡e¨i mv‡_ †Kv‡bv Awew”Qbœ e¨e¯’vcbv RwoZ _v‡K bv 
Ges hLb jv‡fi cwigvY MÖnY‡hvM¨fv‡e wbY©q Kiv hvq, †mme †¶‡Î `ª‡e¨i weµq †_‡K jvf kbv³ Kiv hvq|

 
 †gvU †jb‡`‡bi cwigvY wbf©i K‡i ¯^‡`‡k wmMv‡iU weµq, ZvgvK ißvwb Ges evsjv‡`k miKvi‡K †`qv m¤ú~iK ïé, 

ißvwb ïé Ges g~j¨ ms‡hvRb K‡ii Ici wfwË K‡i|
 
3.10.2 my` †_‡K Avq
  
 ¯^í †gqv`x wewb‡qv‡Mi gva¨‡g my` †_‡K Avq n‡q _v‡K Ges DcwPwZ wfwË‡Z wPwýZ Kiv n‡q _v‡K|
 
3.11 †Kv¤úvwbi gybvdvq kªwg‡Ki AskMÖnY Znwej
 
 evsjv‡`k kªg AvBb 2006 Abymv‡i †Kv¤úvwbi jv‡fi 5% †Kv¤úvwbi gybvdvq kªwg‡Ki AskMÖnY Znwe‡j w`‡q _v‡K|
 
3.12 AvqKi
 
 AvqKi e¨q PjwZ Ges wejw¤^Z Ki wb‡q MwVZ| AvqKi e¨q‡K mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|
 
3.12.1 PjwZ Ki
 
 PjwZ Ki n‡”Q G eQ‡ii †gvU Ki‡hvM¨ Av‡qi Ici Kvw•LZ Ki hv cÖwZ‡e`b Zvwi‡L cÖ‡hvR¨ Ki nvi e¨envi K‡i 

MYbv Kiv nq Ges weMZ eQi¸‡jv‡Z cÖ‡`q K‡ii mv‡_ mgš^q Kiv nq| †h‡nZz GwU GKwU ÒcvewjKwj †Uª‡WW 
wmMv‡iU g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis †Kv¤úvwbÓ wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ, ZvB Gi cÖ‡hvR¨ K‡ii nvi 35%|

3.12.2 wejw¤^Z Ki
 
 Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b ˆZwii Rb¨ m¤ú` I `vqmg~‡ni  PjwZ cwigvY Ges AvqKi wba©vi‡Yi Rb¨ e¨eüZ cwigv‡Yi g‡a¨ 

mvgwqK cv_©K¨ ˆZwi Kivi gva¨‡g wejw¤^Z Ki we‡ePbv Kiv nq| wejw¤^Z Ki K‡ii nvimg~‡ni Av‡jv‡K cwigvc Kiv 
nq, hv mvgwqK cv_©K¨mg~n wecixZfv‡e cÖwZfvZ nIqvi †cÖw¶‡Z cÖ‡qvM Kiv nq, G‡¶‡Î, †h mg¯Í AvBb cÖYxZ 
n‡q‡Q ev cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ`v‡bi ZvwiL Øviv ev¯ÍweKfv‡e cÖYxZ n‡q‡Q, †m mg¯Í AvB‡bi Ici  wfwË K‡i wejw¤^Z Ki 
cwigvc Kiv nq| wejw¤^Z Kiv‡ivwcZ m¤ú` Ges `vqmg~‡ni mgZv weavb Kiv nq hw` PjwZ Kiv‡ivwcZ `vq I 
m¤ú`mg~‡ni mgZv weavb Kivi j‡¶¨ AvBbMZfv‡e cÖ‡qvM‡hvM¨ AwaKvi _v‡K Ges hw` †m¸‡jv GKB ai‡bi Ki 
cÖ`vb‡hvM¨ cÖwZôv‡b GKB Ki KZ©„c¶ KZ©„K Av‡ivwcZ Kimg~‡ni mv‡_ m¤úwK©Z _v‡K|

 
 GKwU wejw¤^Z Kiv‡ivwcZ m¤úwË H mxgv Aewa ¯^xK…Z nq hv‡Z fwel¨‡Z †h Ki‡hvM¨ gybvdvmg~n cvIqv hv‡e, Zvi 

wecix‡Z KZ©Y‡hvM¨ mvgwqK cv_©K¨ Kv‡R jvMv‡bv hvq| wejw¤^Z Kiv‡ivwcZ m¤úwËmg~n cÖ‡Z¨K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ`v‡bi 
Zvwi‡L cybtwe‡ePbv Kiv nq Ges G¸‡jv Ggb mxgv Aewa n«vm Kiv nq, hvi cwi‡cÖw¶‡Z mswkøó Ki-welqK gybvdv Avi 
ev¯Íevqb Kiv m¤¢e n‡e bv|

3.13 cÖwZ †kqv‡i Avq
 
 †Kv¤úvwb mvaviY †kqv‡ii Ici cÖwZ †kqv‡i Avq (BwcGm) wnmve K‡i _v‡K|

3.13.1 †gŠwjK †kqvi cÖwZ Avq 
 †gŠwjK †kqvi cÖwZ Avq †gvU jvf ev ¶wZ‡K (mvaviY †kqv‡ii Ici) fvi Av‡ivwcZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i msL¨v (mvaviY 

†kqvi‡nvìvi) Øviv fvM K‡i wnmve Kiv nq|
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3.14 cÿ m¤úwK©Z †jb‡`b
 †Kv‡bv g~j¨ avh© Kiv †nvK ev bv †nvK, GK c‡ÿi Avw_©K Ges cwiPjb bxwZ/wm×v‡šÍi Ici wbw`©ó cÖfve LvUv‡bvi 

AwaKvi m¤úwK©Z †h mKj †jb‡`b cwiPvwjZ †m mKj †jb‡`‡bi we¯ÍvwiZ cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q|

3.15 jfvsk
 evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †Kv¤úvwbi Askx`viMY jf¨vsk Aby‡gv`b KivKvjxb mg‡q Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z Zv‡`i‡K cÖ`Ë 

P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk‡K `vq wn‡m‡e aiv nq Ges jf¨vsk †NvlYv I cÖ`vb Kivi mgqKv‡j AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vsk wnmv‡e Avbv 
nq|

3.16 wefvMxq cÖwZ‡e`b
 GKwU wbw`©ó A_©‰bwZK cwi‡e‡k †Kv‡bv cÖKvi c‡Y¨i †mev cwi‡ek‡bi †ÿ‡Î †Kv‡bv cÖwZôv‡bi GKwU D‡jøL‡hvM¨ 

Ask n‡jv cÖwZôvbwUi wefvMmg~n| cÖavb wbe©vnx wm×všÍMÖnYKvixi Kv‡Q cwi‡ewkZ Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`‡bi mv‡_ 
mvgÄm¨c~Y© nq wbe©vnx wefvM¸‡jv| cÖwZôvbwU Gi cwiPvjK cl©`‡K cÖavb wbe©vnx wm×všÍMÖnYKvix wn‡m‡e MY¨ K‡i| 
KviY m¤ú` eivÏKiY, Kg©Kv‡Ði ch©v‡jvPbv Ges †KŠkjx wm×všÍ MÖn‡Yi `vwqZ¡ GB cl©‡`i Ici b¨¯Í|

 cÖwZôvbwUi cÖv_wgK Kg©Kv‡Ði AvIZvq i‡q‡Q evsjv‡`‡k wmMv‡iU Drcv`b Ges weµq| Gi AvIZvq cÖwZôvbwUi 
Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`b cÖKvwkZ nq| hw`I cÖwZôvbwUi eª¨vÛmg~‡ni g‡a¨ cv_©K¨ Kiv nq, cÖavb wbe©vnx wm×všÍMÖnYKvixi 
Kv‡Q cwi‡ewkZ Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`‡b GB cv_©K¨ D‡jøL Kiv _v‡K bv| †m‡nZz, D”P ch©v‡qi cÖv°jb Qvov eª¨v‡Ûi Ici 
wfwË K‡i cÖwZôv‡bi djvdj fvM Kiv m¤¢e bq|

3.17 Dcv`vb ZË¡ Ges mgwóKiY
  Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b GKB c‡Y¨i wewfbœ gv‡bi Dcv`vb Avjv`v K‡i cwi‡ekb Kiv nq| wewfbœ Kvh©KvwiZvi cY¨ Avjv`v 

K‡i cwi‡ekb Kiv nq hw` bv †m¸‡jv Z`m¤úwK©Z nq|

3.18 cÖwZ‡e`b cÖYq‡bi c‡ii NUbvmg~n
 cÖwZ‡e`b cÖYq‡bi c‡ii NUbvmg~n hv †Kv¤úvwb m¤ú‡K© cÖ‡qvRbxq Z_¨ Ges wPÎ cÖ`vb K‡i Zv Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z Zz‡j 

aiv nq|

 cÖwZ‡e`b cÖYq‡bi c‡ii NUbvmg~n hv mgš^q Kiv nqwb Zv †bv‡U cÖKvwkZ n‡q‡Q hw` Zv ¸iæZ¡c~Y© n‡q _v‡K|
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  2013 2012
  UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000

5.   gRy`
   
 ZvgvK cvZv 4,165,565 3,331,867
 †gvoK mvgMÖx 623,328 413,728
 cÖwµqvaxb KvR 31,082 25,154
 Drcvw`Z cY¨ 1,336,598 917,440
 †fvM¨ gvjvgvj 470,130 268,698
  6,626,703 4,956,887

6.   evwYR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨    
 FYcÎ 16,733 44,659
 e¨emvwqK †`bv`vi 244,645 324,760
 AvšÍt‡Kv¤úvwb Av`vq‡hvM¨ 27,427 25,217
 Ab¨vb¨ †`bv`vi 16,861 18,516
 K…wl DcKiY 465,251 524,721
  770,917 937,873

  D³ cvIbv¸‡jv RvgvbZwenxb wKš‘ Av`vq‡hvM¨ e‡j we‡ewPZ weavq D³
 cvIbvi wecix‡Z †Kv‡bv mwÂwZ ivLv nqwb|

7. AwMÖg, Rgv Ges AwMÖg cwi‡kva

 m¤ú~iK ïé I gyj¨ ms‡hvRb Ki 96,299 216,519
 cybiæ×vi †hvM¨ g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki  184,562 212,909
 AwMÖg LiP 354,024 569,588
  634,885 999,016

8. bM` A_© I Zvi mgZ‚j¨
 
  bM` A_© 2,062 3,881
 e¨vs‡K Rgv:  
  jf¨vsk wnmve 33,051 30,886
  ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvi wnmve 329,051 409,492
  PjwZ wnmve 1,369,446 265,133
  ¯’vqx Rgv 184,516 1,569,698
  1,918,126 2,279,090

  ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wnmv‡ei †Ri Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYxi Zvwi‡Li nv‡i UvKvq iƒcvšÍi Kiv n‡jv|
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  2013 2012
    UvKv Õ000  UvKv Õ000
9. †kqvi g~jab

 Aby‡gvw`Z

  60,000,000 mvaviY †kqvi cÖwZwU 10 UvKv g~‡j¨i   600,000,000 600,000,000
 
 Bmy¨K…Z, M„nxZ Ges cwi‡kvwaZ:
 bM‡` Bmy¨K…Z
 3wU mvaviY †kqvi cÖwZwU  10 UvKv g~‡j¨i    30 30
 bM` e¨ZxZ Bmy¨i Rb¨ we‡ewPZ
 59,999,997wU mvaviY †kqvi cÖwZwU 10 UvKv g~‡j¨i  599,999,970 599,999,970
  600,000,000   600,000,000
 

 †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i web¨vm 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 ch©šÍ:
   
 †iwj Bb‡f÷‡g›U †Kvs wjt BD‡K   72.91% 72.91%
 Bb‡f÷‡g›U K‡c©vt Ae evsjv‡`k    10.16% 11.51%
 mvaviY exgv K‡c©v‡ikb    2.82% 2.82%
 evsjv‡`k †W‡fjc‡g›U e¨vsK wjwg‡UW   0.37% 0.93%
 evsjv‡`k miKvi   0.64% 0.64%
 †mbv Kj¨vY ms¯’v   0.26% 0.26%
 Ab¨vb¨   12.83% 10.92%
    100.00% 100.00%

wjw÷s iæ‡ji Pvwn`v Abyhvqx DwjøwLZ †kqv‡ii eÈbm~wP wW‡m¤^i 31, 2013 ch©šÍ †`qv n‡jv:

†kqvi msL¨v  †kqvi †nvìv‡ii msL¨v †gvU †kqvi msL¨v kZKiv nvi

500 Gi Kg †kqvi  3,113 215,465 0.359%
500 †_‡K 5000 †kqvi  249 295,510 0.493%
5001 †_‡K 10,000 †kqvi  14 98,160 0.164%
10,001 †_‡K 20,000 †kqvi  20 294,128 0.490%
20,001 †_‡K 30,000 †kqvi  8 193,875 0.323%
30,001 †_‡K 40,000 †kqvi  6 215,800 0.360%
40,001 †_‡K 50,000 †kqvi  4 174,050 0.290%
50,001 †_‡K 100,000 †kqvi  14 1,044,300 1.741%
100,001 †_‡K 1,000,000 †kqvi  15 6,165,433 10.276%
1,000,000 †kqv‡ii †ewk  5 51,303,279 85.505%
†gvU   3,448 60,000,000  100.000%



BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 131

  2013 2012
  UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
10. msiw¶Z g~jab Znwej 64,896 64,896

 msiw¶Z g~jab Znwej ej‡Z 64,896 nvRvi UvKv AcZ¨cY©‡hvM¨ msiw¶Z Znwej‡K †evSvq hv evsjv‡`k 
e¨vsK KZ©…K msÁvwqZ Ges wb‡`©wkZ m¤ú`, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZi Ici 90% Ki cieZx© jf¨vsk| 

 1993 mvj †_‡K DwjøwLZ m¤ú`, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZi weµq †_‡K jf¨vs‡ki Ici we‡kl gRy` Znwej m„wói 
Pvwn`v Zz‡j †bIqv n‡q‡Q|

  2013 2012
  UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
11. msiw¶Z gybvdv Znwej

 cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 6,368,044 5,246,404
 we‡qvM: cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk 3,000,000 2,820,000  
  3,368,045 2,426,404
 †hvM: me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq 4,868,649 3,941,640
 mgvcYx †Ri 8,236,694 6,368,044

12. MÖ¨vPyBwU
 cÖviw¤¢K e¨v‡jÝ 240,592 252,089
 2012 mv‡ji cybg©~j¨vqb (12.1 `ªóe¨) 78,575 -
 cybivq ewY©Z cÖviw¤¢K e¨v‡jÝ 319,167 -
 GB eQ‡ii msiÿY 70,684 51,525
 cÖ`Ë A_©  (25,788) (63,022)
 mgvcbx e¨v‡jÝ 364,063 240,592

12.1 wba©vwiZ myweavi `v‡qi eZ©gvb g~j¨gv‡bi mgš^qmvab 
 wba©vwiZ myweavi `v‡qi eZ©gvb g~j¨gv‡bi cÖviw¤¢K e¨v‡jÝ  252,089
 eZ©gvb †mev-msµvšÍ e¨q  33,250
 my`RwbZ e¨q  23,160
 cø¨v‡b AskMÖnYKvix‡`i cÖ`Ë A_©  -
 wnmve (cÖvwß)/ÿwZ   73,690
 cÖ`Ë jvf  (63,022)
 wba©vwiZ myweavi `v‡qi eZ©gvb g~j¨gv‡bi mgvcbx e¨v‡jÝ   319,167
 eQi‡k‡l ¯^xK…Z   240,592
 2013* mv‡j ¯^xK…Z 2012 mv‡ji cybg~©j¨vqbK…Z wnmve  78,575

 * 2012 mv‡ji †k‡li wewfbœ wiUvqvi‡g›U I `xN©Kvjxb jv‡fi w¯‹‡gi `vqmg~‡ni Ici wfwË K‡i GB 
cybg©~j¨vq‡bi wnmve-msµvšÍ ÷vwW Kiv n‡q‡Q| 2012 mv‡ji wnmvemg~n †ck Kivi ci 2013 mv‡ji 11 
†deªæqvwi‡Z GB wi‡cvU©wU †`qv n‡q‡Q| 

 eZ©gvb †mevRwYZ e¨‡qi we¯ÍvwiZ wnmve     UvKvÕ000
 me©‡gvU †mevRwYZ e¨q  33,250 
 cÖ`Ë U¨v· (m¤ú`)/`v‡qi e„w×/n«vm                                          -   
 eZ©gvb †mevRwYZ e¨q                                33,250
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  2013 2012
        UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
13. wejw¤^Z Ki `vq

 cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 723,643 669,079
 †hvM: PjwZ eQ‡ii msi¶‡Yi mv‡_ †hvM (†bvU 23.2) 159,733 54,564
 mgvcYx †Ri 883,376 723,643

14.   Avw_©K BRvivi eva¨evaKZv

 Avw_©K BRvivi †¶‡Î eva¨evaKZv cwi‡kv‡ai †kªYxweb¨vm wbgœiƒc:
  2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
  g~j my` †gvU g~j my`  †gvU
    UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000  UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
 14.1 GK eQ‡ii g‡a¨ cwi‡kva 7,541 465 8,006 10,335 1,512 11,846
 14.2  GK eQi c‡i wKš‘ 5 eQ‡ii g‡a¨ cwi‡kva - - - 7,541 465 8,007
         5 eQi c‡i cwi‡kva - - - - -  -
          Avw_©K BRvivi †gvU eva¨evaKZv 7,541 465 8,006 17,876 1,977 19,853 
  
  2013 2012
        UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ00015.    msiwÿZ e¨q

 wefvMxq mwÂwZ 940,856 717,561
 g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki I ïé m¤úwK©q mwÂwZ 1,243,607 1,403,656
 Ab¨vb¨ mwÂwZ   153,593 66,818 
    2,338,056 2,188,035

16.    e¨emv I Ab¨vb¨ `vq 

 evwYwR¨K cvIbv`vi 1,552,406 1,539,414
 cÖwf‡W›U/†cbkb Znwej - 13,980
 gybvdvq kªwgK‡`i Askx`vwiZ¡ Znwej 141 505
 gRywi Ges Ab¨vb¨ myweav 340,151 362,406
 A`vexK…Z jf¨vsk (UxKv 25) 33,051 30,886
 AvšÍt‡Kv¤úvwb 1,732,939 1,175,230
 wewea cvIbv`vi 43,201 123,255
   3,701,889 3,245,676
17.    AvqKi `vq

 cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 6,800,124 4,294,866
 †hvM: PjwZ eQ‡ii cwi‡kva 3,988,381 2,505,258
   10,788,505 6,800,124
 we‡qvM: AwMÖg K‡c©v‡iU Ki cwi‡kva (†bvU 17.1) (8,521,222) (5,214,393)

 mgvcbx †Ri 2,267,283 1,585,731
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    2013 2012
        UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
17.1 AwMÖg cwi‡kvwaZ K‡c©v‡iU Ki

 cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 5,214,393 3,316,923
 †hvM: PjwZ eQ‡ii cwi‡kva 3,306,829 1,897,470
 mgvcbx †Ri 8,521,222 5,214,393

18. bxU weµqjä A_©   
    GKK cwigvY  

 †gvU weµq jä A_© wgwjqb w÷K  34,738  107,492,258 87,411,032
 m¤ú~iK ïé Ges g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki       (78,144,165) (62,420,334)
   29,348,093 24,990,698

 ZvgvK cvZv ißvwb †_‡K Avq wgwjqb †KwR 9,903  2,089,451 2,763,048
 ißvwb Ki    (212,107) (282,402)
   1,877,344 2,480,646 
   31,225,437 27,471,344
19.   weµq msµvšÍ e¨q
 e¨eüZ KvuPvgvj 14,390,034 13,274,677 
 Drcv`b Dcwi e¨q (UxKv 20) 3,111,296 2,671,547
   17,501,330 15,946,224
20.   cwiPvjb e¨q
 cwiPjb e¨‡q AšÍfz©³: 
 †eZb I gRyix 1,416,995 1,270,001
 Aemi myweav w¯‹‡g cÖ`vb 110,575 93,500
 Kg©Pvix Kj¨vY e¨q  164,882 126,939
 eª¨vÛ evRviRvZ LiP   730,474 675,105
 †UªW evRviRvZ LiP 718,122 617,954
 we`y¨r I R¡vjvbx 383,207 298,678
 fvov, AwfKi I Ki    235,867 189,819
 i¶Yv‡e¶Y I †givgZ 574,324 649,752
 ågY I cÖwk¶Y 277,474 220,590
 hvbevnb Lv‡Z e¨q 85,474 73,830
 AvBb I †Kv¤úvwb †m‡µUvwiqvj 9,457 12,784
 Z_¨ cÖhyw³ 274,009 223,833
 Awdm I cÖkvmwbK LiP 144,542 117,618
 mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv 31,696 39,863
 wbivcËv †mev 50,368 41,449
 evRvi Z_¨ 329,114 261,269
 weZiY LiP 119,938 79,988
 cwienb  296,970 214,108
 exgv 62,655 59,309
 AePq 632,870 538,117
 KvwiMix mnvqZv wd 631,051 786,960
 wbix¶Y wd 800 800
 Ab¨vb¨ wd (cÖZ¨qb I Ab¨vb¨) 760 730
 Avw_©K e¨q 17,077 16,386
 Ab¨vb¨ e¨q 32,334 674,583
    7,331,035 7,283,965
  ev`: Drcv`‡bi Rb¨ Dcwi e¨q 3,111,296 2,671,547
   4,219,739 4,612,418
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    2013 2012
        UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
21.   Ab¨vb¨ Avq
 ¯’vqx m¤ú` weµ‡q jvf 34,946 26,497
 Ab¨vb¨ wewea Avq 54,715 24,323
   89,661 50,820
22. bxU Avw_©K Avq/ (e¨q)
 my‡` Avq 77,581 64,562 
 my‡` e¨q (88,796) (184,440) 
   (11,215) (119,878)
23. AvqKi

23.1 PjwZ Ki

 eZ©gvb eQ‡ii Rgv                                                                                   3,988,381   2,505,258
   3,988,381   2,505,258

23.2 wejw¤^Z Ki

 mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z avh©K…Z 191,165 54,564
 mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx‡Z m¤ú‡`i wejw¤^Z Ki (31,432) -
 eZ©gvb eQ‡ii Rgv  159,733 54,564
 
 m¤ú`
 m¤úwË , c¨v›U I hš¿cwZ 2,662,510 2,360,019
 gRy` I †`bv`vi (90,009) (51,877)
    2,572,501 2,308,142
 
 `vq 
 MÖvPzBwUi mwÂwZ 364,063 240,592
 bxU Kiv‡ivc‡hvM¨ e¨eavb 2,208,439 2,067,550
 Kvh©Kwi wejw¤^Z Ki nvi 40% 35%
 wejw¤^Z Ki `vq 883,377 723,642
 PjwZ eQ‡ii Rb¨ PvR© 159,734

23.3  cÖ‡hvR¨ Ki nvi mgš^q
     2013 2012
      % UvKv Õ000 % UvKv Õ000
 Ki c~e© jvf  9,103,673  6,501,462
 PjwZ Ki e¨q 43.81% 3,988,381 38.53% 2,505,258
 wejw¤^Z Ki e¨q 1.75% 159,733 0.84% 54,564
 †gvU Ki e¨q 45.57% 4,148,114 39.37% 2,559,822

 cÖ‡hvR¨ Ki nvi Abyhvqx m¤¢ve¨ AvqKi 40.00% 3,641,469 35.00% 2,275,512
 c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii mgš^q 3.93% 357,893  
 Ki KZ©b e¨ZxZ e¨q 0.12% (10,981) 3.53% 229,746
  Kvh©Kwi PjwZ Ki 44.05% 3,988,381 38.53% 2,505,258
 Kvh©Kwi wejw¤^Z Ki 1.52% 159,733 0.84% 54,564
      45.57% 4,148,114 39.37% 2,559,822
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24.  cÖwZ †kqv‡i Avq

24.1 cÖwZ †kqv‡i †gŠwjK Avq
  cÖwZ †kqv‡i †gŠwjK Avq wnmve Kiv n‡q‡Q 31  wW‡m¤^i 2013 ZvwiL ch©šÍ Bmy¨K…Z 10 UvKv cÖwZ †kqvi  wn‡m‡e  
 60,000,000 mvaviY †kqv‡ii wfwË‡Z|

  2013    2012    
  UvKv '000    UvKv '000   
 PjwZ eQ‡ii †gvU mw¤§wjZ Avq 4,868,649 3,941,640  
 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 Gi †kqvi msL¨v 60,000,000 60,000,000
 †kqvi cÖwZ  81.14 65.69 

24.2 cÖwZ †kqv‡i wgkª Avq
 G eQ‡i wgkª‡Yi †Kv‡bv my‡hvM wQj bv e‡j †kqvi cÖwZ wgkª Avq wnmve Kivi cÖ‡qvRb †bB|

25.  jf¨vsk cÖ`vb
                       A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki Kvj wfwËK ch©v‡jvPbv           UvKv '000
  2011 
  Gi Av‡Mi 2011 2012 2013 †gvU 2012 
 A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 18,028 6,549 6,310 - 30,887 24,577 
 †hvM: †NvlYvK…Z jf¨vsk - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,820,000
 2012 mv‡ji P~ovšÍ jf¨vsk - - - 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,220,000
 2013 mv‡ji AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vsk - - - 600,000 600,000 600,000
 ev`: A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki mgvcbx †Ri  18,028 6,549 6,310 2,165 33,052 30,887
 cÖ`Ë jf¨vsk - - - 2,997,835 2,997,835 2,813,690

26.  Kg©Pvixi msL¨v
          
         †Kv¤úvwb‡Z 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 ZvwiL Abyhvqx 1,251 Rb ¯’vqx Kg©Pvix wQ‡jb (2012: 1,119 Gi Abycv‡Z) Ges 

cÖ‡qvRb Abyhvqx †gŠmywg I A¯’vqx Kg©Pvix wb‡qvM Kiv n‡q _v‡K| me ¯’vqx Kg©Pvix eQ‡i M‡o 36,000 UvKvi †ewk 
cvwikªwgK †c‡q _v‡Kb|

  2013   2012
27.  cwiPvjKe„‡›`i m¤§vbx UvKv '000   UvKv '000
 
 Dcw¯’wZ m¤§vbx  38 36
 wgwUs eve` e¨q  918 689
 †eZb (GgwW mn)  35,034 42,555
 AemiKvjxb fvZv  3,360 3,317
 wPwKrmv Ges Kj¨vYg~jK fvZv  144 483
 M„nms¯’vb  7,600 7,202
     47,094 54,282 
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    2013     2012 
  BDGm wW '000 BDGm wW '000 28.    cÖZ¨c©Y‡hvM¨ ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv   
           GB eQ‡ii Rb¨ PvR©:  
 iq¨vjwU  446,844 348,480   
 KvwiMwi mn‡hvwMZv wd  631,051 786,960
 **†iwg‡U‡Ýi Zvwi‡L DwjøwLZ †i‡Ui Ici wfwË K‡i mKj e¨q ˆe‡`wkK
 gy`ªvq iƒcvšÍi K‡i †iwgU Kiv n‡q‡Q
    
 eQ‡ii ga¨eZ©x e¨q:  
 iq¨vjwU (AvBb Abyhvqx AcÖ`Ë Ki ev` w`‡q)  - 6,109    
 KvwiMwi wd (AvBb Abyhvqx AcÖ`Ë Ki ev` w`‡q)  7,530 15,437 
 jf¨vsk  25,313 20,857 

 2012 mv‡ji KvwiMwi mn‡hvMxZv wd 2013 mv‡j Ges 2011 I 2010 mv‡ji KvwiMix mn‡hvMxZv wd 2012 
 mv‡j cÖ`vb Kiv n‡q‡Q| 2012 mv‡ji eq¨vjwU 2014 mv‡j cÖ`vb Kiv n‡e|

29.   Drcv`b ¶gZv
 †Kv¤úvwb‡Z Ae¨vnZ Drcv`‡bi wfwË‡Z KvR nq Ges eZ©gv‡b ¯’vwcZ wewfbœ ai‡bi †gwkb me ai‡bi Drcv`b 

ÿgZv (†hgb: wdëvi) Ges c¨v‡KwRs mvgMÖx (†hgb: wnb&R wjW, †kj I ¯øvBW) Av‡Q| fwel¨‡Zi Pvwn`v 
†gUv‡bvi j‡ÿ¨ cwiPvjKMY wbqwgZ Drcv`b ¶gZv ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡Kb|

 cÖK…Z Drcv`b  2013 2012
 wmMv‡iU (wgwjqb w÷K)  35,338 30,040

30.   ißvwb †_‡K AwR©Z Avq BDGm wW              32,587 35,189

31.   mswkøó cvwU©i mv‡_ †jb‡`b
PjwZ eQ‡i, †Kv¤úvwb mswkøó cvwU©mg~‡ni mv‡_ e¨emvi cÖ‡qvR‡b wewfbœ †jb‡`b cwiPvjbv K‡i‡Q| G mg¯Í cvwU©i 
bvg, †jb‡`‡bi cÖK…wZ Ges Zv‡`i cÖK…Z g~j¨ weGGm 24: mswkøó cvwU© Z_¨vw` Gi AvIZvq †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q:

 cvwU©i bvg m¤ú‡K©i cÖK…wZ 2013 mv‡j wW‡m¤^i 31, 2013
    †jb‡`‡bi cwigvY Abyhvqx e¨v‡jÝ
   UvKv Õ000 cÖvc¨/cÖ‡`q
    UvKv Õ000 Avq
 K. wjd ißvwb
 µqKvwi cÖwZôvb
 weGwU (wRGjwc) wjwg‡UW* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 1,148,689 (193,532)
 cvwK¯Ívb †Uve¨v‡Kv †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 210,607 -

 e¨q
 L . cY¨ AvniY wiPv©R
 Z_¨ cÖhyw³, cY¨ I Ab¨vb¨ †mev AvniY:
 weGGmGm wRGmwW BD‡K  weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 176,404 (62,967)
 weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 267,081 (5,176)
 we ªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv Gwkqv c¨vwmwdK wiwRqb wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 15,385 (13,539)
 weGwU A¨vmcvK mvwf©m †m›Uvi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 95,773 (25,997)
 weGwU †Kvwiqv weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 132 (133)
 weGwU †Kvwiqv g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis  728 -
 weGwU wm½vcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 29 -
 

 M. cY¨ µq †gvoK mvgMÖx µq
 wjd I †gvoK mvgMÖx µq:
 weGwU wm½vcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 295,864 3,834
 weGwU (wRGjwc) wjwg‡UW** weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 493,450 11,586
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    2013     2012   
    UvKv '000 UvKv '000
32.   cÖwZkÖæZ g~jabx e¨q  
 m¤úwË KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ hv Pzw³e× wKš‘ GB mKj Avw_©K
 cÖwZ‡e`‡b DwjøwLZ bq  308,639     336,810   

33.   wef³ cÖwZ‡e`b
 cÖwZôvbwUi Kvh©µg evsjv‡`kwfwËK| ewng©yLx MÖvnK‡`i KvQ †_‡K msM„nxZ Av‡qi cwigvY 108,394,687 

nvRvi UvKv (2012: 88,263,788 nvRvi UvKv)| evsjv‡`‡ki evB‡i cÖwZôvbwUi †Kv‡bv ¯’vqx m¤úwË †bB| 31 
wW‡m¤^i 2013 Ges 31 wW‡m¤^i 2012 Zvwi‡L eQi †k‡l MÖæ‡ci †gvU Av‡qi 10% ev Gi †ewk †Kv‡bv GKwU 
ewng©yLx MÖvn‡Ki KvQ †_‡K AvewZ©Z nqwb|

 cÖwZôvbwUi cÖv_wgK Kg©Kv‡Ði AvIZvq i‡q‡Q evsjv‡`‡k wmMv‡iU Drcv`b Ges weµq| Gi AvIZvq cÖwZôvbwUi 
Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`b cÖKvwkZ nq| hw`I cÖwZôvbwUi eª¨vÛmg~‡ni g‡a¨ cv_©K¨ Kiv nq, cÖavb wbe©vnx 
wm×všÍMÖnYKvixi Kv‡Q cwi‡ewkZ Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`‡b GB cv_©K¨ D‡jøL Kiv _v‡K bv| †m‡nZz, D”P ch©v‡qi 
cÖv°jb Qvov eª¨v‡Ûi Ici wfwË K‡i cÖwZôv‡bi djvdj fvM Kiv m¤¢e bq|

 wmMv‡iU Drcv`b QvovI  cÖwZôvbwU evsjv‡`‡ki evB‡i wjd ißvwb K‡i| GB ißvwb †gvU Ges bxU Av‡qi 10% 
GiI Kg Ae`vb iv‡L| Z‡e wmMv‡iU Ges ißvwbi wek` weeiYx UxKv 18 G cÖ`Ë i‡q‡Q|

34.  Avg`vwbK…Z Ges ¯’vbxq KuvPvgv‡ji e¨envi

           2013   2012
                                  †gvoK mvgMÖx wjd †gvoK mvgMÖx wjd
 Avg`vwbK…Z: UvKv '000 UvKv '000 UvKv '000  UvKv '000  

          cÖviw¤¢K gRy` 242,742 488,366 264,848 449,232
 µq 2,890,530 1,421,024 2,251,068 1,519,095
 e¨envi (2,658,465) (1,446,395) (2,273,174) (1,479,961)
 mgvcbx gRy` (K) 474,807 462,996 242,742  488,367
 
         ¯’vbxq:
 cÖviw¤¢K gRy` 170,986 2,843,500 38,885 3,160,287
 µq 4,006,921 7,045,016 3,662,442 5,499,667
 e¨envi (4,029,386) (4,758,243) (3,530,341) (3,969,501)
 ißvwb - (1,427,705) - (1,846,953)

 mgvcbx gRy` (L) 148,521 3,702,569 170,986 2,843,500
 mgvcbx gRy` (K+L) 623,328 4,165,565 413,728 3,331,868

 †h‡nZz †Kv¤úvwbi e¨eüZ KuvPvgv‡ji ai‡bi cwigvY ZzjbvgyjKfv‡e AwaK, †m‡nZz Gi wek` weeiY cÖ`vb Kiv †Mj bv|

 N. iq¨vjwU
 iq¨vjwU cÖvc¨/cÖ‡`q:
 weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW*** †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 391,433 (711,098)

 O. KvwiMwi I Dc‡`óv wd wUGÛG
 KvwiMwi I Dc‡`óv †mev MÖnY wd:
 weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 705,157 (705,157)

 P. hš¿cvwZ µq g~jabx hš¿cvwZ 
 weGwU A‡÷ªwjqv wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 51,422 -
 weGwU R©vgvbx wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 21,513 -
 wm‡jvb †Uve¨v‡Kv †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 8,732 -
 
 Q. ¸iæZ¡c~Y© e¨e¯’vcbv Kgx©i wbKU ¯’vqx m¤úËx weµq  4,050 -

  h‡_vchy³ cÖwZ‡hvMxZv g~jK bxjv‡gi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbxi GKwU c~Y©© Ae‡jvcb K…Z Mvox Awb©evnx e¨e¯’vc‡Ki wbKU wewµ Kiv n‡q‡Q| G mµvšÍ †jb‡`bwU 
 m¤ú~Y© mgvavb n‡q‡Q|
 *AwMÖg MÖnY
 **AwMÖg cÖ`vb
 *** mgvcbx e¨‡jÝwU‡K 2012 mv‡ji iq¨vjwU AšÍf©z³ Av‡Q hv 2014 mv‡j cwi‡kva K‡iv n‡e|
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35.  Avw_©K SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv
 †Kv¤úvwb‡K cÖwZwbqZ eû ai‡bi Avw_©K SuzwKi m¤§ywLb n‡Z nq †hgb: evRvi msµvšÍ SzuwK (hvi g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q Kv‡iwÝ msµvšÍ SuzwK, 

mwVK my‡`i nvi msµvšÍ SzuwK Ges bM` A_© cÖevn msµvšÍ SuzwK), `vq msµvšÍ SzuwK Ges Zvij¨  msµvšÍ SuzwK| †Kv¤úvwbi mvwe©K 
SuzwK e¨e¯’vcbvq j¶¨ ivLv nq Avw_©K evRv‡ii ZviZ‡g¨i Ici Ges †Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Kg©Kv‡Ð Gi cÖfve Kgv‡bvi cÖ‡Póvq|

 AwWU KwgwUi Aby‡gvw`Z Kvh©cÖYvjxi Ici wfwË K‡i GKwU SuzwK e¨e¯’vcbv KwgwU SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjbv K‡ib| †Kv¤úvwbi 
†UªRvwi Kg©Kv‡Ði mvnv‡h¨ GB KwgwU mKj Avw_©K SzuwK ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡Kb| †UªRvwi Kg©Kv‡Ði cwiPvjbv K‡i _v‡Kb †UªRvwi 
KwgwU hvi cÖavb wn‡m‡e _v‡Kb dvBb¨vÝ wW‡i±i Ges Gi Kg©KvÐ Aby‡gvw`Z †UªRvwi Kvh©cÖYvjxi wfwË‡Z cwiPvwjZ n‡q _v‡K|

 evRvi SuywK
 (K) ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbg‡qi SzuwK
 †Kv¤úvwb wewea iKg ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv msµvšÍ SuzwKi m¤§ywLb n‡Z cv‡i, hv cÖavbZ BDGm Wjvi, BD‡iv Ges weªwUk cvD‡Ûi gv‡bi 

ZviZ‡g¨i Kvi‡Y m„wó nq| fwel¨Z evwYwR¨K †jb‡`b, wPwýZ m¤ú` I `v‡qi wfwË‡Z ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv msµvšÍ SuzwK m„wó n‡Z 
cv‡i| e¨envi‡hvM¨ gy`ªvi Av‡jv‡K ˆe‡`wkK wewbg‡qi SzuwK nªvm Kivi Rb¨ cÖwZôvbwUi e¨e¯’vcbv †UªRvwi bxwZgvjv AbymiY K‡i|

  cÖwZ‡e`‡bi ZvwiL Abyhvqx cÖwZôvbwUi ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbg‡qi SuzwKmg~n wb¤œiƒc:

 eQi Ry‡o wb¤œewY©Z D‡jøL‡hvM¨ wewbgq nvi e¨eüZ n‡q‡Q:
   cwieZ©‡bi nvi
  31 wW‡m¤^i 2013 31 wW‡m¤^i 2013
 gvwK©b Wjvi (BDGmwW) 77.67 79.78
 weªwUk cvDÛ (wRwewc) 128.63 129.67
 BD‡iv (BBDAvi) 107.02 105.18

 †Kv¤úvwb e¨eüZ g~j¨gv‡bi wecwi‡Z Ae¨eüZ g~j¨gv‡bi 5% e„w× ev n«vm‡K †Kv¤úvwb h_vh_ cwieZ©‡bi nvi wn‡m‡e h_v_© 
g‡b K‡i _v‡K| 31 wW‡m¤^i, 2013 Zvwi‡L Ab¨vb¨ cwieZ©bkxj m~PKmg~‡ni w¯’iZvi Av‡jv‡K e¨eüZ g~j¨gv‡bi wecwi‡Z 
Ae¨eüZ g~j¨gv‡bi 5% e„w× ev n«v‡mi d‡j †Kv¤úvwbi Ki c~e© jv‡f Lye D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cÖfve †dj‡e bv|

 (L) g~j¨ msµvšÍ SuzwK
 g~j¨ msµvšÍ SuzwK ej‡Z †evSvq evRv‡ii Avw_©K ZviZ‡g¨i Ici wfwË K‡i Avw_©K weeiYxi fwel¨Z bM` A_© cÖev‡ni mwVK 

gv‡bi ZviZg¨ (my‡`i nvi msµvšÍ SuzwK ev gy`ªv nvi msµvšÍ SuzwK e¨ZxZ) hw` Zv GKK Avw_©K DcvË ev Gi cÖ¯‘ZKviK Gi 
cwieZ©b ev evRv‡i †jb‡`bK…Z mgch©v‡qi Avw_©K Dcv‡Ëi wfwË‡Z cÖfvweZ nq|

 †Kv¤úvwbi BKzBwU g~j¨ msµvšÍ SzuwKi `vq †bB KviY BKzBwU‡Z †Kv‡bv wewb‡qvM Kiv nqwb| †Kv¤úvwb mvaviY cY¨ g~j¨ msµvšÍ 
SzuwKi ØvivI mivmwi cÖfvweZ bq|

 (M) bM` cÖevn I mwVK my‡`i nvi msµvšÍ SuzwK
 †Kv¤úvwbi Kvh©Kix bM` cÖevn evRv‡ii my‡`i nvi msµvšÍ SzuwKgy³| KviY, †Kv‡bv m¤ú` I `v‡qi †¶‡Î †Kv‡bv `xN©‡gqvw` m¤úK© †bB|

  BD‡iv cvDÛ Wjvi BD‡iv cvDÛ  Wjvi

   2013      2012
UvKv Õ000                                                           UvKv Õ000

ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv msµvšÍ m¤úwË

m¤úwK©Z mn‡hvMx‡`i Zid †_‡K cvIbv - 15,715 11,289 - 6,369 10,281 

cvIbv wnmve 82,082 2,574 102,808 - - 40,658

e¨vs‡K bM` - - 329,051 300 349 410,241

  82,082 18,289 443,148 300 6,718 461,180
ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv msµvšÍ `vq

m¤úwK©Z mn‡hvMx‡`i wbKU †`bv - 63,954 137,308 -     47,424 737,092

e¨‡qi I Ab¨vb¨ †`bv 13,143 46,761 253,522 - - 108,634

  13,143 110,715 390,830 - 47,424 845,726

bxU G·‡cvRvi 68,939 (92,426) 52,318 300 (40,706)   (384,546)
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†`bv msµvšÍ SuywK

†`bv msµvšÍ SzuwK ej‡Z †evSvq Pzw³ Abyhvqx Kvh©µg cwiPvjbv Ki‡Z bv cvivq GK c‡¶i Avw_©K A¶gZvi Kvi‡Y Ab¨ 
c‡¶i Avw_©K ¶wZ m„wó Kiv| e¨emvwqK †`bv`vi, AwMÖg Ges e¨vs‡K bM` Rgvi Kvi‡Y GB SuzwK m„wó nq| MÖæc †UªRvwi 
Kvh©cÖYvjxi wfwË‡Z bM` e¨e¯’vcbv Kiv nq Ges ¯^í †gqv`x wewb‡qv‡Mi †¶‡Î †UªRvwi KwgwU MÖæ‡ci bxwZgvjvi wfwË‡Z 
wm×všÍ MÖnY K‡i| †Kv¤úvwb 100% bM` †jb‡`‡b Kvh© cwiPvjbv K‡i _v‡K Avi ewa©Z e¨vsK QzwUi Kvi‡Y wKQy we‡kl 
wecYbKvix‡`i 3 w`‡bi evwK †`Iqv nq dvBb¨vÝ Ges gv‡K©wUs Gi we‡kl Aby‡gv`‡bi wfwË‡Z| †`bvi eÜKx wn‡m‡e, 
MÖvnK‡`i KvQ †_‡K mgcwigvY A‡_©i †PK msMÖn Kiv nq Ges †Kv¤úvwbi †ndvR‡Z ivLv nq|

m¤ú‡`iwfwË‡Z me©vwaK cwigv‡Yi †`bv msµvšÍ SzuwKmg~n wbgœiƒc:
   2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
e¨emvwqK †`bv`vi n‡Z cvIbv (UxKv 6) 244,645 324,760
AvšÍtcÖvwZôvwbK cvIbv (UxKv 6) 27,427 25,217
wewea †`bv`vi n‡Z cvIbv (UxKv 6) 16,861 18,516
K…wl cÖ`vb mgš^q (UxKv 6) 465,251 524,721 
   754,184 893,214
e¨vs‡K bM` (UxKv 8) 1,916,064 2,275,209
   2,670,248 3,168,423
31 wW‡m¤^i 2012 Zvwi‡L cÖvc¨ mgq Abyhvqx †`Lv‡bv n‡jv:
0-30 w`b 310,795 443,277
31-60 w`b 262,285 189,291
61-90 w`b 157,494 233,982
91-180 w`b 20,679 25,437
181-365 w`b 2,932  -
365 w`‡bi Ici - 1,227
   754,184 893,214

Zvij¨ msµvšÍ SzuwK
Zvij¨ msµvšÍ SzuwK Gi A_© n‡jv †Kv‡bv GK‡Ki Avw_©K `vqe×Zv c~iY Ki‡Z bv cviv|
 

cÖ‡qvRbvbymv‡i wewb‡qvM wm×všÍ cÖ‡qvM Ges D”P ch©v‡qi g~jab wewb‡qvM Pvwn`v c~iY Ki‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi e¨e¯’vcbv bM` 
cÖev‡ni wfwË‡Z bM` ev bM‡`i mgch©v‡q cÖKvwkZ Zvi‡j¨i Ae¯’vb msµvšÍ cwiewZ©Z fwel¨ZevYx ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡K 
Ges †evW© KZ©„K Aby‡gvw`Z m‡e©v”P †`bv cÖ`vb Kvh©cÖYvjxi wfwË‡Z ¯^í †gqvw` †`bv wbwðZ K‡i| wW‡m¤^i 31, 2012 
Abyhvqx †Kv¤úvwbi m¤ú~Y© FY MÖnY myweavw` Ae¨eüZ wQ‡jv Ges †Kv¤úvwbi bM` Ges e¨vsK e¨v‡j‡Ýi cwigvY `uvovq 
2.27 wewjqb UvKv| GB Ae¯’v‡bi wfwË‡Z Ges eQi †k‡l †Kv¤úvwbi abvZ¥K Kvh©Kwi g~jab Ae¯’v‡bi Kvi‡Y GB 
wm×v‡šÍ DcbxZ nIqv wM‡q‡Q †h Zvij¨ msµvšÍ SzuwKi Avk¼v Kg|

cÖwZ‡e`b ZvwiL Abyhvqx cÖvmw½K AwbY©xZ Avw_K© `vqmg~n:
   2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
e¨emvwqK cvIbv`vi (UxKv 16) 1,552,406 1,539,414
cÖwf‡W›U/†cbkb dvÛ (UxKv 16) - 13,980
`vex`vinxb jf¨vsk (UxKv 16) 33,051 30,886
AvšÍtcÖvwZôvwbK †`bv (UxKv 16) 1,732,939 1,175,230
Ab¨vb¨ cvIbv`vi (UxKv 16) 43,201 123,255
   3,361,597 2,882,765
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39.  NUbvmv‡c¶ `vq

 †Kv¤úvwbi wecix‡Z K‡qKwU wbw`©ó AgxgvswmZ AvBbMZ, Ki I f¨vUmsµvšÍ `vwe i‡q‡Q, h_vmg‡q AvBbMZ 
cÖwµqvi gva¨‡g hvi wb®úwË Kiv n‡e| G¸‡jvi wb®úwËK‡í †Kv¤úvwb me©vZ¥K cÖ‡Póv Pvjv‡”Q| cÖwZ‡e`b Rgv 
†`Iqvi w`b Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z GB `vwei †Kv‡bvwUi Rb¨B †Kv‡bv e¨e¯’v ivLvi cÖ‡qvRb Av‡Q e‡j cwiPvjKMY 
g‡b K‡ib bv| 

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                              A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                  †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                             cwiPvjK                                                        †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

 

   2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
 cÖvmw½K AwbY©xZ Avw_K© `vqmg~‡ni mgqKvj:
 0-30 w`b 525,426 2,036,556 
 31-60 w`b 1,067,277 117,059
 61-90 w`b 622,205 172,414
 91-180 w`b 146,058 331,401
 181-365 w`b 608,774 170,525
 365 w`‡bi Ici 379,378 54,810
   3,349,118 2,882,765

 mwVK g~j¨ wba©viY
 cÖ‡qvM‡hvM¨ mKj Avw_©K DcvËmg~n mwVK g~‡j¨ wba©vwiZ i‡q‡Q|
36.   m¤úwË, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ weµq

37.   wm‡÷g DbœxZKiY
 
 2014 mvj †_‡K G›UvicÖvBR wi‡mvm© cø¨vwbs md&UIq¨vi ÔGmGwcÕ-†K c~e©eZ©x ÔwmçwbÕ ms¯‹iY †_‡K ÔIqvbG-

mGwcÕ ms¯‹i‡Y DbœxZ Kiv nq| GB DbœxZKiY cÖwµqv mdjfv‡e m¤úbœ nq| Avkv Kiv n‡”Q, Gi d‡j mvwe©K 
wbqš¿Y I cÖwµqv DbœZ n‡e|

38.   cÖwZ‡e`b cÖYq‡bi cieZ©x NUbvmg~n
 
 2013 mv‡ji b‡f¤^i gv‡m 2013 mv‡ji Rb¨ 100% A_©vr cÖwZ †kqv‡i 10 UvKv nv‡i me©‡gvU 600,000,000 

UvKv AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vsk wn‡m‡e cÖ`vb Kiv n‡qwQj| 2014 mv‡ji 26 †deªæqvwi AbywôZ †evW© mfvq cwiPvjK 
cl©` 520% A_©vr cÖwZ †kqv‡i 52 UvKv nv‡i me©‡gvU 3,120,000,000 UvKv P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk wn‡m‡e cÖ`vb Kivi 
mycvwik K‡ib, hvi d‡j cwiPvjK cl©` 2013 mv‡ji Rb¨ 100% AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vskmn me©‡gvU 620% 
P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk †Kv¤úvwbi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ mycvwik K‡ib| 

KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ   833,230 741,136 92,095 6,027 †Kv¤úvwb bxwZgvjv Abyhvqx Z…Zxq c¶ 

Awdm miÄvg  27,764 25,969 1,795 167  H Z…Zxq c¶
AvmevecÎ  122 70 51 42  H  Z…Zxq c¶
hvbevnb*    62,965  60,752 2,213 36,110  H †Kv¤úvwb   
         Kg©Pvixe„›`

 2013 924,081  827,927 96,154 42,346

 2012 64,091  60,443 3,648 30,145

 * †Kv¤úvwbi cwjwm Abyhvqx mKj hvbevnb wbjv‡gi gva¨‡g weµq Kiv nq|

cÖK…Z g~j¨ mwÂZ AePq ev`/mgš^q c×wZwjwLZ g~j¨ †µZvweµq g~j¨

UvKv '000 UvKv '000 UvKv '000 UvKv '000
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39.  NUbvmv‡c¶ `vq

 †Kv¤úvwbi wecix‡Z K‡qKwU wbw`©ó AgxgvswmZ AvBbMZ, Ki I f¨vUmsµvšÍ `vwe i‡q‡Q, h_vmg‡q AvBbMZ 
cÖwµqvi gva¨‡g hvi wb®úwË Kiv n‡e| G¸‡jvi wb®úwËK‡í †Kv¤úvwb me©vZ¥K cÖ‡Póv Pvjv‡”Q| cÖwZ‡e`b Rgv 
†`Iqvi w`b Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z GB `vwei †Kv‡bvwUi Rb¨B †Kv‡bv e¨e¯’v ivLvi cÖ‡qvRb Av‡Q e‡j cwiPvjKMY 
g‡b K‡ib bv| 

                           †kn&Rv` gywbg                                              A¨vš’wb Bqs                                                  †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
                      e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK                                             cwiPvjK                                                        †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

 

   2013 2012
   UvKv Õ000 UvKv Õ000
 cÖvmw½K AwbY©xZ Avw_K© `vqmg~‡ni mgqKvj:
 0-30 w`b 525,426 2,036,556 
 31-60 w`b 1,067,277 117,059
 61-90 w`b 622,205 172,414
 91-180 w`b 146,058 331,401
 181-365 w`b 608,774 170,525
 365 w`‡bi Ici 379,378 54,810
   3,349,118 2,882,765

 mwVK g~j¨ wba©viY
 cÖ‡qvM‡hvM¨ mKj Avw_©K DcvËmg~n mwVK g~‡j¨ wba©vwiZ i‡q‡Q|
36.   m¤úwË, KviLvbv I hš¿cvwZ weµq

37.   wm‡÷g DbœxZKiY
 
 2014 mvj †_‡K G›UvicÖvBR wi‡mvm© cø¨vwbs md&UIq¨vi ÔGmGwcÕ-†K c~e©eZ©x ÔwmçwbÕ ms¯‹iY †_‡K ÔIqvbG-

mGwcÕ ms¯‹i‡Y DbœxZ Kiv nq| GB DbœxZKiY cÖwµqv mdjfv‡e m¤úbœ nq| Avkv Kiv n‡”Q, Gi d‡j mvwe©K 
wbqš¿Y I cÖwµqv DbœZ n‡e|

38.   cÖwZ‡e`b cÖYq‡bi cieZ©x NUbvmg~n
 
 2013 mv‡ji b‡f¤^i gv‡m 2013 mv‡ji Rb¨ 100% A_©vr cÖwZ †kqv‡i 10 UvKv nv‡i me©‡gvU 600,000,000 

UvKv AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vsk wn‡m‡e cÖ`vb Kiv n‡qwQj| 2014 mv‡ji 26 †deªæqvwi AbywôZ †evW© mfvq cwiPvjK 
cl©` 520% A_©vr cÖwZ †kqv‡i 52 UvKv nv‡i me©‡gvU 3,120,000,000 UvKv P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk wn‡m‡e cÖ`vb Kivi 
mycvwik K‡ib, hvi d‡j cwiPvjK cl©` 2013 mv‡ji Rb¨ 100% AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vskmn me©‡gvU 620% 
P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk †Kv¤úvwbi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ mycvwik K‡ib| 



weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`‡ki e„ÿ‡ivcb

Planting seeds I obtained at no cost as part of British American Tobacco Bangladesh’s a�orestation programme 
has brought the touch of success to my life.

Mazibor Rahman
Meerpur, Kushtia
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Proxy Form
I/We.................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of......................................................................................................................................................................................................................

being a Member of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited, do hereby appoint

Mr./Mrs...........................................................................................................................................................................................................

of......................................................................................................................................................................................................................

either of them may, in writing, appoint anyone to act as my proxy at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Wednesday, 23 April 2014 and at any adjournment thereof

As witness my/our hand this ............................................................................ day of ................................................. 2014.

Revenue
Stamp
Tk. 20

Notes:

Attendance Slip

...........................................

(Signature of Proxy)

................................................

(Signature of Shares Holder)

................................................

Signature of Shares Holder(s)/Proxy

Folio / BO ID No. of Shares Holder:  

No. of Shares held: .........................................................................

Folio / BO ID No.
  

No. of Shares held: ..........................................................................................

Note: Please present this attendance slip at the registration counter on or before 10:30 a.m on the AGM date.

  

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
New DOHS. Road Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, PO Box 6069, Bangladesh

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
New DOHS. Road Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, PO Box 6069, Bangladesh

1. A member entitled to attend and vote in the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. 
2. The Proxy Form, duly filed and stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, by 10.30 a.m of 21 

April 2014.
3. Signature of the Member(s) must be in accordance with the Specimen Signature recorded with the Company.

I/We do hereby record my/our attendance at the 41st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company being held on 23 
April 2014 at 10.30 a.m at Pan Pacific Sonargaon, 107 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh

Name of the Shares Holder(s)/Proxy:..........................................................................................................................................................................
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cÖwZwbwacÎ
Avwg/Avgiv ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi m`m¨ wn‡m‡e 
K. Rbve/†eMg .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

L. Rbve/†eMg .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 
†K ev Zv‡`i †h‡Kv‡bv GKRb‡K Avgvi/Avgv‡`i cÖwZwbwa wn‡m‡e Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Abycw¯’wZ‡Z eyaevi, 23 GwcÖj 2014 Zvwi‡L 
AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Ges Zvi g~jZwe †NvwlZ mfvq Dcw¯’Z nIqv I †fvU`v‡bi Rb¨ wbhy³ Kijvg|

...........................................

 †kqvi msL¨v : ..................................................................

†dvwjI / weI b¤^i :

  

(cÖwZwbwai ¯^vÿi)
...........................................

(†kqvi †nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶i)

...........................................

(†kqvi †nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶i)

Avwg/Avgiv AvMvgx 23 GwcÖj 2014 †ivR eyaevi mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡U †mvbviMuvI †nv‡Uj, 107 KvRx bRiæj Bmjvg GwfwbD, 
XvKv-1215 Gi ejiæ‡g AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Dcw¯’wZ wjwce× KiwQ|

†kqvi †nvìvi/cÖwZwbwai bvg: .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

weI/†dvwjI AvBwW bs:

†kqv‡ii msL¨v: ..........................................................................................................................

`ªóe¨ 1: AbyMÖnc~e©K, GwRGg-Gi w`b mKvj 10.30 wgwb‡U ev Zvi Av‡M †iwR‡÷ªkb KvD›Uv‡i GB Dcw¯’wZcÎwU †`Lv‡eb|

Dcw¯’wZcÎ

`ªóe¨: 
1. Awbevh©KviYekZt, †Kv‡bv m`m¨ Zvi Abycw¯’wZ‡Z g‡bvbxZ cÖwZwbwa‡K Zvi cÿ †_‡K †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ cvVv‡Z cvi‡eb
2. cÖwZwbwacÎ mwVKfv‡e c~iY I ÷¨v¤ú mshy³ K‡i †Kv¤úvwbi wbewÜZ Awd‡m 21 GwcÖj mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡Ui g‡a¨
 Rgv w`‡Z n‡e
3. †Kv¤úvwbi bw_fz³ bgybv ¯^vÿi I m`‡m¨i ¯^vÿi GKB n‡Z n‡e|

†iwfwbD

÷¨v¤ú

20/=  

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
wbD wWIGBPGm, †ivW gnvLvjx, XvKv-1209, wcI e· 6069 evsjv‡`k

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
wbD wWIGBPGm, †ivW gnvLvjx, XvKv-1209, wcI e· 6069 evsjv‡`k
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